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(in case of any typographical/printing errors or any doubts and clarification on this Bidding Document, the 

Master Document available with GSCDL shall be referred and take precedence) 
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Standard Procurement Document 

Summary 

Specific Procurement Notice 

RFB No: 029/GSCDL/2022, Project identification No: SIK-GAN-081. 

Bidding Document: Request for Bids – REPAIR AND RESTORATION OF STREET LIGHTS 

UNDER GANGTOK MUNICIPAL CORPORATION LIMITS 
 

PART I – BIDDING PROCEDURES 
 

Section I -         Instructions to Bidders (ITB) 

This Section provides relevant information to help Bidders prepare their Bids. It is based 
on two (2)-envelope Bidding process. Information is also provided on the submission, 

opening, and evaluation of Bids and on the award of Contracts. Section I contains 

provisions that are to be used without modification. 

Section II - Bid Data Sheet (BDS) 

This Section includes provisions that are specific to each procurement and that supplement 

Section I, Instructions to Bidders. 

Section III -     Evaluation and Qualification Criteria 

This Section specifies the criteria to determine the Most Advantageous Bid. 

Section IV -      Bidding Forms 

This Section includes the forms for the Bid submission, Bill of Quantities or Activity 
Schedules to be completed by the Bidder and submitted as part of its Bid. 

Section V -       Bill of Quantities 

This Section contains Bill of Quantities. 

 

PART II – WORKS REQUIREMENTS 
 

Section VI -Works’ Requirements 

This Section contains the Specifications, the Drawings, and supplementary information that 

describe the Works to be procured. The Works’ Requirements also include the 

environmental and social (ES) requirements (including requirements relating to Sexual 
Exploitation and Abuse (SEA) and Sexual Harassment (SH)) which are to be satisfied by 
the Contractor in executing the Works. 

 
PART III – CONDITIONS OF CONTRACT AND CONTRACT FORMS 

 

Section VII -    General Conditions of Contract 

This Section contains the general clauses to be applied in all contracts. The text of the 

clauses in this Section shall not be modified. 

Section VIII-    Particular Conditions of Contract 

This Section consists the Particular Conditions of Contract which contains provisions 

specific to each contract. The contents of this Section modify or supplement the General 
Conditions and shall be prepared by the Employer. 

Section IX -      Contract Forms 

This Section contains the Letter of Acceptance, Contract Agreement and other relevant 

forms. 
 
 



 
 

Request for Bids 

(Two-Envelope Bidding Process) 

Employer: Gangtok Smart City Development Limited (GSCDL) 

Project ID: SIK-GAN-081 REPAIR AND RESTORATION OF STREET LIGHTS IN AND AROUND 

GANGTOK 

Bid Value: Rs 2.53 Crore  /- only 

RFB No: 029/GSCDL/2022, Project identification No: SIK-GAN-081. 

Issued on: 1
st
 March 2022 

1. The GSCDL is to receive financing under the Smart City Mission, and intends to apply part of the proceeds 

toward payments under the contract “For this contract, the GSCDL shall process the payments as per the 

Company policy, terms and conditions laid in this Standard Procurement Document, subject to availability 

of funds. 

2. The GSCDL now invites sealed Bids from eligible Bidders for the work “Repair and Restoration of Street 

Llights under Gangtok Municipal Corporation Limits Gangtok, Sikkim” to be completed within a 

period of Six months. 

3. Bidding will be conducted through competitive procurement using Request for Bids (RFB) as specified 

herein and is open to all eligible Bidders as defined in the given criteria. 

4. The bidding document in English may be purchased by interested eligible Bidders during working days 

between 1100 hrs to 1500hrs from 14/03/2022 to 16/03/2022 at the address indicated below, upon the 

submission of a written application to the address below and upon payment of a nonrefundable fee of Rs. 

30,000/-. The method of payment will be through demand draft payable to Gangtok Smart City 

Development Limited. The DD should be issued by a Nationalized Bank and payable at Gangtok. 

5. Interested eligible Bidders may obtain further information from the office of the Chief Executive Officer, 

GSCDL; email id – ceosmartcity.gangtok@gmail.com and inspect the bidding document during office 

hours between 1100 hrs to 1500 hrs from 21/03/2022 to 22/03/2022 at the address indicated below. 

6. Bids must be delivered to the address indicated below, on or before 1500 hours on or before 25/03/2022. 

Electronic bidding will not be permitted. Late Bids will be rejected. The outer Bid envelopes marked 

“ORIGINAL BID”, and the inner envelopes marked “TECHNICAL PART” will be publicly opened in the 

presence of the Bidders’ designated representatives and anyone who chooses to attend, at the address below 

at 1100 hrs on 28/03/2022. All envelopes marked “FINANCIAL PART” shall remain unopened and will 

be held in safe custody of the Employer until the second public Bid opening. 

7. Bids must be accompanied by a Bid Security of Rs  6,32,500/- (Rupees Six Lakhs Thirty Two 

Thousand Five Hundred Only) 

8. The address(es) referred to above is (are): 

Chief Executive Officer 

Gangtok Smart City Development Limited, Level V Kissan Bazar, - 737101 Gangtok, Sikkim, India 

Email address: ceosmartcity.gangtok@gmail.com 

Website: http://smartcitygangtok.com/ & https://smartnet.niua.org/ 
 

 

Chief Executive Officer 

Gangtok Smart City Development Limited 

mailto:ceosmartcity.gangtok@gmail.com
mailto:ceosmartcity.gangtok@gmail.com
http://smartcitygangtok.com/
https://smartnet.niua.org/
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Section 1 - INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS 

General 

1. SCOPE OF BIDS: 
 

1.1. In connection with the Invitation for Bids indicated in the Bid Data Sheet (BDS), the 

Employer/GSCDL, as indicated in the BDS, issues this Bidding Document for the 

procurement of Works as specified in Section 6 (Employer’s Requirements). The name 

and identification, number of the contract of the Request for Proposal (RFP) are 

provided in the BDS. 

1.2. Throughout this Bidding Document: 

(a) the term “in writing” means communicated in written form (example by mail, 
email, fax) and delivered against receipt; 

(b) except where the context requires otherwise, words indicating the singular also 

include the plural and words indicating the plural also include the singular; and 

(c) “day” means calendar day. 

2. SOURCE OF FUND: 

2.1. The Borrower or Recipient (hereinafter called “GSCDL”) indicated in the BDS has 

applied for or received financing (hereinafter called “funds”) from the Smart City 

Mission (SCM) towards the cost of the project named in the BDS. The Borrower 

intends to apply a portion of the funds to eligible payments under the contract(s) for 

which this Bidding Document is issued. 

3. Fraud and Corruption 

3.1. The Anticorruption Policy applicable in state of Sikkim requires bidders, suppliers, 

subcontractors and contractors under GSCDL-financed contracts, observe the highest 

standard of ethics during the procurement and execution of such contracts. In 

pursuance of this policy, GSCDL. 

(a) defines, for the purposes of this provision, the terms set forth below as follows: 

i. “Corrupt practice” means the offering, giving, receiving, or soliciting, 

directly or indirectly, anything of value to influence improperly the actions 

of another party; 

ii. “fraudulent practice” means any act or omission, including a 

misrepresentation, that knowingly or recklessly misleads, or attempts to 

mislead, a party to obtain a financial or other benefit or to avoid an 

obligation; 

iii. “Coercive practice” means impairing or harming or threatening to harm, 

directly or indirectly, any party or the property of the party to influence 

improperly the actions of a party; 

iv. “collusive practice” means an arrangement between two or more parties 

designed to achieve an improper purpose, including, influencing 

improperly the actions of another party; 
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(b) will reject a proposal for award if it determines that the bidder recommended for 

award has, directly or through an agent, engaged in corrupt, fraudulent, collusive, 

or coercive practices in competing for the Contract; 

(c) will sanction a firm or an individual, at any time ,in accordance with the Anti- 

Corruption Policy and integrality Principles and guidelines (both as amended from 

time to time), including declaring in-eligible, either indefinitely or a stated period 

of time, to participate in GSCDL financed or GSCDL administered activities or to 

benefit from an GSCDL-finance or GSCDL-administered contract ,financially or 

otherwise, if it at any time determines that the firm or individual has, directly or 

through an agent, engaged in corrupt fraudulent, collusive or coercive or other 

prohibited practices. 

(d) Will have the right to require that a provision be included in Bidding Documents 

and in contracts financed by GSCDL, requiring bidders, suppliers and contractors 

and consultants to permit the GSCDL to inspect their accounts and records and 

other documents relating to the Bid Submission and Contract Performance and to 

have them audited by auditors appointed by GSCDL. 

(e) Will cancel the portion of the financing allotted to contract if it determines at any 

time that representatives of the contractor or of a beneficiary or GSCDL financing 

engaged in corrupt, fraudulent, collusive or coercive or other prohibited practice 

during the procurement or the execution of the contract, without the borrower 

having taken timely and appropriate actions satisfactory to GSCDL to remedy the 

situation 

3.2. Furthermore, Bidders shall be aware of the provisions of GCC 22.2 and 56.2 (h). 

4. Eligible Bidders 

4.1. A Bidder may be a natural person, private entity, government-owned entity—subject 

to ITB 4.5 under an existing agreement or with the intent to constitute a legally- 

enforceable joint venture, coming together to implement the Project 

4.2. A Bidder, and all parties constituting the Bidder, shall have the Indian nationality. A 

Bidder shall be deemed to have the nationality of a country if the Bidder is a citizen or 

is constituted, or incorporated, and operates in conformity with the provisions of the 

laws of that country. This criterion shall also apply to the determination of the 

nationality of proposed subcontractors or suppliers for any part of the Contract 

including related services. 

4.3. GSCDL considers a conflict of interest to be a situation in which a party has interests 

that could improperly influence that party’s performance of official duties or 

responsibilities, contractual obligations, or compliance with applicable laws and 

regulations, and that such conflict of interest may contribute to or constitute a 

prohibited practice under GSCDL's Anticorruption Policy. In pursuance of GSCDL's 

Anticorruption Policy’s requirement that bidders, suppliers, subcontractors and 

contractors under GSCDL-financed contracts, observe the highest standard of ethics, 

GSCDL will take appropriate actions, which include not financing of the contract, if it 

determines that a conflict of interest has flawed the integrity of any procurement 

process. Consequently, all Bidders found to have a  conflict of  interest shall be 
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disqualified. A Bidder may be considered to be in a conflict of interest with one or 

more parties in this bidding process if, including but not limited to: 

(a) they have controlling shareholders in common; or 

(b) they receive or have received any direct or indirect subsidy from any of them; or 

(c) they have the same legal representative for purposes of this bid; or 

(d) they have a relationship with each other, directly or through common third parties, 

that puts them in a position to have access to information about or influence on 

the Bid of another Bidder, or influence the decisions of the Employer regarding 

this bidding process; or 

(e) A Bidder participates in more than one bid in this bidding process. Participation 

by a Bidder in more than one Bid will result in the disqualification of all Bids in 

which the party is involved. However, this does not limit the inclusion of the same 

subcontractor in more than one bid; not otherwise participating as a Bidder. 

(f) A Bidder or any of its affiliates participated as a consultant in the preparation of 

the design or technical specifications of the contract that is the subject of the Bid; 

or 

(g) A Bidder or any of its affiliates has been hired (or is proposed to be hired) by the 

Employer as Engineer for the contract. 

4.4. A firm that is under a declaration of ineligibility by the GSCDL in accordance with 

ITB 3, at the date of the deadline for bid submission or thereafter, shall be disqualified. 

A bid from a sanctioned or cross debarred firm by any government agencies of 

Employers country will be rejected. It is the duty of the Contractor/Bidder to notify 

Employer if the Contractor/Bidder is being debarred by any agencies as mentioned 

above. The contractor bid will be summarily terminated even after contract has been 

awarded if it is found to in case of any such information comes to the notice of 

Employer in such an event the contractor will be liable for all losses and liabilities of 

Employers as well as of contractors firm. 

4.5. Government-owned enterprises in the Employer’s country shall be eligible only if they 

can establish that they are legally and financially autonomous and operate under 

commercial law, and that they are not a dependent agency of the Employer. 

4.6. Bidders shall provide such evidence of their continued eligibility satisfactory to the 

Employer, as the Employer shall reasonably request. 

4.7. In case a prequalification process has been conducted prior to the bidding process, this 

bidding is open only for prequalified bidders. 

 
5. Eligible Materials, Equipment and Services 

5.1. The materials, equipment and services to be supplied under the Contract shall have 

their origin in eligible source countries as defined in ITB 4.2 above and all expenditures 

under the Contract will be limited to such materials, equipment, and services. At the 

Employer’s request, Bidders may be required to provide evidence of the origin of 

materials, equipment and services. 

5.2. For purposes of ITB 5.1 above, “origin” means the place where the materials and 

equipment are mined, grown, produced or manufactured, and from which the services 

are provided. Materials and equipment are produced when, through manufacturing, 



PART I: BIDDING PROCEDURES 

7 

 

 

processing, or substantial or major assembling of components, a commercially 

recognized product results that differs substantially in its basic characteristics or in 

purpose or utility from its components. 

 

Contents of Bidding Documents 

6. Sections of Bidding Document 

6.1. The Bidding Document consist of Parts I, II, and III, which include all the Sections 

indicated below, and should be read in conjunction with any Addenda issued in 

accordance with ITB 8. 

PART I Bidding Procedures 

Section 1 - Instructions to Bidders (ITB) 

Section 2 - Bid Data Sheet (BDS) 

Section 3 - Evaluation and Qualification Criteria (EQC) 

Section 4 - Bidding Forms (BDF) 

Section 5 – Bill of Quantities (BOQ) 

PART II Employer’s Requirements 

Section 6 – Work Requirements (WRQ) 

PART III Conditions of Contract and Contract Forms 

Section 7 - General Conditions (GCC) 

Section 8 - Particular Conditions (PCC) 

Section 9 - Contract Forms (COF) 

6.2. The Invitation for Bids issued by the Employer is not part of the Bidding Document. 

6.3. The Employer is not responsible for the completeness of the Bidding Document and 

their Addenda, if they were not obtained directly from the source stated by the 

Employer in the Invitation for Bids. 

6.4. The Bidder is expected to examine all instructions, forms, terms, and specifications in 

the Bidding Document. Failure to furnish all information or documentation required 

by the Bidding Document may result in the rejection of the bid. 

7. Clarification of Bidding Document, Site Visit, Pre-Bid Meeting: 

7.1. A prospective Bidder requiring any clarification of the Bidding Document shall contact 

the Employer in writing at the Employer’s address indicated in the BDS or raise his 

inquiries during the pre-bid meeting if provided for in accordance with ITB 7.4. The 

Employer will respond in writing to any request for clarification, provided that such 

request is received prior to the deadline for submission of bids, within a period given 

in the BDS. The Employer shall forward copies of its response to all Bidders who have 

acquired the Bidding Document, including a description of the inquiry but without 

identifying its source. Should the Employer deem it necessary to amend the Bidding 

Document as a result of a request for clarification, it shall do so following the 

procedure under ITB 8 and ITB 22.2. 

7.2. The Bidder is encouraged to visit and examine the Site of Works and its surroundings 

and obtain for itself on its own risk and responsibility all information that may be 

necessary for preparing the bid and entering into a contract for construction of the 

Works. The costs of visiting the Site shall be at the Bidder’s own expense. 
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7.3. The Bidder and any of its personnel or agents will be granted permission by the 

Employer to enter upon its premises and lands for the purpose of such visit, but only 

upon the express condition that the Bidder, its personnel, and agents will release and 

indemnify the Employer and its personnel and agents from and against all liability in 

respect thereof, and will be responsible for death or personal injury, loss of or damage 

to property, and any other loss, damage, costs, and expenses incurred as a result of the 

inspection. 

7.4. The Bidder’s designated representative is invited to attend a pre-bid meeting, if 

provided for in the BDS. The purpose of the meeting will be to clarify issues and to 

answer questions on any matter that may be raised at that stage. 

7.5. The Bidder is requested, as far as possible, to submit any questions in writing, to reach 

the Employer not later than three days before the meeting. 

7.6. Minutes of the pre-bid meeting, including the text of the questions raised, without 

identifying the source, and the responses given, together with any responses prepared 

after the meeting, will be transmitted promptly to all Bidders who have acquired the 

Bidding Document in accordance with ITB 6.3. Any modification to the Bidding 

Document that may become necessary as a result of the pre-bid meeting shall be made 

by the Employer exclusively through the issue of an addendum pursuant to ITB 8 and 

not through the minutes of the pre-bid meeting. 

7.7. Nonattendance at the pre-bid meeting will not be a cause for disqualification of a 

Bidder. 

 

7 A Sufficiency of the Bid: The bidder shall be deemed to have satisfied himself before bidding 

as to the correctness and sufficiency of his tender for the Scope of Work. 

 

8. Amendment of Bidding Document 

8.1. At any time prior to the deadline for submission of bids, the Employer may amend the 

Bidding Document by issuing addenda. 

8.2. Any addendum issued shall be part of the Bidding Document and shall be 

communicated in writing to all who have obtained the Bidding Document. 

8.3. To give prospective Bidders reasonable time in which to take an addendum into 

account in preparing their bids, the Employer may, at its discretion, extend the deadline 

for the submission of bids, pursuant to ITB 22.2. 

 

Preparation of Bids 

9. Cost of Bidding 

9.1. The Bidder shall bear all costs associated with the preparation and submission of its 

Bid, and the Employer shall in no case be responsible or liable for those costs, 

regardless of the conduct or outcome of the bidding process. 

10. Language of Bid 

10.1. The Bid, as well as all correspondence and documents relating to the bid exchanged 

by the Bidder and the Employer, shall be written in English. Supporting documents 

and printed literature that are part of the Bid may be in another language provided 
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they are accompanied by an accurate translation of the relevant passages in English, 

in which case, for purposes of interpretation of the Bid, such translation shall govern. 

11. Documents Comprising the Bid 

11.1. The Bid shall comprise two envelopes submitted simultaneously, one called the 

Technical Bid containing the documents listed in ITB 11.2 and the other the Price 

Bid containing the documents listed in ITB 11.3, both envelopes enclosed together 

in an outer single envelope. 

11.2. The Technical Bid shall comprise the following: 

I. Letter of Technical Bid; 

II. Bid Security, in accordance with ITB 19; 

III. written confirmation authorizing the signatory of the Bid to commit the 

Bidder, in accordance with ITB 20.2; 

IV. documentary evidence in accordance with ITB 17 establishing the Bidder’s 

qualifications to perform the contract; 

V. Technical Proposal in accordance with ITB 16; 

VI. Any other document required in the BDS. 

11.3 The Price Bid shall comprise the following. 

(a) Letter of Price Bid; 

(b) completed Price Schedules, in accordance with ITB 12 and 14, or as 

stipulated in the BDS; 

(c) Any other document required in the BDS. 

12. Letters of Bid, and Schedules 

12.1. The Letters of Technical bid and Price bid, and all documents listed under Clause 

11, i.e. Schedules, including the Bill of Quantities etc., shall be prepared using the 

relevant forms furnished in Section 4 (Bidding Forms) if so provided. The forms 

must be completed without any alterations to the text, and no substitutes shall be 

accepted. All blank spaces shall be filled in with the information requested. 

13. Alternative Bids: No Alternative bids shall be considered. Bidders submitting unsolicited 

alternative proposals shall be summarily rejected 

14. Bid Prices and Discounts 

14.1. The prices and discounts quoted by the Bidder in the Letter of Price Bid and in the 

Bill of Quantities shall conform to the requirements specified below. 

14.2. The Bidder shall submit a bid for whole of the works described in ITB 1.1 by filling 

in prices for all items of Works, as identified in Section 4 (Bidding forms). In case 

of admeasurements contracts, the bidder shall fill in rates and prices for all items of 

the Works described in the Bill of Quantities. Items against which no rate or price is 

entered by the Bidder will not be paid for by the Employer when executed and shall 

be deemed covered by the rates for other items and prices in the Bill of Quantities. 

14.3. The price to be quoted in the Letter of Price Bid, in accordance with ITB 12.1 shall 

be the total price of the Bid, excluding any discounts offered. 

14.4. The Bidder shall quote Unconditional discounts, if any, and the methodology for 

their application in the Letter of Price Bid, in accordance with ITB 14.1. 

14.5. If so indicated in ITB 1.1, bids are invited for individual contracts or for any 

combination of contracts (packages), Bidders wishing to offer any price reduction 
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for the award of more than one Contract shall specify in their bid the price reductions 

applicable to each package, or alternatively, to individual Contracts within the 

package. Price reductions or discounts shall be submitted in accordance with ITB 

14.4, provided the bids for all contracts are submitted and opened at the same time. 

14.6. Unless otherwise provided in the BDS and the Conditions of Contract, the prices 

quoted by the Bidder shall be fixed. If the prices quoted by the Bidder are subject to 

adjustment during the performance of the Contract in accordance with the provisions 

of the Conditions of Contract, the Bidder shall furnish the indices and weightings for 

the price adjustment formulae in the Schedule of Adjustment Data in Section 4 

(Bidding Forms) and the Employer may require the Bidder to justify its proposed 

indices and weightings. 

14.7. All duties, taxes, and other levies payable by the Contractor under the Contract, or 

for any other cause, as of the date 28 days prior to the deadline for submission of 

bids, shall be included in the rates and prices and the total Bid Price submitted by 

the Bidder. 

14.8. Taxes, charges, Cess etc. including (but not limited to) Work Contract Tax (WCT), 

Seignorage/ Royalty / Labour Cess and any other charges as may be applicable from time to 

time at the prevailing rates shall be deducted from all payments made to the Contractor. 

Contractor shall provide E-Way Bills, Form “38”, or any other forms and comply with all 

the formalities that may be required by the Central/State Government for procurement of 

Owner supplied material. 

15. Currencies of Bid and Payment 

15.1. The currency (is) of the bid and payment shall be as specified in the BDS. 

16. Documents Comprising the Technical Proposal 

16.1. The Bidder shall furnish, as a part of the Technical bid, a Technical Proposal 

including a statement of work methods, equipment, personnel, schedule and any 

other information as stipulated in Section 4 (Bidding Forms), in sufficient detail to 

demonstrate the adequacy of the Bidders’ proposal to meet the work requirements 

and the completion time. 

17. Documents Establishing the Qualifications of the Bidder 

17.1. To establish its qualifications to perform the Contract in accordance with Section 3 

(Evaluation and Qualification Criteria) the Bidder shall provide the information 

requested in the corresponding information sheets included in Section 4 (Bidding 

Forms). 

17.2. Domestic Bidders, individually or in joint ventures, applying for eligibility for 

domestic preference shall supply all information required to satisfy the criteria for 

eligibility as described in ITB 35. 

18. Period of Validity of Bids 

18.1. Bids shall remain valid for the period specified in the BDS after the bid submission 

deadline date prescribed by the Employer. A bid valid for a shorter period shall be 

rejected by the Employer as non-responsive. 

18.2. In exceptional circumstances, prior to the expiration of the bid validity period, the 

Employer may request Bidders to extend the period of validity of their Bids. The 

request and the responses shall be made in writing. If a bid security is requested in 
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accordance with ITB 19, it shall also be extended for a corresponding period. A 

Bidder may refuse the request without forfeiting its bid security. A Bidder granting 

the request shall not be required or permitted to modify its Bid. 

19. Bid Security 

19.1. Unless otherwise specified in the BDS, the Bidder shall furnish as part of its bid, in 

original form, either Bid Securing Declaration or a Bid Security as specified in the 

BDS. In case of Bid Security the amount shall be as specified in the BDS. 

19.2. A Bid Securing Declaration shall use the form included in Section 4 (Bidding 

Forms). 

19.3. If a bid security is specified pursuant to ITB 19.1, the bid security shall be, at the 

Bidder’s option, in any of the following forms: 

(a) an unconditional Bank Guarantee; 

(b) TDR/ FDR 

(c) Demand Draft 

In the case of a Bank Guarantee, the Bid Security shall be submitted either using the 

Bid Security Form included in Section 4 (Bidding Forms). The form must include 

the complete name of the Bidder. The Bid Security shall be valid for twenty-eight 

days (28) beyond the original validity period of the bid, or beyond any period of 

extension if requested under ITB 18.2. 

19.4. Any Bid not accompanied by to substantially compliant Bid Security, if required in 

accordance with ITB 19.3, or Bid Securing declaration in accordance with ITB 19.2, 

if required in accordance with ITB 19.1 shall be rejected by the Employer as non- 

responsive. 

19.5. If a Bid Security is specified pursuant to ITB 19.1, the Bid Security of unsuccessful 

Bidders shall be returned as promptly as possible upon the successful Bidder’s 

furnishing of the Performance Security pursuant to ITB 43.1. 

19.6. If a Bid Security is specified pursuant to ITB 19.1, the Bid Security of the successful 

Bidder shall be returned as promptly as possible once the successful Bidder has 

signed the Contract and furnished the required Performance Security. 

19.7. The Bid Security may be forfeited or the Bid Securing Declaration executed: 

(a) if a Bidder withdraws its bid during the period of bid validity specified by 

the Bidder on the Letter of Bid, except as provided in ITB 18.2 or 

(b) if the successful Bidder fails to: 

i. sign the Contract in accordance with ITB 42; 

ii. furnish a Performance Security in accordance with ITB 43.1. 

iii. accept the correction of its Bid price pursuant to ITB 33.2 

20. Format and Signing of Bid 

20.1. The Bidder shall prepare one original of the documents comprising the bid as 

described in ITB 11 and clearly mark it “ORIGINAL-TECHNICAL BID AND 

ORIGINAL-PRICE BID”. In addition, the Bidder shall submit copies of the bid, in 

the number specified in the BDS, and clearly mark each of them “COPY”. In the 

event of any discrepancy between the original and the copies, the original shall 

prevail. 
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20.2. The original and all copies of the Bid shall be typed or written in indelible ink and 

shall be signed by a person duly authorized to sign on behalf of the Bidder. This 

authorization shall consist of a written confirmation as specified in the BDS and shall 

be attached to the bid. The name and position held by each person signing the 

authorization must be typed or printed below the signature. 

20.3. Any amendments such as interlineations, erasures, or overwriting shall be valid only 

if they are signed or initialed by the person signing the Bid. 

20.4. In case the Bidder is a JV, the Bid shall be signed by an authorized representative of the JV 

on behalf of the JV, and so as to be legally binding on all the members as evidenced by a 

power of attorney signed by their legally authorized representatives. 

 

Submission and Opening of Bids 

21. Sealing and Marking of Bids 

21.1. Bidders may always submit their bids by mail or by hand. When so specified in the 

BDS, bidders shall have the option of submitting their bids electronically. 

Procedures for submission, sealing and marking are as follows. 

(a) Bidder shall enclose the original of the Technical Bid, the original of the Price 

Bid, and each copy of the Technical Bid and each copy of the Price Bid, in 

separate sealed envelopes, duly marking the envelopes as “ORIGINAL - 

TECHNICAL BID”, “ORIGINAL - PRICE BID” and “COPY NO… - 

TECHNICAL BID” and “COPY NO…. - PRICE BID.” These envelopes, 

the first containing the originals and the others containing copies, shall then 

be enclosed in one single envelope per set. 

(b) Bidders submitting bids electronically shall follow the electronic bid 

submission procedures specified in the BDS. 

21.2. The inner and outer envelopes shall: 

(a) bear the name and address of the Bidder; 

(b) be addressed to the Employer as provided in BDS 22.1; 

(c) bear the specific identification of this bidding process indicated in the BDS 

1.1; and 

21.3. The outer envelopes and the inner envelopes containing the Technical Bid shall bear 

a warning not to open before the time and date for the opening of Technical Bid, in 

accordance with ITB Sub-Clause 25.1. 

21.4. The inner envelopes containing the Price Bid shall bear a warning not to open until 

advised by the Employer in accordance with ITB Sub-Clause 25.1. 

21.5. Alternative Bids, if permissible in accordance with ITB Clause 13, shall be prepared, 

sealed, marked, and delivered in accordance with the provisions of ITB Clauses 20 

and 21, with the inner envelopes marked in addition “ALTERNATIVE NO….” as 

appropriate. 

21.6. If all envelopes are not sealed and marked as required, the Employer will assume no 

responsibility for the misplacement or premature opening of the bid. 

22. Deadline for Submission of Bids 
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22.1. Bids must be received by the Employer at the address and no later than the date and 

time indicated in the BDS. 

22.2. The Employer may, at its discretion, extend the deadline for the submission of bids 

by amending the Bidding Document in accordance with ITB 8, in which case all 

rights and obligations of the Employer and Bidders previously subject to the deadline 

shall thereafter be subject to the deadline as extended. 

23. Late Bids 

23.1. The Employer shall not consider any bid that arrives after the deadline for 

submission of bids, in accordance with ITB 22. Any bid received by the Employer 

after the deadline for submission of bids shall be declared late, rejected, and returned 

unopened to the Bidder. 

24. Withdrawal of Bids 

24.1. A Bidder may withdraw, substitute, or modify its Bid – Technical or Price – after it 

has been submitted by sending a written notice, duly signed by an authorized 

representative, and shall include a copy of the authorization in accordance with ITB 

20.2, (except that withdrawal notices do not require copies). The corresponding 

substitution or modification of the bid must accompany the respective written notice. 

All notices must be: 

(a) prepared and submitted in accordance with ITB 20 and ITB 21 (except that 

withdrawal notices do not require copies), and in addition, the respective 

envelopes shall be clearly marked “WITHDRAWAL”, “SUBSTITUTION”, 

“MODIFICATION”, and 

(b) received by the Employer prior to the deadline prescribed for submission of 

bids, in accordance with ITB 22. 

24.2. Bids requested to be withdrawn in accordance with ITB 24.1 shall be returned 

unopened to the Bidders. 

24.3. No bid may be withdrawn, substituted, or modified in the interval between the 

deadline for submission of bids and the expiration of the period of bid validity 

specified by the Bidder on the Letter of Bid or any extension thereof. 

25. Bid Opening 

25.1. The Employer shall open the Technical bids in public at the address, date and time 

specified in the BDS in the presence of Bidder’s designated representative and 

anyone who chose to attend. Any specific electronic bid opening procedures required 

if electronic bidding is permitted in accordance with ITB 21.1 shall be as specified 

in the BDS. The Price bids will remain unopened and will be held in the custody of 

the Employer until the specified time of their opening. 

25.2. First, envelopes marked “WITHDRAWAL” shall be opened and read out and the 

envelope with the corresponding bid shall not be opened, but returned to the Bidder. 

No bid withdrawal shall be permitted unless the corresponding withdrawal notice 

contains a valid authorization to request the withdrawal and is read out at bid 

opening. 

25.3. Second, outer envelopes marked “SUBSTITUTION” shall be opened. The inner 

envelopes containing the Substitution Technical Bid and/or Substitution Price Bids 

shall be exchanged for the corresponding envelopes being substituted, which are to 
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be returned to the Bidder unopened. Only the substitution Technical Bid, if any, shall 

be opened, read out and recorded. Substitution Price Bid will remain unopened in 

accordance with ITB Sub-Clause 25.1. No envelope shall be substituted unless the 

corresponding Substitution Notice contains a valid authorization to request the 

substitution and is read out and recorded at bid opening. 

25.4. Next, outer envelopes marked “MODIFICATION” shall be opened. No Technical 

Bid and/or Price Bid shall be modified unless the corresponding Modification Notice 

contains a valid authorization to request the modification and is read out and 

recorded at the opening of Technical Bids. Only the Technical Bids, both Original 

as well as Modification is to be opened, read out, and recorded at the opening. Price 

Bids, both Original and Modification, will remain unopened in accordance with ITB 

Sub-Clause 25.1. 

25.5. All other envelopes holding the Technical Bids shall be opened one at a time, and 

the following read out and recorded: 

(a) the name of the Bidder; 

(b) Whether there is a modification or substitution 

(c) the presence of a Bid Security, if required; and 

(d) any other details as the Employer may consider appropriate. 

Only Technical Bids and alternative Technical bids read out and recorded at bid 

opening shall be considered for evaluation. No Bid shall be rejected at the opening 

of Technical Bids except for late bids, in accordance with ITB Sub-Clause 23.1. 

25.6. The Employer shall prepare a record of the opening of Technical Bids that shall 

include, as a minimum: the name of the Bidder and whether there is withdrawal, 

substitution or modification, alternative proposals and the presence or absence of a 

bid security, if one was required. The Bidders’ representatives who are present shall 

be requested to sign the record. The omission of a Bidder’s signature on the record 

shall not invalidate the contents and effect of the record. A copy of the record shall 

be distributed to all Bidders. 

25.7. At the end of the evaluation of the Technical Bids, the Employer will inform the 

bidders who have submitted substantially responsive Technical Bids and who have 

been determined as being qualified for award to attend the opening of the Price Bids. 

The date, time, and location of the opening of Price Bids will be advised in writing 

by the Employer. Bidders shall be given reasonable notice of the opening of Price 

Bids. 

25.8. The Employer will notify Bidders in writing who have been rejected on the grounds 

of their Technical Bids being substantially non-responsive to the requirements of the 

Bidding Document and return their Price Bids unopened. 

25.9. The Employer shall conduct the opening of Price Bids of all Bidders who submitted 

substantially responsive Technical Bids, in the presence of Bidders` representatives 

who choose to attend at the address, date and time specified by the Employer. The 

Bidder’s representatives who are present shall be requested to sign a register 

evidencing their attendance. 

25.10. All envelopes containing Price Bids shall be opened one at a time and the following 

read out and recorded: 
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(a) the name of the Bidder; 

(b) Whether there is a modification or substitution, 

(c) the Bid Prices, including any discounts; and 

(d) any other details as the Employer may consider appropriate. 

Only Price Bids, discounts, and alternative offers read out and recorded during the 

opening of Price Bids shall be considered for evaluation. No Bid shall be rejected at 

the opening of Price Bids. 

25.11. The Employer shall prepare a record of the opening of Price Bids that shall include, 

as a minimum: the name of the Bidder, the Bid Price (per lot if applicable), any 

discounts, and alternative offers. The Bidders’ representatives who are present shall 

be requested to sign the record. The omission of a Bidder’s signature on the record 

shall not invalidate the contents and effect of the record. A copy of the record shall 

be distributed to all Bidders. 

 

Evaluation and Comparison of Bids 

26. Confidentiality 

26.1. Information relating to the examination, evaluation, comparison, and post 

qualification of bids and recommendation of contract award, shall not be disclosed 

to Bidders or any other persons not officially concerned with such process until 

information on Contract award is communicated to all Bidders. 

26.2. Any attempt by a Bidder to influence the Employer in the evaluation of the bids or 

Contract award decisions may result in the rejection of its Bid. 

26.3. Notwithstanding ITB 26.2, from the time of bid opening to the time of Contract 

award, if any Bidder wishes to contact the Employer on any matter related to the 

bidding process, it may do so in writing. 

27. Clarification of Bids 

27.1. To assist in the examination, evaluation, and comparison of the Technical and Price 

bids, and qualification of the Bidders, the Employer may at its discretion ask any 

Bidder for a clarification of its bid. Any clarification submitted by a Bidder that is 

not in response to a request by the Employer shall not be considered. The Employer’s 

request for clarification and the response shall be in writing. No change in substance 

of the Technical bid or prices in the price bid shall be sought, offered, or permitted, 

except to confirm the correction of arithmetic errors discovered by the Employer in 

the evaluation of the bids, in accordance with ITB 33. 

27.2. If a Bidder does not provide clarifications of its bid by the date and time set in the 

Employer’s request for clarification, its bid may be rejected. 

28. Deviations, Reservations, and Omissions 

28.1. During the evaluation of bids, the following definitions apply: 

(a) “Deviation” is a departure from the requirements specified in the Bidding 

Document; 

(b) “Reservation” is the setting of limiting conditions or withholding from 

complete acceptance of the requirements specified in the Bidding Document; 

and 
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(c) “Omission” is the failure to submit part or all of the information or 

documentation required in the Bidding Document. 

29. Preliminary Examination of Technical Bids 

29.1. The Employer shall examine the Technical Bid to confirm that all documents and 

technical documentation requested in ITB Sub-Clause 11.2 have been provided, and 

to determine the completeness of each document submitted. 

29.2. The Employer shall confirm that the following documents and information have 

been provided in the Technical Bid. 

(a) Letter of Technical Bid 

(b) Written confirmation of authorization to commit the Bidder 

(c) Bid Security, if applicable and 

(d) Technical Proposal in accordance with ITB 16 

30. Responsiveness of Technical Bid 

30.1. The Employer’s determination of a bid’s responsiveness will be based on the 

contents of the bid itself, as defined in ITB11. 

30.2. A substantially responsive technical bid is one that meets the requirements of the 

Bidding Document without material deviation, reservation, or omission. A material 

deviation, reservation, or omission is one that, 

(a) if accepted, would: 

i. Affect in any substantial way the scope, quality, or performance of 

the Works specified in the Contract; or 

ii. Limit in any substantial way, inconsistent with the Bidding 

Document, the Employer’s rights or the Bidder’s obligations under 

the proposed Contract; or 

(b) if rectified, would unfairly affect the competitive position of other Bidders 

presenting substantially responsive bids. 

30.3. The Employer shall examine the technical aspects of the bid submitted in accordance 

with ITB 16, Technical Proposal, in particular, to confirm that all requirements of 

Section 6 (Works Requirements) have been met without any material deviation, 

reservation or omission. 

30.4. If a bid is not substantially responsive to the requirements of the Bidding Document, 

it shall be rejected by the Employer and may not subsequently be made responsive 

by correction of the material deviation, reservation, or omission. 

31. Nonconformities, Errors, and Omissions 

31.1. Provided that a bid is substantially responsive, the Employer may waive any 

nonconformity in the bid that does not constitute a material deviation, reservation or 

omission. 

31.2. Provided that a Technical bid is substantially responsive, the Employer may request 

that the Bidder submit the necessary information or documentation, within a 

reasonable period of time, to rectify nonmaterial nonconformities in the Technical 

bid related to documentation requirements. Requesting information or 

documentation on such nonconformities shall not be related to any aspect of the price 

of the bid. Failure of the Bidder to comply with the request may result in the rejection 

of its bid. 
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31.3. Provided that a Technical bid is substantially responsive, the Employer shall rectify 

quantifiable nonmaterial nonconformities related to the Bid Price. To this effect, the 

Bid Price may be adjusted, for comparison purposes only, to reflect the price of a 

missing or non-conforming item or component. The adjustment shall be made using 

the methods indicated in Section 3 (Evaluation and Qualification Criteria). 

32. Qualification of the Bidder 

32.1. The Employer shall determine to its satisfaction during the evaluation of Technical 

Bids whether Bidders meet the qualifying criteria specified in Section 3 (Evaluation 

and Qualification Criteria). 

32.2. The determination shall be based upon an examination of the documentary evidence 

of the Bidder’s qualifications submitted by the Bidder, pursuant to ITB 17.1. 

32.3. An affirmative determination shall be a prerequisite for the opening and evaluation 

of a Bidder’s Price Bid. A negative determination shall result into the 

disqualification of the Bid, in which event the Employer shall return the unopened 

Price Bid to the Bidder. 

 

32- A Subcontractors 

 

32-A.1 Unless otherwise stated in the BDS, the Employer does not intend to execute 

any specific elements of the Works Design and Build by sub-contractors 

selected in advance by the Employer (so-called “Nominated Subcontractors”). 

 

32-A.2 The Bidder shall not propose to subcontract the whole of the contract. The 

Bidder may propose subcontractors for certain specialized parts of the contract. 

Bidders planning to use such specialized subcontractors shall specify, in the 

Letter of Bid, the parts of the contract proposed to be subcontracted along with 

details of the proposed subcontractors including their qualification and 

experience. 

 

32-A.3 Subcontractors proposed by the Bidder shall be fully qualified for their parts of 

the contract. The subcontractor’s qualifications shall not be used by the Bidder 

to qualify for the contract unless the Bidder designates them as Specialized 

Subcontractors, in which case, the qualifications of the Specialized 

Subcontractor proposed by the Bidder may be added to the qualifications of the 

Bidder for the purpose of the evaluation, if specified in BDS. 

 

32-A.4 Bidders may propose subcontracting up to the percentage of total value of 

contracts or the volume of works as specified in the BDS. Sub-contractors 

proposed by the Bidder shall be fully qualified for their parts of the Works. 

 

33. Correction of Arithmetical Errors 

33.1. During the evaluation of Price Bids, the Employer shall correct arithmetical errors 

on the following basis: 

(a) if there is a discrepancy between the unit price and the total price that is 

obtained by multiplying the unit price and quantity, the unit price shall 
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prevail and the total price shall be corrected, unless in the opinion of the 

Employer there is an obvious misplacement of the decimal point in the unit 

price, in which case the total price as quoted shall govern and the unit price 

shall be corrected; 

(b) if there is an error in a total corresponding to the addition or subtraction of 

subtotals, the subtotals shall prevail and the total shall be corrected; and 

(c) if there is a discrepancy between words and figures, the amount in words 

shall prevail, unless the amount expressed in words is related to an arithmetic 

error, in which case the amount in figures shall prevail subject to (a) and (b) 

above. 

(d) If there is a discrepancy in the ORIGINAL and COPY, the figures given in 

ORIGINAL shall prevail. 

33.2. If the Bidder that submitted the lowest evaluated bid does not accept the correction 

of errors, its Bid shall be disqualified and its bid security may be forfeited. 

34. Conversion to Single Currency 

34.1. For evaluation and comparison purposes, the currency(ies) of the bid shall be 

converted into a single currency as specified in the BDS. 

35. Margin of Preference 

35.1. Unless otherwise specified in the BDS, a margin of preference shall not apply. 

36. Preliminary Examination of Price Bids 

Deleted 

37. Evaluation of Bids 

37.1. The Employer shall use the criteria and methodologies listed in this Clause. No other 

evaluation criteria or methodologies shall be permitted. 

37.2. To evaluate bid price, the Employer shall consider the following: 

(a) The evaluation committee shall evaluate the Stage-I Qualification Criteria such as 

preliminary qualifications, financial eligibility and Technical eligibility. The bidder 

who satisfies these requirements will be made eligible for further evaluation of full 

technical proposals (Stage-II) on the basis of their responsiveness to the Terms of 

Reference, applying the evaluation criteria, sub-criteria, and point system specified 

in BDS. Each responsive Proposal will be given a technical score (St). A Proposal 

shall be rejected at this stage if it does not respond to important aspects of the RFP. 

(b) The bid price, excluding Provisional Sums and the provision, if any, for 

contingencies in the Summary Bill of Quantities for admeasurements 

contracts, or Schedule of Prices for lump sum contracts, but including Day 

work items, where priced competitively; 

(c) price adjustment for correction of arithmetic errors in accordance with ITB 

33.1; 

(d) price adjustment due to discounts offered in accordance with ITB 14.4; 

(e) converting the amount resulting from applying (a) to (c) above, if relevant, 

to a single currency in accordance with ITB 34; 

(f) adjustment for nonconformities in accordance with ITB 31.3; 

(g) The price bid will then be given a financial score as specified in detail in 

Section 3 (Evaluation and Qualification Criteria); 
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(h) application of all the evaluation factors indicated in Section 3 (Evaluation 

and Qualification Criteria); 

(i) Any other additional evaluation factors specified in the BDS and Section 3, 

Evaluation and Qualification Criteria. 

37.3. The estimated effect of the price adjustment provisions of the Conditions of 

Contract, applied over the period of execution of the Contract, shall not be taken into 

account in bid evaluation. 

37.4. If this Bidding Document allows Bidders to quote separate prices for different 

contracts, and to award multiple contracts to a single Bidder, the methodology to 

determine the lowest evaluated price of the contract combinations, including any 

discounts offered in the Letter of Bid, is specified in Section 3 (Evaluation and 

Qualification Criteria). 

37.5. If the Bid for an admeasurements contract, which results in the lowest Evaluated Bid 

Price is seriously unbalanced, front loaded or substantially below updated estimates 

in the opinion of the Employer, the Employer may require the Bidder to produce 

detailed price analyses for any or all items in the Bill of Quantities, to demonstrate 

the internal consistency of those prices with the construction methods and schedule 

proposed. After evaluation of the price analyses, taking into consideration the 

schedule of estimated Contract payments, the Employer may require that the amount 

of the Performance Security be increased at the expense of the Bidder to a level 

sufficient to protect the Employer against financial loss in the event of default of the 

successful Bidder under the Contract. 

38. Comparison of Bids 

38.1. The Employer shall compare all substantially responsive bids to determine the 

lowest evaluated bid in accordance with ITB 37.2. 

39. Employer’s Right to Accept Any Bid, and to Reject Any or All Bids 

39.1. The Employer reserves the right to accept or reject any bid, and to annul the bidding 

process and reject all bids at any time prior to contract award, without thereby 

incurring any liability to Bidders. In case of annulment, all bids submitted and 

specifically, bid securities, shall be promptly returned to the Bidders. 

 

Award of Contract 

40. Award Criteria 

40.1. The Employer shall award the Contract to the Bidder whose bid is declared the Most 

Advantageous Bid by the Tender Evaluation Committee which is substantially 

responsive to the Bidding Document, provided further that the Bidder is determined 

to be qualified to perform the Contract satisfactorily. 

41. Notification of Award 

41.1. Prior to the expiration of the period of bid validity, the Employer shall notify the 

successful Bidder, in writing, that its bid has been accepted. The Notification letter 

(hereinafter and in the conditions of contract and contract forms called “The Letter 

of Acceptance”), shall specify the sum that the Employer will pay the contractor in 
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consideration of the execution and completion of the works. (Hereinafter and in the 

conditions of contract and contract forms called “The Contract Price”). 

41.2. Until a formal contract is prepared and executed, the notification of award shall 

constitute a binding Contract. 

41.3. At the same time, the Employer shall put up in the public domain information about 

the results of the bidding process which will include the following information (i) 

name of the winning Bidder, and the Price it offered, as well as the duration and 

summary scope of the contract awarded. After publication of the award, unsuccessful 

bidders may request in writing to the Employer a debriefing seeking explanations on 

the grounds on which their bids were not selected. The Employer shall respond in 

writing to any unsuccessful Bidder who, after publication of contract award, requests 

a debriefing after the evaluation process is complete. 

42. Signing of Contract 

42.1. Promptly after notification, the Employer shall send the successful Bidder the 

Contract Agreement. 

42.2. Within fifteen (15) days of receipt of the Contract Agreement, the successful Bidder 

shall sign, date, and return it to the Employer. 

43. Performance Security 

43.1. Within fifteen (15) days of the receipt of notification of award from the Employer, 

the successful Bidder shall furnish the Performance Security in accordance with the 

Conditions of Contract, subject to ITB 37.5, using for that purpose the Performance 

Security Form included in Section 9 (Contract Forms), or another form acceptable 

to the Employer. If the institution issuing the Performance Security is located outside 

the country of the Employer, it shall have a correspondent financial institution 

located in the country of the Employer to make it enforceable. 

43.2. Failure of the successful Bidder to submit the above-mentioned Performance 

Security or to sign the Contract Agreement shall constitute sufficient grounds for the 

annulment of the award and forfeiture of the Bid Security. In that event the Employer 

may award the Contract to the next lowest evaluated Bidder whose offer is 

substantially responsive and is determined by the Employer to be qualified to 

perform the Contract satisfactorily. 

43.3. The above provision shall apply for furnishing of a domestic preference security if 

so required. 
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Section 2 - BID DATA SHEET 

The Section Consists of Provisions that are Specific to each procurement and Supplement the 

information and requirements included in Section 1 – Instructions to Bidders. 
 

A. Introduction 
 

 

ITB 1.1 

 

The number and identification of this RFB is: SIK-GAN-0028 

The number of the Invitation for Bids is-1 

The Employer is: Gangtok Smart City Development Limited 

 

ITB 1.1 

 

The name of the bidding process is: Request for Proposal (RFP) 

 

The name of the RFB is: REPAIR AND RESTORATION OF STREET 

LIGHTS IN AND AROUND GANGTOK 

 

The reference number of the Request for Bids (RFB) is: 029/GSCDL/2022 

 

ITB 2.1 

 

The Borrower is: GSCDL 

 

ITB 2.1 

 

The name of the Project: REPAIR AND RESTORATION OF STREET 

LIGHTS IN AND AROUND GANGTOK  

 

ITB 3.1 (a) 
 

The individuals or firms in a JV is allowed and shall be jointly and severally 

liable. 

 

Maximum number of members in the JV shall be - 3 

 

ITB 3.1(b) 

 

In support of the requirements for the Joint Venture, a Joint Venture 

Agreement and a Power of Attorney in favor of JV nominated representative 

should be submitted. 

B. Bidding Documents 
 

 

ITB 7.1 

 

For Clarification of Bid purposes only, the Employer’s address is: 

Attention: Mr. Bhupendra Kothari, Chief Executive Officer 

Postal Address: Gangtok Smart City Development Limited, Level V, Kissan Bazar, 

Gangtok, East Sikkim. 
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 City: Gangtok, Pin Code:737101, India 

Phone Number: 8116679989 

Electronic mail address: ctosmartcity.gangtok@gmail.com 

Requests for clarification should be received by the Employer no later than seven 

days. 

 

ITB 7.4 

 

Interested bidder may obtain information from 21/03/2022 till 22/03/2022 

during Office hours. 

 

Place: Gangtok Smart City Development Limited, Level V, Kissan Bazar, 

Gangtok, East Sikkim 

 

A site visit conducted by the Employer “shall not be” organized 
 

C. Preparation of Bids 
 

 

ITB 11.2(g) 

ITB 11.3(d) 

 

Bidder shall submit with its Technical Bid the following additional 

documents: NIL 

 

Bidder shall submit with its Price Bid the following additional documents: 

Rate Analysis of major items 

 

ITB 14 

 

The Bidder shall be deemed to have been satisfied himself as to the 

correctness and sufficiency of the Bid and the rates and prices stated in the 

Bill of Quantities, all of which shall, except in so far as it is otherwise 

provided in the contract, cover all his obligations under the contract and all 

matters and things necessary for the proper execution and completion of the 

works and the remedying of any defects there in. 

 

ITB 15.1 

 

The prices shall be quoted by the bidder and shall be paid in: Indian Rupees 

 

ITB 18.1 

 

The Bid shall be valid until: days. 

 

ITB 19.1 

 

Bid Security shall be required, a Bid-Securing Declaration shall not be 

required. 

 

A Bid Security “shall be” required. 

 
A Bid-Securing Declaration “shall not be” required. 

mailto:ctosmartcity.gangtok@gmail.com


PART I: BIDDING PROCEDURES 

23 

 

 

 

 1. The Bid Security shall be required, the amount and currency of 

the Bid Security shall be: Rs 6,32,500/- (Rupees Six Lakhs 

Thirty Two Thousand Five Hundred Only) 

 

 

ITB 19.3 

 

The Bid Security shall be in the form of an unconditional and irrevocable 

Bank Guarantee/ TDR/ FDR only from a Nationalized /Scheduled bank in 

India. The validity of Bid Security shall be 28 days beyond the original 

validity period of 120 days or beyond any of extension if requested. 

 

ITB 20.1 

 

In addition to the original of the bid, the number of copies is: 2 (Two) 

 

ITB 20.2 
The written confirmation of authorization to sign on behalf of the Bidder 

shall consist of: 

(a) Power of Attorney from the authorized person to issue from the 

company. 

(b) In the case of Bids submitted by an existing or intended JV, an Joint 

Venture Agreement signed by all parties: 

(i) stating that all parties shall be jointly and severally liable, 

and 

(ii) nominating a Representative who shall have the authority 

to conduct all business for and on behalf of any and all the 

parties of the JV during the bidding process and, in the 

event the JV is awarded the Contract, during contract 

execution. 

(c) All the pages of the bid shall be signed or initialed by a person signing 

the bid along with the seal. 

 

D. Submission and Opening of Bids 
 

 

ITB 21.1 

ITB 21.1(a) 

 
 

ITB 21.1(b) 

Bidder shall not have the option of submitting their bids electronically. 

The Bidder should use the bid documents in original and duplicate issued to 

him by the Employer for filling and submitting the price bid along with 

supporting information, if any. He should prepare and submit the technical 

bid in the formats given in the bid document and submit it separately. 

Electronic Bid Submission shall be not applicable. 
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ITB 22.1 
 

For Bid submission purposes only, the Employer’s address is: Gangtok Smart 

City Development Limited, Level V, Kissan Bazar 

 

Attention: Chief Executive Officer, GSCDL, Gangtok. 

The deadline for Bid submission is: 

Date: 25/03/2022 

 
Time: 1500 Hrs 

Bidders shall not have the option of submitting their Bids electronically. 

 

ITB 25.1 
 

The Bid opening shall take place at: 

City: Gangtok, Sikkim, India 

Date: 28/03/2022 

Time: 1100 Hrs 

 

E. Evaluation and Comparison of Bids 
 

 

ITB 32-A- 4 
 

(a) Contractor’s proposed subcontracting: Maximum percentage of 

subcontracting permitted is: 25% of the total contract amount. 

 

(b) Bidders planning to subcontract more than 10% of total volume of work 

shall specify, in the Letter of Bid, the activity(ies) or parts of the works to 

be subcontracted along with complete details of the sub-contractors and 

their qualification and experience. The qualification and experience of the 

sub-contractors must meet the minimum criteria for the relevant work to be 

sub-contracted failing which such subcontractors will not be permitted to 

participate. 

 

ITB 34.1 
The currency that shall be used for bid evaluation and comparison purposes 

to convert all bid prices expressed in various currencies into a single 

currency is: INR 

 

ITB 35 
A margin of preference shall not apply 

 

ITB 37.2 (h) 
Additional requirements apply. 

These are detailed in the evaluation criteria in Section III, Evaluation and 

Qualification Criteria. 
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ITB 43.1 
Performance Security shall be from a nationalized bank/scheduled bank 

situated in India and shall be valid for a period of 28 days beyond the DLP 

(defects liability period) 

 

ITB 43.3 
Not applicable 
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Section 3 - EVALUATION AND QUALIFICATION CRITERIA 

1. Evaluation 

In addition to the criteria listed in ITB 37.2 (a) – (i) the following criteria shall apply: 

 

Additional Evaluation Criteria 

 

The technically shortlisted bidders are required to give a presentation on the proposed design 

which will include 3-D elevation, prospective etc. of the building to be constructed under the 

contract to the evaluation committee. The presentation on the conceptual elevation and 

renovation will also form part of the evaluation criteria 

 

1.1 Adequacy of Technical Proposal 

 

Evaluation of the Bidder's Technical Proposal will include an assessment of the Bidder's 

technical capacity to mobilize key equipment and personnel for the contract consistent with its 

proposal regarding work methods, scheduling, and material sourcing in sufficient detail and 

fully in accordance with the requirements stipulated in Section 6 (Works Requirements). 

 

The evaluated cost of quantifiable nonconformities, errors and/or omissions is determined as 

follows: 

 

"Pursuant to Sub-Clause 31.3 of Section 1: Instructions to Bidders, the cost of all quantifiable 

non-conformities, errors, or omissions in a Bidder's Bid Proposal shall be evaluated. The 

Employer shall make its assessment of the cost of any quantifiable nonmaterial non 

conformities, errors, or omissions for the purpose of ensuring fair comparison of Bids, and for 

this purpose, the Employer shall base its assessment on the highest price quoted for the same 

item(s) or component(s) by the other responsive Bidders." 
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2. Qualification Criteria 

Eligibility and Qualification Criteria Compliance Requirements Documentation 

 

 

 
No. 

 

 

 
Subject 

 

 

 
Requirement 

 

 
Single Entity 

 

 
Submission 

Requirements 

1. Eligibility 

1.1 Nationality Nationality in accordance with ITB 4.2 Must meet requirement Forms ELI – 1 and 

ELI- 2, with 

attachments 

1.2 Conflict of 

Interest 

No conflicts of interest in accordance with ITB 

4.3 

Must meet requirement Letter of Technical 

Bid 

1.3 GSCDL 

Eligibility 

Not having been declared ineligible by the 

GSCDL & any other agencies in India in 

accordance with ITB 4.4. 

Must meet requirement Letter of Technical 

Bid 

1.3 Technical 

Eligibility 

N/A N/A N/A 
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Eligibility and Qualification Criteria Compliance Requirements Documentation 

 

 

 
No. 

 

 

 
Subject 

 

 

 
Requirement 

 

 
Single Entity 

 

 
Submission 

Requirements 

  Techno-Commercial Bid Opening date, indicating 

whether the project is successfully completed 

along with Commissioning certificate and Work 

order / Contract / Agreement/ from the 

Client/Owner shall be submitted in support. 

b). A bidder should be a holder of valid enlistment 

certificate issued by Power Department, 

Government of Sikkim. 

  

 

 
Class – II B 

Enlistment 

Certificate issued 

by  Power 

Department, 

Government of 

Sikkim. 

 

1.4 Government- 

owned 

enterprise or 

institution 

N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

2. Historical Contract Non-Performance 

2.1 History of 

Non- 

Performing 

Contracts 

N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 
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Eligibility and Qualification Criteria Compliance Requirements Documentation 

 

 

 
No. 

 

 

 
Subject 

 

 

 
Requirement 

 

 
Single Entity 

 

 
Submission 

Requirements 

2.2 Pending 

Litigation 

N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

3. Financial Situation and Performance 

3.1 Financial 

Capabilities 

 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

 
 

 

 

 This requirement also applies to contracts executed by the Bidder as JV member. 
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Eligibility and Qualification Criteria Compliance Requirements Documentation 

 

 

 
No. 

 

 

 
Subject 

 

 

 
Requirement 

 

 
Single Entity 

 

 
Submission 

Requirements 

4. Experience 

4.1 General 

Experience 

N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 
N/A 

4.2 Financial 

turnover on 

constructio

n works 

N/A 

 

N/A N/A N/A N/A 
N/A 
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Eligibility and Qualification Criteria Compliance Requirements Documentation 

 

 

 
No. 

 

 

 
Subject 

 

 

 
Requirement 

 

 
Single Entity 

 

 
Submission 

Requirements 

4.2A Specific 

Experience 

 

N/A 

 

N/A N/A 

4.5 

(a) 

Bid Capacity: 

Bidders who meet the minimum qualification criteria will be qualified only if their available bid capacity for work is equal to or more than the total 

bid value of the work.  The available bid capacity will be calculated as under: 

Assessed Available bid capacity = (A*N*1.5-B) 
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Eligibility and Qualification Criteria Compliance Requirements Documentation 

 

 

 
No. 

 

 

 
Subject 

 

 

 
Requirement 

 

 
Single Entity 

 

 
Submission 

Requirements 

 Where, 

A = Maximum value of Solar Energy works executed in any one year during the last 5(five) years (updated to the price level of the financial year 

2017-18 at the rate of 5% per year), considering the completed as well as works in progress). 

N = Number of years prescribed for construction of the works for which bids are invited (period upto 6 months to be taken as half-year and more than 

6 months as one year). 

B = Value, at the current price level, of existing commitments on on-going works to be completed during the period of construction of the works for 

which bids are invited. 

Note: the statements in Section IV showing the value of existing commitments of on-going works as well as the stipulated period of completion 

remaining for each of the works listed should be countersigned by the Engineer in charge, not below the rank of an Executive Engineer or equivalent. 

4.5 

(b) 

Even though the bidders may meet the above qualifying criteria, they are subject to be disqualified if they have: - 
 

a. made misleading or false representations in the forms, statements, affidavits, and attachments submitted in proof of the qualification 

requirement; 

b. record of poor performance such as abandoning the works, not properly completion or financial failures etc. 

c. consistent history of litigation or arbitration awards against the bidder or any member or the joint venture. 

d. Participated in the previous bidding (if this is a re-bidding) for the same work and had quoted unreasonably high bid price and could not furnish 

any rational justification for the same to the employer. 
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General notes for the Bidder: 

 

1. Substantial completion shall be based on 80% or more of the contract completed. 
2. For contracts under which the Bidder participated as a joint venture member or sub-contractor, only the Bidder’s role and responsibilities shall be 

considered as qualifying experience. 
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.Personnel 

 

The Bidder must demonstrate that it has the personnel for the key positions that meet the 

following requirements: 
 

 

No. 

 

Position 

 

Total Work 

Experience [years] 

 

Experience 
 

In Similar Works 

[years] 

 

1 

 

Engineer-1 no. 

 

B.E./ Diploma in Electrical 

Engineering with 3 years‘ 

experience in relevant field 

 

B.E./Diploma in 

Engineering with 2 years‘ 

experience in relevant field 

 

 
 

2 

 

Site supervisors-1no. 

 

Diploma in Electrical Engineering 

with 3 years’ experience in 

relevant field; or B.E. Engineering 

with 2 years‘ experience in 

relevant field 

 

Diploma in Electrical 

Engineer with 2 years 

‘experience in relevant 

field; or B.E. in Electrical 

Engineering with 1 years‘ 

experience in relevant field 

 
Note: The bidder shall furnish separate list of key personnel 

 

The Bidder shall provide details of the proposed personnel and their experience records in the 

relevant Information Forms PER- 1 and PER- 2 included in Section 4 (Bidding Forms). 

 

 

3. Bid Evaluation Process 

The method of evaluation of the Most Advantageous Bid will be based on the following 

steps as given below. 
 

The Employer shall constitute a Tender Evaluation Committee to evaluate the responses of 

the bidders. The Tender Evaluation Committee shall evaluate the responses to the RFP and 

all supporting documents/documentary evidence. Inability to submit requisite supporting 

documents/documentary evidence by bidders may lead to rejection of their bids. 
 

The decision of the Tender Evaluation Committee in the evaluation of bids shall be final. 

No correspondence will be entertained outside the process of evaluation with the 

Committee. The Tender Evaluation Committee may ask for meetings or presentation with 

the Bidders to seek clarifications or conformations on their bids. 
 

The tender Evaluation Committee reserves the right to reject any or all bids. Each of the 

responses shall be evaluated as per the criteria and requirements specified in this RFP. The 

steps for evaluation are as follows- 
 

3.1 Stage 1:Pre-Qualification (document sufficiency) 
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The Technical Evaluation Committee shall validate the following documents as per 

RFP. Each of the Pre-Qualification condition mentioned in this RFP is 

MANDATORY. In case, the Bidder does not meet any one of the conditions, the 

bidder shall be disqualified. 
 

3.1.1. Demand Draft towards the cost of bid from a Nationalized/ Scheduled / 

commercial Bank drawn in favor of  Gangtok Smart City Development 

Limited 

3.1.2. Unconditional BG/ FDR/ TDR/ Demand Draft in respect of Bid Security 

from any nationalized/Scheduled /commercial Bank drawn in favor of 

Gangtok Smart City Development Limited 

3.1.3. Permanent Account No (PAN) of the Bidder/Firm/Company/ Society. 

3.1.4. Self-attested copy of Sales/ Service Tax/ GST registration and Sales/ Service 

Tax/ GST returns filed in last three years. 

3.1.5. Self-attested copy of certificate that the up-to date Income Tax Returns filed. 

3.1.6. Self-attested documentary evidence of (a) the Proof of Residence of the 

Bidder (in case of Proprietor/Partnership Firm (b) Proof of Registered Office 

of the Company and Residential Address of the Director/Authorized 

Representative (in case of Bidder being a Company) (c) Proof of Registered 

office of the Society and Residence of President/Secretary (in case Bidder 

being a Society) as well as, Proof of the Address of the Office of the Bidder 

Firm/Company/Society. 

3.1.7. Self-attested copy of bank statement indicating name of the Bank and 

Account No. of the Bidder Firm/Company/Society. 

3.1.8. The bidders should submit copy of valid Certificate of Registration attested 

by Company Secretary/ Authorized Signatory 

3.1.9. Bidding forms ELI- 1, 2 and LIT-1 establishing the eligibility of the bidder 

to bid the contract along with relevant certificates. 

3.1.10. Bidding forms EXP 4.1, 4.2A establishing the experience of similar works 

done by the bidder along with completion certificate from the client agency 

certifying the successful completion of the similar work done by the bidder. 

3.1.11. Bidding forms FIN- 3.1, 3.2 establishing the financial capacity of the bidder. 

The turnover/network/financial status of the bidder shall be ascertained from 

the following documents which the bidder is required to submit along with 

the tender document for the preceding five financial years FY 2016-17, 

2017-18, 2018-19, 2019-20 and 2020-21 duly certified by a Charted 

Accountant 

 Audited Financial Statement of the Firm/Company/ Society 

 Audited Balance sheet of the Firm / Company /Society 

 Audited copies of profit and loss statements 

 Audited copies of Cash flow statements 
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3.1.12. The scanned copy of latest license from Labour Commissioner to employ 

contract labour under Contract Labour Act may be submitted. 

3.1.13. The bidder has to submit a Letter of Bid as per format given. 

3.1.14. Technical bids along with the compliance sheet of technical specifications 

and with necessary documents should be filled in all respects and each paper 

should be signed by the authorized representative and submitted. 

3.1.15.  The bidder has to submit financial bid in separate sealed marked as 

“Financial Bide” on the envelope and should contain Letter of Price Bid, 

Price Schedules. 

3.2 Stage II Technical Evaluation 

 

The Technical Evaluation Committee will review the technical bids of the 

bidders who have cleared the document sufficiency stage, to determine whether 

the technical bids are substantially responsive. Bids that are not substantially 

responsive are liable to be disqualified at Authority’s discretion. 
 

3.3 Stage III Financial Evaluation 

 

All bidders who have been technically qualified will be notified to participate in 

Financial Bid opening process. The Financial bids of all the bidders shall then be 

opened on the notified date and time and reviewed to determine whether the 

commercial bids are substantially responsive. Bids that are not substantially 

responsive are liable to be disqualified at Authority’s discretion. 
 

Financial bids that are not as per the format provided shall be liable for rejection. 
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The Bidder must accomplish the Letter of Bid in its letterhead clearly showing the Bidder’s complete 

name and address. 

Section 4 - BIDDING FORMS 

 

LETTER OF TECHNICAL BID 
 

 

Date: ................................... 

 
Bid No.: .................................... 

 
Invitation for Bid No.: ................................... 

 

To: The CEO, GSCDL, Level 5, Kissan Bazaar, Gangtok. 

We, the undersigned, declare that: 

(a) We have examined and have no reservations to the Bidding Documents, including 

Addenda No ; 

 

(b) We offer to execute in conformity with the Bidding Documents the following 

Works: REPAIR AND RESTORATION OF STREET LIGHTS IN AND 

AROUND GANGTOK 

 

(c) Our bid shall be valid for a period as specified in the BDS ITB 18.1 (or as amended 

if applicable) (fill the number of days as per ITB 18.1) from the date fixed 

for the bid submission deadline in accordance with the Bidding Documents, and it 

shall remain binding upon us and may be accepted at any time before the expiration 

of that period; 

 

(d) If our Bid is accepted, we commit to obtain a Performance Security in the amount 

of 5 percent of the contract Price for the due performance of Contract. 

 

(e) Our firm, including any subcontractors or suppliers for any part of the Contract, 

have Indian nationalities; 

 

(f) We, hereby certify that we including any subcontractors or suppliers for any part 

of the contract meet the eligibility criteria and do not have any conflict of interest 

in accordance with ITB 4 
2
; 

 

 

 

 

2
Include if price adjustment provisions apply in the Contract in accordance with PCC Sub-Clause 44.1. 
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(g) We are not participating, as a Bidder or as a subcontractor, in more than one bid 

in this bidding process in accordance with ITB 7, 

 

(h) Our firm, its affiliates or subsidiaries, including any Subcontractors or Suppliers 

for any part of the contract, has not been declared ineligible by the Employer & 

other agencies, under the Employer’s country laws; 

 

(i) We hereby certify that we have taken steps to ensure that no person acting for us or on our 

behalf engages in any type of Fraud and Corruption; 

 

(j) We understand that this Bid, together with your written acceptance thereof 

included in your notification of award, shall constitute a binding contract between 

us, until a formal Contract is prepared & executed. 

 

(k) We understand that you are not bound to accept the lowest evaluated bid or any 

other bid that you may receive. 

 

(l) We agree to permit GSCDL or its representative to inspect our accounts and 

records and other documents relating to the bid submission and to have them 

audited by auditors appointed by the GSCDL. 

 

 

Name ................................................................................................................................ 

 

In the capacity of .............................................................................................................. 

 
Signed 

........................................................................................................................................... 

........................................................................................................................................... 

 
Duly authorized to sign the Bid for and on behalf of ...................................................... 

 
Date 

........................................................................................................................................... 

........................................................................................................................................... 
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APPENDIX TO BID- TECHNICAL PART 
 

 

 

 
 

Bank Guarantee 

(Technical Bid Forms) 

 

BID SECURITY 

 

Bank’s Name, and Address of Issuing Branch or Office 
 

Beneficiary: 
 

Date: ...................................................................................................................................... 
 

Bid Security No.: ................................................................................................................. 
 

We have been informed that . . . . .name of the Bidder ........... (hereinafter called “the 

Bidder”) has submitted to you its bid dated ................. (Hereinafter called “the Bid”) for 

the execution of . . . . . . . . name of Contract. . . . . . . under Invitation for Bids No. . . . . . . 

. . . (“the IFB”). 
 

Furthermore, we understand that, according to your conditions, bids must be supported 

by a bid guarantee. 
 

At the request of the Bidder, we . . . . .name of Bank ......... hereby irrevocably undertake 

to pay you any sum or sums not exceeding in total an amount of.................... amount in 

figures . . . . . . . . . (. . . . . . .amount in words ................ ) upon receipt by us of your 

first demand in writing accompanied by a written statement stating that the Bidder is in 
breach of its obligation(s) under the bid conditions, because the Bidder: 

 

(a) has withdrawn its Bid during the period of bid validity specified by the Bidder in the 

Form of Bid; or 
 

(b) does not accept the correction of errors in accordance with the Instructions to Bidders 

(hereinafter “the ITB”); or 
 

(c) having been notified of the acceptance of its Bid by the Employer during the period of 

bid validity, (i) fails or refuses to execute the Contract Agreement, or (ii) fails or refuses 

to furnish the performance security, in accordance with the ITB. 
 

This guarantee will expire: (a) if the Bidder is the successful Bidder, upon our receipt of 

copies of the Contract Agreement signed by the Bidder and the Performance Security 

issued to you upon the instruction of the Bidder; and (b) if the Bidder is not the 

successful Bidder, upon the earlier of (i) our receipt of a copy your notification to the 

Bidder of the name of the successful Bidder; or (ii) twenty-eight days after the expiration 

of the Bidder’s bid. 
 

Consequently, any demand for payment under this guarantee must be received by us at 

the office on or before that date. 
 

. . . . . . . . . . . . Bank’s seal and authorized signature(s) . . . . . . . . . . 
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TECHNICAL PROPOSAL 

Form PER – 1: Proposed Personnel 

 

Bidders should provide the names of suitably qualified personnel to meet the specified 

requirements for each of the positions listed in Section 3 (Evaluation and Qualification 

Criteria). The data on their experience should be supplied using the Form below for each 

candidate. 
 

 

1 
 

Title of position 

  

Name 

 

2 
 

Title of position* 

  

Name 

 

3 
 

Title of position* 

  

Name 

 

4 
 

Title of position* 

  

Name 

 

5 
 

Title of position* 

  

Name 

 

 

 

 
*As listed in section 3(Evaluation and Qualification criteria) 
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Form PER – 2: Resume of Proposed Personnel 

 

The Bidder shall provide all the information requested below. Fields with asterisk (*) 

shall be used for evaluation. 
 

 

Position* 

 

Personn

el 

informat

io n 

 

Name 
 

Date of birth 

 

Professional qualifications 

 

Present 

employ

me nt 

 

Name of employer 

 

Address of employer 

 

Telephone 
 

Contact (manager / personnel 

officer) 

 

Fax 
 

E-mail 

 

Job title 
 

Years with present employer 
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Summarize professional experience in reverse chronological order. Indicate particular 

technical and managerial experience relevant to the project. 
 

 

Fro 

m* 

 

To* 

 

Company, Project, Position and Relevant Technical 

and Management Experience* 
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BIDDER’S QUALIFICATION 

 

To establish its qualifications to perform the contract in accordance with Section 3 

(Evaluation and Qualification Criteria) the Bidder shall provide the information 

requested in the corresponding Information Sheets included hereunder 

Form ELI – 1: Bidder’s Information Sheet 

 

Bidder’s Information 

 

Bidder’s legal 

name 

 

 

In case of JV, 

legal name of 

each partner 

 

 

Bidder’s 

country of 

constitution 

 

 
Bidder’s year 

of constitution 

 

 

Bidder’s legal 

address in 

country of 

constitution 

 

 

Bidder’s 

authorized 

representative 

(name, 

address, 

telephone 

numbers, fax 

numbers,  e- 

mail address) 
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Attached are copies of the following original documents. 

 
1. In case of single entity, articles of incorporation or constitution of the legal 

entity named above, in accordance with ITB 4.1 and 4.2. 

 

2. Authorization to represent the firm or JV named in above, in accordance with 

ITB 20.2. 

 

3. In case of JV, JV agreement, in accordance with ITB 4.1. 

 

4. In case of a government-owned entity, any additional documents not covered 

under 1 above required to comply with ITB 4.5. 

 

5. Organization chart, and list of Board of Directors 
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Form ELI - 2: JV Information Sheet 

 

Each member of a JV must fill in this form 
 

 

JV / Specialist Subcontractor Information 

 

Bidder’s 

legal name 

 

 

JV Partner’s 

legal name 

 

 
JV Partner’s 

country of 

constitution 

 

 
JV Partner’s 

year of 

constitution 

 

 

JV Partner’s 

legal address 

in country of 

constitution 

 

 

JV Partner’s 

authorized 

representativ 

e 

information 

(name, 

address, 

telephone 

numbers, fax 

numbers, e- 

mail address) 
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Attached are copies of the following original documents. 

 
1. Articles of incorporation or constitution of the legal entity named above, in 

accordance with ITB 4.1 and 4.2. 

 

2. Authorization to represent the firm named above, in accordance with ITB 20.2. 

 

3. In the case of government-owned entity, documents establishing legal and 

financial autonomy and compliance with commercial law, in accordance with ITB 

4.5. 

 

4. Organization Chart and list of Board of Director 
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DETAILS OF PARTICIPATION IN THE JOINT VENTURE 
 

PARTICIPATION 

DETAILS 

 

FIRM ‘A’ 
 

(Lead Member) 

 

FIRM ‘B’ 

 

FIRM ‘C’ 

 

Financial 
   

 

Name of the Banker(s) 
   

 

Planning 
   

 

Construction Equipment 
   

 

Key Personnel 
   

 

Execution of Works and 
Operational Services (Give 

details on proposed 

contribution of each) 
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The Joint Venture should indicate the details of participation as above. 
 

Form LIT- 1: Historical Contract Non-Performance, and Pending Litigation 

 

(to be completed for the Bidder and each member of Joint Venture) 
 

 

Non-Performed Contracts in accordance with Section 3, Evaluation and Qualification Criteria 
 

 

 Contract non-performance did not occur since 1
st
 January [insert year]specified in Section III, 

Evaluation and Qualification Criteria, sub clause 2.1 

 Contract(s) not performed since 1st January [insert year] specified in Section III, Evaluation 
and Qualification Criteria, sub clause 2.1 

 

 

Year 

 

Non- performed 

portion of 

contract 

 

Contract Identification 

 

Total Contract Amount 

(INR) 

 

 

[insert year] 

 

[insert amount and 

percentage] 

 

Contract Identification: [indicate 

complete contract name/ number, and 

any other identification] 
 

Name of Employer: [insert full name] 
 

Address of Employer: [insert 

street/city/country] 
 

Reason(s) for nonperformance: 
[indicate main reason(s)] 

 

[insert amount] 
 

 

Pending Litigation, in accordance with Section III, Evaluation and Qualification Criteria 
 

 

 No pending litigation in accordance with Section III, Evaluation and Qualification Criteria, 

Sub-clause 2.2. 

 Pending litigation in accordance with Section III, Evaluation and Qualification Criteria, Sub- 

clause 2.2 indicated below. 

 

  

Year of Dispute 

 

Amount in dispute 

(INR) 

 

Contract 

Identification 

 

Total Contract 

Amount (INR) 

    

Contract Identification: 

 
 

 
Name of Employer: 

 
 

 
Address of Employer: 

 
 

 
Matter in dispute: 
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Year of Dispute 

 

Amount in dispute 

(INR) 

 

Contract 

Identification 

 

Total Contract 

Amount (INR) 

  
Party who initiated the 

dispute: [indicate 

“Employer” or 

“Contractor”] 

 

Status of dispute: 
  [Indicate 

if it is being treated by 

the Adjudicator, under 

Arbitration or being 

dealt with by the 

Judiciary] 

 

   

Contract Identification: 

Name of Employer: 

Address of Employer: 

Matter in dispute: 

[indicate “Employer” 

or “Contractor”] 

 

Party who initiated the 

dispute: 

 

Status of dispute: 

 
[Indicate if it is being 

treated by the 

Adjudicator, under 

Arbitration or being 

dealt with by the 
Judiciary] 
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Form FIN – 3.1: Financial Situation and Performance 

 
(to be completed for the Bidder and each member of Joint Venture) 

 
1. Financial data 

 

 

Type of Financial information in (INR) 

 

Historic information for previous years, 
 

 
 

 

(amount in INR) 

  

Year 1 
 

Year 2 
 

Year 3 
 

Year4 
 

Year 5 

 

Statement of Financial Position (Information from Balance Sheet) 

 

Total Assets (TA) 
     

 

Total Turnover 
     

 

Total Liabilities (TL) 
     

 

Total Equity/Net Worth (NW) 
     

 

Current Assets (CA) 
     

 

Current Assets + Loans & Advances 
     

 

Current Liabilities (CL) 
     

 

Current Liabilities& provision 
     

 

Working Capital (WC) 
     

 

Information from Income Statement 
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Total Revenue (TR) 
     

 

Profits Before Taxes (PBT) 
     

 

Profits after Tax 
     

 

Cash Flow Information 

 

Cash Flow from Operating Activities 
     

 

Net cash accruals= Profit after Tax + 

depreciation 

     

 

This information should be extracted from the Annual Financial Statements/ Balance sheets, which 

should be enclosed. Year 1 will be the latest year for which audited financial statements are available. 

Year 2 shall be the year immediately preceding year 1 and year 3 shall be the year immediately 

preceding Year 2. 

 

2. Sources of Finance 
 

Specify sources of finance to meet the cash flow requirements on works currently in progress and 

for future contract commitments. 
 

 

No. 
 

Source of finance 
 

Amount (INR) 

 
 

1 

  

 
 

2 

  

 
 

3 

  

 

3. Financial documents 
 

The Bidder and its parties shall provide copies of financial statements for last 5 years pursuant Section III, 

Evaluation and Qualifications Criteria, Sub-clause 3.2. The financial statements shall: 
 

(a) reflect the financial situation of the Bidder or in case of JV member, and not an affiliated entity 

(such as parent company or group member).p 
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(b) be independently audited or certified by a Chartered Accountant. 
 

(c) be complete, including all notes to the financial statements. 
 

(d) correspond to accounting periods already completed and audited. 
 

 Attached are copies of financial statements
3
 for the years required above; and 

complying with the requirements 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
3
 If the most recent set of financial statements is for a period earlier than 12 months from the date of bid, 

the reason for this should be justified. 
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Form FIN - 3.2: Average Annual Construction Turnover 

 

Annual turnover data (construction only) 

 

Year 

 

Amount in INR 

 

[indicate 

year] 

 

[insert amount] 

  

  

  

  

  

 

Average 

Annual 

Construction 

Turnover * 

 

 

* See Section III, Evaluation and Qualification Criteria, Sub-clause 3.2. Annual construction turnover 

calculated as total certified payments received for work in progress or completed, for 5 years. This 

should be certified by a Chartered Accountant. 
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JOINT VENTURE 

 

Names of all partners of a joint venture 

 

1. Member in charge 

 

2. Member 

 

3. Member 

 

Total value of annual construction turnover, in terms of work billed to clients, in Rupees 
 

 

Annual Turnover Data (construction only; in INR *) 

 

Member 

 

Form 2 

page no. 

 

Year 1 

 

Year 2 

 

Year 3 

 

Year 4 

 

Year 5 

 

Average 

 

1. 

Member 

in charge 

       

 

2. 

Member 

       

 

3. 

Member 

       

 

TOTALS 
       

 

* To be certified by a chartered accountant 
 

Name and address of Bankers to the Joint Venture 
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Form EXP - 4.1 

GENERAL EXPERIENCE 

 

 

Startin 

g Year 

 

Endin 

g 

Year 

 

Contract Identification 

 

Role of 

Bidde r 

 

Status 

of 

Projec

t
4
 

   

Contract name:    
 

Brief Description of the Works performed by the 

Bidder:    
 

 
 

 

 
 

 

Amount of contract:    

Name of Employer:    

Address: 

  

   

Contract name:    
 

Brief Description of the Works performed by the 

Bidder:    
 

 
 

 

 
 

 

Amount of contract:                                     

Name of Employer:    

Address: 

  

   

(add more rows if required) 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4
 Mention whether the project is Complete or under progress. 

If it is under progress mention % of work complete. 

All above statements should be backed by corresponding experience certificate from respective Employers. 
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SPECIFIC EXPERIENCE IN SIMILAR WORKS 

Form EXP - 4.1 

 

SN Contract 

Details 

 

Elements 

Executed 

 

Unit 

 

Value in 

Rs. 

 
1 

 

Contract name:    
  

Sqm 
 

 
 

 Year of completion:    Sqm 

 
Amount of contract:    

 

 
Name of Employer:    

 

 
Address:   

 

  
If the contract was in JV mention bidder 

responsibilities and achievement. 

 

 
2 

 

Contract name:    
  

Sqm 
 

 
 

 Year of completion:    Sqm 

 
Amount of contract:    

 

 
Name of Employer:    

 

 
Address:   

 

  
If the contract was in JV mention bidder 

responsibilities and achievement. 
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Bidder’s Declaration on Affidavit 

 

Date: ................................... 

 
Bid No.: .................................... 

 
Invitation for Bid No.: ................................... 

 

 
 

To: CEO, GSCDL, Level 5, Kissan Bazaar, Gangtok, Gangtok. 

We, the undersigned, declare that: 

 
 

1. We have seen the Section 6A: Standard Specifications and we have studied and 

understood all the Clauses of this Section. We accordingly offer to execute and 

complete the said Works and remedy any defects therein, fit for purpose in 

conformity with the relevant Clauses of this Section. 

 

2. We further undertake to accept that these form a part of our bid and we agree to sign 

these at the time when the contract agreement is executed. 

 

Dated this day of 20 . 

 

Signed and Sealed by :    
 

In the Capacity of :    
 

Name and Address of Bidder :    
 

 

 

 

 

 

(Affix company seal) 
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LETTER OF FINANCIAL PRICE BID 

Date: ................................... 

 

Bid No.: .................................... 

 
Invitation for Bid No.: ................................... 

 

To: CEO, GSCDL, Level 5, Kissan Bazaar, Gangtok. 

We, the undersigned, declare that: 

(a) We have examined and have no reservations to the Bidding Documents, including 

Addenda issued in accordance with Instructions to Bidders (ITB) 8; 

 

(b) We offer to execute in conformity with the Bidding Documents the following Works: 

 

REPAIR AND RESTORATION OF STREET LIGHTS IN AND AROUND 

GANGTOK 

 

(c) The total price of our Bid, excluding any discounts offered in item (d) below is: 

……………. . 

 

(d) The detailed breakup of the Bid is given in the Price Schedule From of the Bid 

 

(e) The discounts   offered   and   the   methodology   for   their   application   are:   INR 

……………… 

 

(f) Our Bid shall be valid for a period of as specified in the BDS ITB 18.1 (or as amended 

if applicable) (fill the number of days as per ITB 18.1) from the date fixed 

for the bid submission deadline in accordance with the Bidding Documents, and it shall 

remain binding upon us and may be accepted at any time before the expiration of that 

period; 

 

(g) If our Bid is accepted, we commit to obtain a performance security in accordance with 

the Bidding Documents; 

 

(h) We have paid, or will pay the following commissions, gratuities, or fees with respect to 

the bidding process or execution of the Contract: ** 

 

Name of Recipient Address Reason Amount 

 

..................................... 
 

.................................... 
 

............................. 
 

................. 

..................................... .................................... ............................. ................ . 
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(i) We understand that this bid, together with your written acceptance thereof included in 

your notification of award, shall constitute a binding contract between us, until a formal 

contract is prepared and executed; and 

 

(j) We understand that you are not bound to accept the lowest evaluated bid or any other 

bid that you may receive. 

 

(k) We agree to permit GSCDL or its representative to inspect our accounts and records 

and other documents relating to the bid submission and to have them audited by auditors 

appointed by the GSCDL. 

 

(l) If awarded the contract, the person named below shall act as Contractor’s 

Representative. 

 

 

Name ..................................................................................................................................... 

 

In the capacity of ................................................................................................................... 

 

Signed ................................................................................................................................... 

................................................................................................................................................ 

 

Duly authorized to sign the Bid for and on behalf of ........................................................... 

 
Date ........................................................................................................................................ 

................................................................................................................................................ 

 

 

 

 

 

 
**If none has been paid or is to be paid, indicate “none” 
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Section 5- BILL OF QUANTITY 

 

BOQ OF REPAIRS AND RETORATION OF STREET LIGHTS IN AND AROUND 

GANGTOK 

 

Sl.No Particulars Quantity Unit 

Rate( in 

Rs) 

A 
Providing Chemical Earthing for reliability & durability of power network 

system of street lights. 

 

A.1 

Safe earthing model T-19, short time current 20 ka rms for 1 

sec (LV/MV) application, 50 mm dia x 2 mtrs electrode 

(copper bonded) & one bag fill chemical compound). 
800 Nos. 

 

A.2 Copper wire 6/8 SWG for earth looping system  640 kgs.  

A.3 Alkathene pipe 1/2", 3/4", 5/8"&1" (Bardia) 600 kgs.  

A.4 
Erection Charge on A 

 LS 

  

 

A.5 
Transportation Charge on A 

 LS 

  

 

B 
Replacement of damaged underground cables ,Weather proof cables and 

street light poles 

 

B.1 

9 Mtrs. Long 410-SP-30 swaged type steel tubular pole with CI 

base plate & cap, double part ( Nuts & bolts type) working load 

172 Kgs. 
36 Nos. 

 

B.2 

2 Core x 10 sqmm 1.1KV PVC/XLPE heavy duty power cable 

for working voltage upto & including 660/1100 volts 

Aluminium armoured conductor. 
3,200 Mtrs. 

 

B.3 

2 Core x 16 sqmm 1.1KV PVC/XLPE heavy duty power cable 

for working voltage upto & including 660/1100 volts 

Aluminium armoured conductor. 
6,800 Mtrs. 

 

B.4 2.5" dia flexible super PVC green pipe 3.5kg/cm2. 8,500 Mtrs.  

B.5 
Polycarbonate junction box with bus bar arrangement and 6 

Amp MCB.  800 Nos. 
 

B.6 Miniature Circuit breakers (MCBs) Double pole 63   Amps. 44 Nos.  

B.7 

4.0 sqmm. ISI marked Single core PVC insulated industrial 

Grade copper conductor flexible cable, 1100volt. 320 

coil                 

(90 

m) 

 

B.8 Aluminum thimble  ring  16sqmm 7,200 Nos.  

B.9 Copper bullet thimble  4sqmm 3,200 Nos.  

B.10 
Polycarbonate junction box with bus bar arrangement and 6 

Amp MCB  800 Nos. 
 

B.11 PVC Tape 800 Nos.  

B.12 Alkathene pipe 1/2", 3/4", 5/8"&1" (Bardia) 1,200 Kgs.  

B.13 
Red Oxide Metal Primer (Nerolac or Equivalent) conforming to 

IS: 2074 1,600 Ltrs. 
 

B.14 
Aluminum Paint (Nerolac or Equivalent) conforming to IS: 

2339 1,200 Ltrs. 
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B.15 

Concreting of 9 Mtrs. Lattice Structure / Swaged Steel Tubular 

Pole in 1:4:8 cc in 0.9x0.9x1.75 mtrs Pit, Construction of 

parapet 0.61 x 0.61x0.153 mtrs. In 1:3:6 cc i/c 12mm cement 

plaster of parapet in 1:4 Mix. 

36 Jobs. 

 

B.16 

Excavation of 0.45x0.90x1.00mtrs. Cable trench in mix soil & 
re-filling with available excavated earth & providing cement 

concrete on the top of the trench. 
8,500 Mtrs. 

 

B.17 
Erection Charge on B 

 LS 

  

 

B.18 
Transportation Charge on B 

 LS 

  

 

                                         Total Bid Value 

  

 In Rupees 

 

 

 

 

Name............................................................................................................ 
 

Signed.......................................................................................................... 
 

In the capacity of.......................................................................................... 
 

Duly authorized to sign the Bid for and on behalf of.................................... 
 

Date............................................................................................................. 



PART II: EMPLOYER’S REQUIREMENTS 

62 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

EMPLOYER’S REQUIREMENT 

PART II 
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Section 6 - WORKS REQUIREMENTS 
 

1. Introduction to Smart Street Light: 

The transformation from conventional street lighting system to a ‘smart’ street lighting is 

primarily due to the ability to communicate. This gives the ability to individually control 

and monitor a single street light or a city full of street lights. The advantages of such a 

system are: 

 Easy to install and maintain 

 Real-time monitoring of street lights 

 Real –Time monitoring of various electrical parameters like voltage, current, power factor, 

power usage and more.  

 ON/OFF scheduling as per astronomical clock 

 Individual light status monitoring and control: 

 Intuitive programming and scheduling of light functions 

 Analytics and reporting.  

The ability to identify a faulty street light from a central location and to send maintenance 

crew only to repair that particular street light instead of checking all the street lights one by 

one over a period of time as a routine activity which offers huge savings in time and money. 

 

 

Fig a: Typical Smart Street Light System  
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Table I: Comparison between group level and individual level control of lights. 

Parameters  Group level control  Individual light control 

Control accuracy  Low  

Array of lights is controlled 

so the accuracy is low  

High  

Control accuracy is high as the 

individual light is being 

controlled. 

Failure monitoring 

accuracy  

Low  

Failure of individual lights 

cannot be detected. 

High  

Failure of individual light can be 

detected with the controller. 

Installation difficulty  Low  

One installation for an array 

of lights. 

High  

One ISLC installation for every 

light. 

Initial and operating cost Low  

Single controller for an array 

of light reduces the cost. 

High  

ISLC requirement for every light 

makes the initial cost high. 

 

Fig b: Network and components of Smart Street Light System 

1.1 Components    

Each street light has an active unit controller called Individual Street Light Controller 

(ISLC) which controls the lamp and communicates with the DCU. The ISLC also monitors 
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the lamp status and reports any malfunction to the DCU.  

The network can be made robust using mesh networking. In this case, each ISLC acts as a 

mesh node. Each mesh has a master unit called DCU (Distributed Control Unit). The DCU 

acts as a root node for the mesh and provides the connectivity with the backhaul network. If 

a DCU fails or goes out of the backhaul network, its child nodes can join the adjacent mesh 

network. Once the failed DCU is online again the child nodes join it again. The subsystems 

of a smart street light system are described in detail as follows. 
Fig c: Typical CCMS box 

1.1a Central Control and monitoring system (CCMS) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The CCMS or the central control and monitoring system consists of various parts within, 

with their own individual functions, as mentioned in the figure above.  

1.1b Distributed Control Unit (DCU)  

The DCU is built around a microcontroller that serves as the brain of the unit, and it would 

have an onboard general packet radio service (GPRS) or a 3G module that communicates 

with this microcontroller. In case of unavailability of a cellular network, mechanical 

switches can also be used to switch ON or switch OFF the associated street lights. It also 

bays on-chip peripherals required for this application, such as a real-time clock (RTC) and 

serial peripheral interface (SPI). The DCU can also incorporate metering integrated chips 

(ICs) to measure the power being used by the entire street. Power pilferage can also be 

detected by adding a metering IC on each street light and then comparing the supplied 

power with the total power consumed by all the street lights together. 
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Fig d: DCU board module  
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1.1c Individual Street Light Controller (ISLC)  

The ISLC can be retrofitted into an existing street light or added as part of a new street light, 

providing the ability to control, configure and monitor the street light. The various control 

features provided by the ISLC are ability to Turn ON/OFF and Dim the intensity of the 

street light. The ISLC also measures the Voltage and Current at the street light and transmits 

this information to the CCMS periodically. The ISLC can continue to switch on-off the 

individual street light using the last received scheduling information to keep the system 

working even if the network breaks down. 
 

 

 

 

 

                                                   

Fig e: Individual Street Light Controller module 

MECHANISM 

Each street light is equipped with an ISLC, the active unit that controls the lamp and 

communicates with the DCU. The ISLC also monitors the lamp status and reports any 

malfunctioning to the DCU. A mesh network of ISLCs is created and each ISLC acts as a 

mesh node. Each mesh has a master unit, that is, DCU. The DCU acts as a root node for the 

mesh and provides connectivity with the network. If a particular DCU fails or goes out of 

the network, its child nodes can join the adjacent mesh network. Once the failed DCU is 

corrected and brought online again, the child nodes join it.  
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Table II: Wire Coding of ISLC 

Color Code 

Red Input phase to controller 

Black Neutral (common) 

Blue Output to LED Phase 

Yellow Decrease Intensity 

Green Increase Intensity 

A CCMS box with a DCU is used to connect these controllers over the internet to the server. 

The CCMS box with the DCU module used for this project is shown below in the figure. 

 

 

Fig f: CCMS box with DCU 

The CCMS box is supplied with a 220 V, single phase supply. Since, the street lights 

controlled by the CCMS box are operating in the same phase, we do not use three phases 

and shorting the input of three phases with single phase supply. So basically looping is done 

for the input of the three phases. Since looping has been done, output to the ISLC can be 

given from any output terminal of the three phases. The neutral (common) connection of the 

input supply as well as the neutral of the ISLC is shorted in the meter. 

The CCMS box is connected to DCU module. Once the input supply is given to the CCMS 

box, and the output is connected to the ISLC, our circuit configuration is complete. The 



PART II: EMPLOYER’S REQUIREMENTS 

69 

 

 

output from the CCMS is given manually to the ISLC from the manual switch of the CCMS 

box. 
Table III: Wire Coding for installation of ISLC and LED light. 

ISLC  Connection  LED light  Connection  

Red (phase) To supply phase Red  From ISLC (blue) 

Black (neutral) To supply common  Black  To supply common 

Blue (output) To LED phase Green (ground) NC 

Green (brightness) NC   

Yellow (brightness) NC   

 

Table IV: Technical specifications of CCMS box 

Measurement ●  Three phase energy meter as per IS-13779 

●  Rating 10 – 60A 

●  Class 1.0 

●  Ref. Voltage – 3 X 240V 

●  Ref.-Frequency – 50Hz 

●  Impulse – 1600 Imp/kWh 

●  Display – LCD with backlight 

Display Parameters ● Comm. kWh, last 6 month BP kwh, MD with 

date and time, Instantaneous voltage (R,Y,B) 

● Phases, instantaneous Current (R,Y,B) Phases 

● Starting current – 0.4% of Ib 

● Power Consumption – As per IS 3779 

● Anti-tamper Features- Current reversal, Load 

unbalance, Neutral Miss, magnetic As per 

CBIP-88, 35KV spark Test 

● Communication: - Isolated Optical port /RS-232 

wired. 

Switchgear ● Using latching Relays 80A each phase 

Communication ●  GPRS/GSM modem for ON/OFF Relays and 

data transmission to server 

● Operating Voltage - 10-30 V DC 

● Power Consumption - <5mW in avg., <9W 

during data transmission 

● Communication - Serial port RS-232, RS-485 

two wire communication 

● External connection – Output - 7 x digital out, 

Open Collector, 500 mA 

Max.(O1,O2,O3,O4,O5,O6,O7) 
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● Input - 6 x digital in (I1, I2, I3 .I4, I5and I6) 

Box ● SMC IP65 (Dust and waterproof) 

 

1.1d LED Street Light – 

A 150 watts LED Street light with contemporary design for outdoor use, high efficiency, durable and rugged construction 

is used. Its features and technical specifications are:  

● Aluminum pressure Die cast housing parts for long life. 

● Pure polyester powder coated Dark Gray housing 

● High efficiency, long life LEDs 

● High purity PMMA lenses for superior performance 

● Toughened glass with silicone gaskets for IP66 protection 

● Complete assembly with LED, Driver and accessories pre-wired up to terminal block 

● Driver cover designed to suit top maintenance.              

● Ingress Protection   : IP-66                                      

● Luminaire Output  : 16500Lm                         

● Nominal System Wattage : 150W 

● Rated Voltage   : 240V 

The LED Street light has three connections: phase, neutral and earth. 

  Fig g.LED Street Light
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OBJECTIVE OF THE PROJECT: 

Gangtok Smart City Development Limited is working on overall development and 

improvement of existing conventional street lights under Gangtok Municipal Corporation 

Limits in order to facilitate monitoring, controllability, proper maintenance and less 

consumption of power.  

With the increasing population in Gangtok city, the rate of crime is most likely to increase. 

Since, most of the crime happens during night time along the stretch of NH-10, the 

availability and proper functioning of Street Light is the basic necessity.  

After the replacement of old conventional Street Lights with new Smart Street Lights, the 

power connectivity issue is the major problem that we are facing in most of the areas along 

with the failure of protection system for LED street lights due to the lack of Earthing. The 

reasons for the above are due to the ageing of conductors leading to breakage of power 

supply line, shortness of conductors, Low voltages, carbon formation in multiple joints and 

absence of Earthing.  

Also, the number of street lights in a single circuit is unevenly connected leading to the 

mechanism issue in Individual Street Light Controller (ISLC). 

So, the existing power supply lines needs repair and restoration which is the basic 

requirement for smooth functioning of Smart Street Light in order to make it a success.. 

Manpower deployment plan, including the designation of Key Personnel for the 

management and supervision of all Project Activities. This would include the designation of 

suitably qualified and experienced personnel for areas such as Contract Administration and 

Supervision, Construction Management, Traffic & Safety, Environmental Management, 

Plant & Equipment Maintenance, Procurement, Materials Management, Quality Control & 

Assurance, etc. 

A broad method statement for key items setting out methodology of construction, materials 

and construction equipment mobilization, utilization plans, broad output calculations and 

details of the quality assurance and quality control procedures. 

Advise to GSCDL on the details of the utilities that are necessary to be shifted, including 

suggestions on the alternate routing, and the estimates of the costs associated with such 

shifting. 

All detailed designs must be submitted to the Project Manager for approvals and works are 

to be taken up after the receipt of respective approvals and “Good for 

Execution/Implementation” stamps from the Project Manager. 

This project shall make use of the building that has been rendered useless and convert the 

same into a structure that is the need of the hour of the region which will also help in 

generate revenue for the Government. 

The Contractor will be responsible for all Clearance from Town Planning / Municipal 

Corporation & any other competent authority needs to be obtained for constructing the 

REPAIR AND RESTORATION OF STREET LIGHTS UNDER GANGTOK MUNICIPAL 

CORPORATION LIMITS GANGTOK, SIKKIM including all necessary Environmental 

clearances from concerned authority. 
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The Contractor shall also obtain No objection Certificate from Fire Department shall be 

obtained after taking care of disaster management measures as per NBC-2016 pre/ post 

construction as the case may be. 

All clearances from relevant competent Authorities for start of work, during work, final 

commissioning of work done or any item or any part of work or any other necessary item 

clearances are contractor’s responsibility with no extra costs/payments on this account from 

employer. 
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Situational Assessment: 

As we know, the major concern of the implementation of smart street lights everywhere has 

been to remotely control and monitor the energy consumption continuously in real-time, and 

also allow us to conserve some energy through this process as it enable us to change the 

ON/OFF timings according to the climatic conditions and zonal requirements. 

Surprisingly, we are unable to control a number of smart street lights as presently, the 

system is not functioning as per the requirement and expectation. To identify and overcome 

this problem, a detailed field survey was conducted for all the street lights installed and 

multiple problems were identified that could have possibly affected the smooth functioning 

of the system. 

Table V: The division-wise status of all the Street Lights installed is furnished as below. 

 

Division Road Name/Stretch 
Total 

lights 

Non Glowing 

Lights (Night 

Time) 

Glowing 

Lights (Day 

Time) 

VIP 

High court Road 15 2 0 

Dukhit Pan Dokan To Tibet Road 

Junction 
28 0 0 

Tibet Road junction to TNA junction 7 1 0 

TNA junction to Mintokgang Junction 13 1 0 

Mintokgang junction to CM bungalow 

gate and inside 
18 0 0 

CM Bungalow gate to Raj Bhavan Lower 

Gate (Zero Point) 
46 0 0 

TNA Junction to Zero Point 8 0 0 

Development 

Area 

Zero Point to Dev Area Junction 9 2 0 

Dev. area junction to Hospital Dara 16 4 0 

Palzor stadium Road 17 3 0 

Dev.Area (Jeevan Theeng Marg) 28 6 0 

DPH 

Hospital Dara to Lal Bazar Fly Over 15 0 1 

Lal Bazar Fly over to Tenzing and 

Tenzing 
14 0 0 

Arithang Road 48 18 0 

DPH Road 30 6 0 
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Division Road Name/Stretch 
Total 

lights 

Non Glowing 

Lights (Night 

Time) 

Glowing 

Lights (Day 

Time) 

Deorali 

Tenzing and Tenzing to Deorali Police 

station 
23 3 1 

Chorten Gumpa Road 35 0 0 

Syari Road 15 0 0 

Deorali School Road 6 0 0 

Deorali Police Station to Ganju Lama 

Dwar 
10 3 0 

Ganju Lama Dwar to Brand Factory 38 8 1 

Tadong 

Brand Factory to ICICI Bank Daragoan 11 4 0 

ICICI Bank Daragoan to Tadong College 19 3 0 

Tadong College to MP Golai 34 11 0 

MP Golai to CRH Manipal 40 10 1 

CRH Manipal to 7
th
 mile 59 31 2 

MG Marg 

Secreteriat to Dukhit Pan Dokan  13 1 0 

Dukhit Pan Dokan to Namnang Golai 

(Big Bazar) 
52 16 0 

Pantaloons to Namnang Junction 8 1 0 

High Court Junction to Mg Marg (Tibet 

Road) 
25 25 0 

Children Park Road 6 0 0 

The following reasons were observed/identified during the survey for non-functioning of the 

street lights – 

Irregularity in supply source 

3.1a Shortness of conductors 

Smart Street light (SSL) needs continuous 24 X 7 power supply in order to monitor data and 

have control over it. The power supply cables/wires has been laid underground and the same 

is being used for street light poles. The cables/wires is shorter in length that any new 

connection and tapping that have been made during the rectification are temporary (delicate) 

only. Therefore, this issue needs to be fixed to prevent irregularity in power supply from 

source. 

  Image 1 

              

 

   Image 2 
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3.1b Carbon Formation  

The connection at smart street light is made from supply panel to ISLC and then to the SET 

(Light). Therefore, the supply panel wires used at smart street lights are of aluminum and 

the ISLC and SET (lights) are having copper wire. Due to using of two different type of wire 

there’s a carbon formation at the connection joints which is leading to discontinuity in 

supply source.  

 

Image 3 

3.1c RTC (Remote Time Clock) 

If the supply source draws irregular power to the controller (ISLC) then the timer may 

function at irregular time. This will result in the Street Lights glowing at irregular period of 

time. 

3.1d Old Junction box 

An electrical junction box (also known as a "jbox") is an enclosure housing electrical 

connection. Junction boxes protect the electrical connections from the weather, as well as 

prevent people from accidental electric shocks but the most of the junction box are old and 

in deteriorating condition. 
 

 

https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Weather
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Electrical_injury
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Voltage drop 

3.2a Old Cables  

The wires used at Smart Street lights are very old and weak. Therefore, due to leakage in 

current – there is insufficient amount of power driven to load causing non-functioning of 

Light. 
 

 

Image 4 

 

Image 5 

  

 

 

 

 

                          Image 6                                                                             
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 Mu 

3.2b Mu3.2b Multiple Joints 

Multiple Joints are temporary solution to provide the power at the moment. If the multiple 

joints are present for long period of time, it may result in issues such as power dissipation, 

carbon formation and may become open circuit fault that will result in the non-functioning 

of lights. 
 

 

 

Image 8 

 

Image 9 

3.3 Earthing 

Grounding any electrical systems is critical to protect any electrical equipment from the 

danger of high voltage. But due to the absence of electrical grounding/earthing, the installed 

equipment such as controller (ISLC) and Lights (SETS) has been damaged. 

Proper Grounding/Earthing has to be provided for the protection and long-lasting of the 

equipment. 

3.4 Uneven Distribution of Street Light Poles from CCMS/supply panel  

The CCMS/supply panel is providing the power supply to less than 10 number of Street 

Light poles at some of the locations. In order to maintain the data and have control over the 

smart street lights, the distribution of Smart Street light from CCMS/Supply Panel has to be 

made even. 

Generally, as a common practice in other locations, around 50-80 lights are connected with one 

CCMS/Supply Panel. It is not a cost-effective solution to provide one CCMS box for less than 20 

numbers of Street Lights. 
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4. Technical Dimensions: 

Based on the ground report after installation of new LED Smart Street lights after replacing 

old conventional street lights, the power supply to the street lights should be provided 

through the new armoured aluminum conductors of size 2 core* 10sq mm 1.1KV 

PVC/XLPE heavy duty power cable for working voltage up to and including 660/1100 volts  

, 2 core* 16sq mm 1.1KV PVC/XLPE heavy duty power cable for working voltage up to 

and including 660/1100 volts  , single core 4 Sq mm copper cable with ISI marked PVC 

insulated industrial Grade flexible cable along with the safe earthing model T-19 of size 50 

mm diameter * 2meter electrode with chemical earthing. 

 

Fig h: 1.1KV PVC/XLPE heavy duty power cable 

 

Fig i: copper cable with ISI marked PVC insulated industrial Grade 
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Fig j: safe earthing model T-19 of size 50 mm diameter * 2meter electrode 

   

Fig k: Chemical Earthing 

The armoured conductors are to be placed in a cable trench and excavated with size 
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0.45*0.9*Length meters and refilled with available excavated earth and cement concrete on 

the top of the trench. 

Also, the street light pole of 9meter long 410-SP-30 swaged steel tubular pole with CI base 

plate and cap in some portion of areas needs to be replaced with new one along with the 

polycarbonate junction box with bus bar arrangement and 6 Amps miniature circuit breaker. 

 

Fig l: 9meter long 410-SP-30 swaged steel tubular pole with CI base plate and cap 

 

Fig m: polycarbonate junction box with bus bar arrangement and 6 Amps miniature circuit 

breaker. 
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6A Standard Specifications 

List of Materials and Proposed schedule of finishes for the works has to take prior approvals 

of all materials, fixtures and finishes to be used from the Project Manager/appropriate authority 

appointed by GSCDL before procurement. 
 

 

Materials 

 

Specifications 

 

Cement 
 

OPC 43,53 Grade 

 

Sand 
 

Tar Khola or its equivalent 

 

Stone chips 
 

Government approved quarry 

 

Bricks 
 

Cement Concrete (20x10x10) 

 

Cement Plaster 
 

1:4 

 

Concrete RCC 
 

M25 

Fixtures 

 

G.I. Pipe/ Alkathene Pipe 
 

Medium with high quality fibre with ISI 

Mark 

As per SOR 2020, Power Department, 

GOS 

Electrical Fittings 

 

Cables/Wires 
 

As per SOR 2020, Power Department, GOS 

 

 Earthing Model 

 

As per SOR 2020, Power Department, GOS 

  

Other Electrical Equipments 

 

  As per SOR 2020, Power Department, GOS 

 

(The bidder is required to sign the declaration as given in section 4 (Bidding forms) and 

submit along with the bid.) 

 

In addition to above declaration relevant national and international standard specifications are 

to be referred and taken into consideration for the bid. 
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6B Technical Specifications: 

The proposed projects shall be commissioned as per the technical specifications given below. 

Any shortcomings will lead to cancelation of subsidy in full or part as decided by [NAME OF 

THE ORGANISATION] & Competent Authority’s decision will be final and binding on the 

bidder. 

 

 

1. JUNCTION BOXES (JBs) 

 

a. The junction boxes are to be provided in the PV array for termination of connecting 

cables. The J. Boxes (JBs) shall be made of GRP/FRP/Powder Coated Aluminium 

/cast aluminium alloy with full dust, water & vermin proof arrangement. All 

wires/cables must be terminated through cable lugs. The JBs shall be such that input 

& output termination can be made through suitable cable glands. 

 

b. Copper bus bars/terminal blocks housed in the junction box with suitable termination 

threads Conforming to IP65 standard and IEC 62208 Hinged door with EPDM 

rubber gasket to prevent water entry. Single / double compression cable glands. 

Provision of earthings. It should be placed at 5 feet height or above for ease of 

accessibility. 

c. Each Junction Box shall have High quality Suitable capacity Metal Oxide Varistors 

(MOVs) / SPDs, suitable Reverse Blocking Diodes. The Junction Boxes shall have 

suitable arrangement monitoring and disconnection for each of the groups. 

d. Suitable markings shall be provided on the bus bar for easy identification and the 

cable ferrules must be fitted at the cable termination points for identification.
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2. PROTECTIONS 

 

The system should be provided with all necessary protections like earthing, Lightning, and grid 

islanding as follows: 

 

a) LIGHTNING PROTECTION 

 

The Smart Street Lights shall be provided with lightning protection. The main aim in this 

protection shall be to reduce the over voltage to a tolerable value before it reaches the Smart 

Street Lights or any other sub system components. The source of over voltage can be 

lightning, atmosphere disturbances etc.  

 

 

b) EARTHING PROTECTION 

 

i. Earth Resistance shall be tested in presence of the representative of 

Department/[NAME OF THE ORGANISATION] as and when required after earthing 

by calibrated earth tester.  

 

ii. Earth resistance shall not be more than 5 ohms. It shall be ensured that all the earthing 

points are bonded together to make them at the same potential. 
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3. CABLES 

 

Cables of appropriate size to be used in the Smart Street Lighs shall have the following characteristics: 

 

i. Shall meet IEC 60227/IS 694, IEC 60502/IS1554 standards or equivalent to standards  

set by Power Department, Govt. Of Sikkim. 

ii. Overall PVC/XLPE insulation for UV protection Armoured cable for underground  

laying. All cables conform to latest edition of IEC/ equivalent BIS Standards as  

specified below:    BoS item / component Standard Description Standard Number  

Cables General Test and Measuring Methods, PVC/XLPE insulated cables for 

working Voltage up to and including 1100 V ,UV resistant for outdoor installation 

 IS /IEC 69947. 

iii. The size of each type of AC cable selected shall be based on minimum voltage  

 drop however; the maximum drop shall be limited to 2 %. 
 

 

 

 

4. DANGER BOARDS AND SIGNAGES: 

 

Danger boards should be provided as and where necessary as per IE Act. /IE rules as 

amended up to date. Three signage shall be provided one each at battery –cum- control room, 

solar array area and main entry from administrative block. Text of the signage may be 

finalized in consultation with [NAME OF THE ORGANISATION]/ owner. 

 

 

5. DRAWINGS & MANUALS: 

 

a. Two sets of Engineering, electrical drawings and Installation and O&M manuals are to 

be supplied. Bidders shall provide complete technical data sheets for each equipment 

giving details of the specifications along with make/makes in their bid along with basic 

design of the power plant and power evacuation, synchronization along with protection 

equipment. 

 

b) Approved ISI and reputed makes for equipment be used. 

 

c) For complete electro-mechanical works, bidders shall supply complete design, details 

and drawings for approval to [NAME OF THE ORGANISATION]/owners before 

progressing with the installation work 
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6. PLANNING AND DESIGNING: 

 
 

a. [NAME OF THE ORGANISATION] reserves the right to modify the landscaping 

design, Layout and specification of sub-systems and components at any stage as per local 

site conditions/requirements. 

 

b. The bidder shall submit preliminary drawing for approval & based on any modification 

or recommendation, if any. The bidder submits three sets and soft copy in CD of final 

drawing for formal approval to proceed with construction work. 

 

6. DRAWINGS TO BE FURNISHED BY BIDDER AFTER AWARD OF CONTRACT 

 

a. The Contractor shall furnish the following drawings Award/Intent and obtain approval 

 
b. General arrangement and dimensioned layout 

 
 

 

7. SAFETY MEASURES: 

 

The bidder shall take entire responsibility for electrical safety of the installation(s) and 

follow all the safety rules & regulations applicable as per Electricity Act, 2003 and CEA 

guidelines etc. 
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6C Drawings 

 
1. Employer’s Drawings: -The drawings listed in the Tender document are Employer’s drawings 

and are provided by the Employer as a guideline of the specifications and work only. All data 

and information furnished in the drawings by the Employer is given in good faith but the 

Employer does not accept the responsibility for the completeness and accuracy thereof. The 

same shall be verified by the contractor promptly pointing out errors or discrepancies thereof 

to the Engineer. 

2. Contractor’s Drawings: -All drawings provided by the Contractor shall be on standard size 

sheets, prepared on computer with Auto CAD Latest revision and shall show particulars in a 

title block located in the lower right hand corner, in addition to the name of Contractor and 

equipment manufacturer, date, scale, drawing, revision number (R0 for drawings submitted 

initially, R1, R2 etc. for drawings submitted subsequently). A blank space shall be provided for 

the Engineer’s approval stamp and provision shall be made for detail of revisions to be 

recorded. All drawings submitted by the supplier shall use the English language. All drawings 

shall be clearly and fully cross-referenced to the other drawings as relevant.
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6E Terms & Procedure of Payment 

1. In accordance with the provisions of GCC Clauses 39 and 40, the Employer shall pay the 

Contractor in the manner and at the times set out in this Terms and Procedures of Payment 

Schedule. As per the schedule given below the Employer shall subject to provisions of Clause 5 

of this section, no later than 28 days after the receipt of Engineers in Charge statement by the 

Employer. 

2. Item wise breakup of the payment schedule 
 

 

Sr. 

No 

 

Particulars 

 

Performance Level of work 

 

% of 

payment 

allowed 

(on pro- 
rata basis) 
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3. The amounts to be paid to the Operator in accordance with Clause 2 of this Terms and Procedures 

of Payment Section shall include all costs and expenses of the contractor in building the structures. 

4. The amounts paid to the Operator in accordance with Clause 2 of this Terms and Procedures of 

Payment Section shall be repaid to the Contractor as part of the payments set out in Clause 2 of 

this section by reducing those payments by an amount equal to the advance payment times the 

same percentage of the Contract Amount that the Engineer in Charge determines in accordance 

with Clause 2 of this Terms and Procedures of Payment Section. 

5. The Employer shall deduct from each payment to the Contractor pursuant to Clause 2 this Term 

and Procedures of Payment Section, a Retention for 10 per cent of each payment to the Contractor. 

The Retention amount may be released to the Contractor subject to the Operator furnishing an 

irrevocable Bank Guarantee from the nationalized Bank equivalent to the Retention amount. The 

Employer shall pay the 100 per cent of the Retention amount back to the Contractor after the expiry 

of Defects Liability Period 

 

6D Supplementary Information 

1. Co-operation: The Contractor shall establish full co-ordination with the officials of 
Employer/GSCDL, extend co-operation to complete work. 

2. Records procedures and reports: A work order book shall be maintained by the 

contractor at site/workshop for taking instructions from employer or his representative. 

The Contractor shall maintain records pertaining to the quality of installation / erection 

work and inspection, testing, compliance with all technical requirements in respect of 

all this works as described before. The Contractor shall submit such records to the 

Employer after the completion of any particular work before submitting the bill. 

3. Personnel:-The contractor shall depute sufficient staff to carry out installation, the 

maintenance and repair work efficiently and satisfactorily. The Contractor shall 

undertake to comply with applicable legislation and the code of labour law on matters 

of health, hygiene and safety, and shall assume responsibility for works required in the 

event of any change in applicable regulations. The contractor shall provide all necessary 

superintendence during the execution of works and during maintenance. The 

Contractor’s staff shall include adequate and competent persons with proven suitable, 

previous experience on similar contracts to supervise the works and sufficient skilled, 

semi-skilled and unskilled labour to ensure completion of works in time. The Contractor 

shall not remove any representative or skilled labour from the site without prior 

approval of the Employer’s Representative for the proper fulfilling of the contractors 

obligations under the contract. The contractor or a competent and authorized agent or 

representative approved in writing by Employer on the basis of qualification and 

experience to be furnished by the contractor, which approval may at any time be 

withdrawn, is to be constantly on the works and shall give his whole time to the 

superintendence of the work. 

4. Public Authorities: - The Contractor shall comply with all rules & regulations, bye laws 

and directives given from time to time by any local or public authority in connection 

with this work and shall himself pay fees or charges which shall be levied on him 

without any extra cost. 

5. Safety:-The Contractor will be responsible for safety of the material supplied and kept 

in joint custody of the employer and the contractor till completion of contract. The 

Contractor shall at his own expense arrange for the safety of his labour / supervisor staff 

employed by him directly or indirectly for performing the work, as per statutory 

requirement. The Contractor shall report any accident or unusual occurrence with the 
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work at site that take place to employer immediately with the action, which he might 

have taken. 

6. Acquaintance with Site and Work Conditions: - The Bidder shall study the site and 

general conditions in respect of approaches, labourers, climate and the data included in 

the tender documents and get it verified with actual inspections of the site, before 

submitting the tender. In case of doubt about any item or data included in the tender, 

the same shall be got clarified in pre-bid meeting. Once the tender is accepted, it shall 

be concluded that the Contractor has verified and made himself conversant with all the 

details required for completing the work as stipulated conditions and specifications. 
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Section 7 - GENERAL DIRECTIONS AND CONDITIONS OF 

CONTRACT 

A. General 

1. Definitions 

 

1.1. Boldface type is used to identify defined terms. 

 

(a) The Accepted Contract Amount means the amount accepted in the Letter of 

Acceptance for the execution and completion of the Works and the remedying of 

any defects. 

 

(b) The Activity Schedule is a schedule of the activities comprising the construction, 

installation, testing, and commissioning of the Works in a lump sum contract. It 

includes a lump sum price for each activity, which is used for valuations and for 

assessing the effects of Variations and Compensation Events. 

 

(c) The Adjudicator is the person appointed jointly by the Employer and the 

Contractor to resolve disputes in the first instance, as provided for in GCC 23.1 

hereunder. 

 

(d) Bill of Quantities means the priced and completed Bill of Quantities forming part 

of the Bid. 

 

(e) Compensation Events are those defined in GCC 41.1 hereunder. 

 

(f) The Completion Date is the date of completion of the Works as certified by the 

Project Manager, in accordance with GCC 52.1. 

 

(g) The Contract is the Contract between the Employer and the Contractor to execute, 

complete, and maintain the Works. It consists of the documents listed in GCC 2.3 

below. 

 

(h) The Contractor is the party whose Bid to carry out the Works has been accepted 

by the Employer. 

 

(i) The Contractor’s Bid is the completed bidding document submitted by the 

Contractor to the Employer. 

 

(j) The Contract Price is the Accepted Contract Amount stated in the Letter of 

Acceptance and thereafter as adjusted in accordance with the Contract. 

 

(k) Days are calendar days; months are calendar months. 
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(l) Day works are varied work inputs subject to payment on a time basis for the 

Contractor’s employees and Equipment, in addition to payments for associated 

Materials and Plant. 

 

(m) A Defect is any part of the Works not completed in accordance with the Contract. 

 

(n) The Defects Liability Certificate is the certificate issued by Project Manager 

upon correction of defects by the Contractor. 

 

(o) The Defects Liability Period is the period calculated from the Completion Date 

where the Contractor remains responsible for remedying defects. 

 

(p) Drawings include calculations and other information provided or approved by the 

Project Manager for the execution of the Contract. 

 

(q) The Employer is the party who employs the Contractor to carry out the Works, as 

specified in the PCC. 

 

(r) Equipment is the Contractor’s machinery and vehicles brought temporarily to the 

Site to construct the Works. 

 

(s) Force Majeure means an exceptional event or circumstance: which is beyond a 

Party's control; which such Party could not reasonably have provided against 

before entering into the Contract; which, having arisen, such Party could not 

reasonably have avoided or overcome; and, which is not substantially attributable 

to the other Party. 

 

(t) The Initial Contract Price is the Contract Price listed in the Employer’s Letter of 

Acceptance. 

 

(u) The Intended Completion Date is the date on which it is intended that the 

Contractor shall complete the Works. The Intended Completion Date is specified 

in the PCC. The Intended Completion Date may be revised only by the Project 

Manager by issuing an extension of time or an acceleration order. 

 

(v) Letter of Acceptance means the formal acceptance by the Employer of the Bid 

and denotes the formation of the Contract at the date of acceptance. 

 

(w) Materials are all supplies, including consumables, used by the Contractor for 

incorporation in the Works. 

 

(x) “Party” means the Employer or the Contractor, as the context requires. 

 
(y) PCC means Particular Conditions of Contract 

 
(z) Plant is any integral part of the Works that shall have a mechanical, electrical, 

chemical, or biological function. 
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(aa) The Project Manager is the person named in the PCC (or any other competent 

person appointed by the Employer and notified to the Contractor, to act in 

replacement of the Project Manager) who is responsible for supervising the 

execution of the Works and administering the Contract. 

 

(bb) Retention Money means the aggregate of all monies retained by the Employer 

pursuant to GCC 45.1. 

 

(cc) The Site is the area defined as such in the PCC. 

 

(dd) Site Investigation Reports are those that were included in the bidding documents 

and are factual and interpretative reports about the surface and subsurface 

conditions at the Site. 

 

(ee) Specification means the Specification of the Works included in the Contract and 

any modification or addition made or approved by the Project Manager. 

 

(ff) The Start Date is given in the PCC. It is the latest date when the Contractor shall 

commence execution of the Works. It does not necessarily coincide with any of 

the Site Possession Dates. 

 

(gg) A Subcontractor is a person or corporate body who has a Contract with the 

Contractor to carry out a part of the work in the Contract, which includes work on 

the Site. 

 

(hh)    Temporary Works are works designed, constructed, installed, and removed by 

the Contractor that are needed for construction or installation of the Works. 

 

(ii)  A Variation is an instruction given by the Project Manager which varies the 

Works. 

 

(jj) The Works are what the Contract requires the Contractor to construct, install, and 

turn over to the Employer, as defined in the PCC. 

 

(kk) The Certificate of Completion is the Certificate issued by the Project Manager to 

the Contractor, on successful completion of all the works specified in the Works 

Requirement (Section 6) and is “fit for purpose”. 

 

2. Interpretation 

 

2.1. In interpreting these GCC, singular also means plural, male also means female 

or neuter, and the other way around. Headings have no significance. Words 

have their normal meaning under the language of the Contract unless 

specifically defined. The Project Manager shall provide instructions clarifying 

queries about these GCC. 
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2.2. If sectional completion is specified in the PCC, references in the GCC to the 

Works, the Completion Date, and the Intended Completion Date apply to any 

Section of the Works (other than references to the Completion Date and 

Intended Completion Date for the whole of the Works). 

 

2.3. The documents forming the Contract shall be interpreted in the following order 

of priority: 

 

a) Agreement, 

b) Letter of Acceptance, 

c) Particular Conditions of Contract, 

d) General Conditions of Contract, 

e) Specifications, 

f) Drawings, 

g) Bill of Quantities (or Schedules of Prices for lump sum contracts), and 

h) Contractor’s Bid, 

i) any other document listed in the PCC as forming part of the Contract. 

 

3. Language and Law 

 

3.1. The language of the Contract and the law governing the Contract are stated in 

the PCC. 

 

4. Project Manager’s Decisions 

 

4.1. Except where otherwise specifically stated, the Project Manager shall decide 

contractual matters between the Employer and the Contractor in the role 

representing the Employer. 

 

5. Delegation 

 

5.1. The Project Manager may delegate any of his duties and responsibilities to other 

people except to the Adjudicator, after notifying the Contractor, and may cancel 

any delegation after notifying the Contractor. 

 

6. Communications 

 

6.1. Communications between parties that are referred to in the Conditions shall be 

effective only when in writing. A notice shall be effective only when it is 

delivered 

 

7. Subcontracting 

 

7.1. The Contractor may subcontract with the approval of the Project Manager, but 

may not assign the Contract without the approval of the Employer in writing. 

Subcontracting shall not alter the Contractor’s obligations. 
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8. Other Contractors 

 

8.1. The Contractor shall cooperate and share the Site with other contractors, public 

authorities, utilities, and the Employer between the dates given in the Schedule 

of Other Contractors, as referred to in the PCC. The Contractor shall also 

provide facilities and services for them as described in the Schedule. The 

Employer may modify the Schedule of other Contractors, and shall notify the 

Contractor of any such modification. 

 

9. Personnel and Equipment 

 

9.1. The Contractor shall employ the key personnel and use the equipment identified 

in its Bid to carry out the Works, or other personnel and equipment approved 

by the Project Manager. The Project Manager shall approve any proposed 

replacement of key personnel and equipment only if their relevant qualifications 

or characteristics are substantially equal to or better than those proposed in the 

Bid. 

9.2. If the Project Manager asks the Contractor to remove a person who is a member 

of the Contractor’s staff or work force, stating the reasons, the Contractor shall 

ensure that the person leaves the Site within seven days and has no further 

connection with the work in the Contract. 

 

10. Employer’s and Contractor’s Risks 

 

10.1. The Employer carries the risks which this Contract states are Employer’s risks, 

and the Contractor carries the risks which this Contract states are Contractor’s 

risks. 

 

11. Employer’s Risks 

 

11.1. From the Start Date until the Defects Liability Certificate has been issued, the 

following are Employer’s risks: 

(a) The risk of personal injury, death, or loss of or damage to property 

(excluding the Works, Plant, Materials, and Equipment), which are due 

to 

(i) use or occupation of the Site by the Works or for the purpose of 

the Works, which is the unavoidable result of the Works or 

(ii) negligence, breach of statutory duty, or interference with any 

legal right by the Employer or by any person employed by or 

contracted to him except the Contractor. 

(b) The risk of damage to the Works, Plant, Materials, and Equipment to the 

extent that it is due to a fault of the Employer or in the Employer’s 

design, or due to war or radioactive contamination directly affecting the 

country where the Works are to be executed. 
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11.2. From the Completion Date until the Defects Liability Certificate has been 

issued, the risk of loss of or damage to the Works, Plant, and Materials is an 

Employer’s risk except loss or damage due to 

(a) a Defect which existed on the Completion Date, 

(b) an event occurring before the Completion Date, which was not itself an 

Employer’s risk, or 

(c) the activities of the Contractor on the Site after the Completion Date. 

 

12. Contractor’s Risks 

 

12.1. From the Starting Date until the Defects Liability Certificate has been issued, 

the risks of personal injury, death, and loss of or damage to property (including, 

without limitation, the Works, Plant, Materials, and Equipment) which are not 

Employer’s risks are Contractor’s risks. 

 

13. Insurance 

 

13.1 The Contractor shall provide, in the joint names of the Employer and the 

Contractor, insurance cover from the Start Date to the end of the Defects 

Liability Period, in the amounts and deductibles stated in the PCC for the 

following events which are due to the Contractor’s risks: 

 

(a) loss of or damage to the Works, Plant, and Materials; 

(b) loss of or damage to Equipment; 

(c) loss of or damage to property (except the Works, Plant, Materials, and 

Equipment) in connection with the Contract; and 

(d) personal injury or death. 

13.1.1. Insurance of work and contractor’s equipment: The Contractor shall, 

without limiting his or the Employer’s obligations and responsibilities 

under Clause GCC 11, insure: 

(a) the Works, together with materials and Plant for incorporation therein to 

the full replacement cost 

(b) additional sum as required by the employer, detailed out in the PCC. 

(c) the Contractor’s Equipment and other things brought onto the Site by 

the Contractor, for a sum sufficient to provide for their replacement at 

the Site. 

13.1.2. Scope of cover: The insurance in paragraphs (a) and (b) of Sub-Clause 

13.1.1 shall be in the joint names of the Contractor and the Employer 

and shall cover: 

(b) the Employer and the Contractor against all loss or damage from 

whatsoever cause arising, other than as provided Sub-Clause 13.1.4, 

from the first working day after the commencement date until the date 

of issue of the relevant Taking-Over Certificate in respect of the 

Works or any Section or part thereof as the case may be, and 

(c) the Contractor for his liability; 
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(i) during the Defects Liability Period for loss or damage arising 

from a cause occurring prior to the commencement of the 

Defects Liability Period, and 

(ii) for loss or damage occasioned by the Contractor in the course of 

any operations carried out by him for the purpose of complying 

with his obligations under Clause GCC 33. 

13.1.3. Responsibility for Amount not Recovered: Any amounts not insured 

or not recovered from the insurers shall be borne by the Employer or 

the Contractor in accordance with their responsibilities Clause GCC 11 

& 12. 

13.1.4. Exclusions: There shall be no obligation for the insurance in Sub- 

Clause 13.1.1 to include loss or damage caused by 

(a) war, hostilities, invasion, and act of foreign enemies. 

(b) Rebellion, revolution, insurrection or military or usurped power, 

or civil war. 

13.1.5. Third Party Insurance: The Contractor shall, without limiting his or the 

Employer’s obligations and responsibilities under Clause GCC 63, 

insure, in the joint names of the Contractor and the Employer, against 

liabilities for death of or injury to any person (other than as provided in 

sub-clause 13.1.6 and 13.1.7) or loss or damage to any property (other 

than the Works) arising out of the performance of the Contract, other 

than the exception defined in paragraphs (a), (b) and(c) of clause GCC 

63.3 

Such insurance shall be for a certain minimum percentage of the 

contract amount as specified in the PCC. 

The insurance policy shall include a cross liability clause such that the 

insurance shall apply to the Contractor and to the Employer as separate 

insured. 

13.1.6. Insurance for Employers Staff: The Contractor shall also, without 

limiting his or the employer’s obligations insure in the Joint names of 

the contractor and the Employer, the Employer’s staff to extent of 5 

numbers and their staff engaged on the works at the site against 

liabilities for death or injury. The amount for the insurance cover for 

each of the employer’s staff so engaged shall be limited to a minimum 

of Rs. 3,00,000/- per person or as per the laws governing in state 

whichever is more. The insurance shall continue until the taking over 

certificate for the whole of the works is issued. Notwithstanding the 

amount mentioned above, insurance obtained should satisfy the 

prevailing rules in this regard. 

13.1.7 Accident or Injury to Workmen: The Employer or its 

representatives shall not be liable for or in respect of any damages or 

compensation payable to any workman or other person in the 

employment of the Contractor or any subcontractor, other than death or 

injury resulting from any act or default or the Employer, his agents or 
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servants. The Contractor shall indemnify and keep indemnified the 

Employer against all such damages and compensation, other than those 

for which the Employer is liable as aforesaid, and against all claims, 

proceedings, damages, costs, charges, and expenses whatsoever in 

respect thereof or in relation thereto. 

The Contractor shall insure against such liability and shall 

continue such insurance during the whole time that any person is 

employed by him on the Works. Provided that, in respect of any 

persons employed by any Subcontractor, the Contractor’s obligations 

to insure as aforesaid under the Sub-Clause shall be satisfied if the 

Subcontractor shall have insured against the liability in respect of such 

persons in such manner that the Employer is indemnified under the 

policy, but the Contractor shall require such Subcontractor to produce 

to the Employer, when required, such policy of insurance and the 

receipt for the payment of the current premium. 

13.1.8 Personal Accident Insurance: In addition to any other insurance 

required to be taken out by statutory requirements (e.g. Workmen’s 

Compensation Act 1923), the Contractor shall take out a Personal 

Accident Insurance in favour of each workman employed by him on the 

Works. Provided that, in respect of any persons employed by any Sub- 

Contractor, the Contractor’s obligations to insure as aforesaid under 

this Sub-Clause shall be satisfied if the Sub-Contractor shall have taken 

out Personal Accident Insurance in respect of his workmen employed 

on the works and the Contractor shall require such Sub-Contractor to 

produce to the Employer, when required, such policy of Personal 

Accident Insurance and the receipt for the payment of the current 

premium. 

13.1.9 Evidence and Terms of Insurances: The Contractor shall provide 

evidence to the Employer as soon as practicable after the respective 

insurance have been taken out but in any case prior to the start of work 

at the Site that the insurances required under the Contract have been 

effected and shall, within 84 days of the Commencement Date, provide 

the insurance policies to the Employer. When providing such evidence 

and such policies to the Employer, the Contractor shall notify the 

Project Manager of so doing. Such insurance policies shall be consistent 

with the general terms agreed prior to the issue of the Letter of 

Acceptance. The Contractor shall effect all insurances for which he is 

responsible with insurers and in terms approved by the Employer. 

13.1.10 Adequacy of Insurance: The Contractor shall notify the 

insurers of changes in the nature, extent or programme for the execution 

of the Works and ensure the adequacy of the insurances at all times in 

accordance with the terms of the Contract and shall, when required, 

produce to the Employer the insurance policies in force and the receipts 

for payment of the current premium. 
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13.1.11 Remedy on Contractor’s failure to Insure: If the 

Contractor fails to effect and to keep in force any of the insurances 

required under the Contract, or fails to provide the policies to the 

Employer within the period required by Clause 13.1.9, then and in any 

such case the Employer may effect and keep in force any such 

insurances and pay any premium as may be necessary for that purpose 

and from time to time and deduct premium amount so paid from any 

monies due or to become due to the Contractor, or recover the same as 

a debt due from the Contractor. 

 
13.2 Policies and certificates for insurance shall be delivered by the Contractor to the 

Project Manager for the Project Manager’s approval before the Start Date. All 

such insurance shall provide for compensation to be payable in the types and 

proportions of currencies required to rectify the loss or damage incurred. 

13.3 If the Contractor does not provide any of the policies and certificates required, 

the Employer may affect the insurance which the Contractor should have 

provided and recover the premiums the Employer has paid from payments 

otherwise due to the Contractor or, if no payment is due, the payment of the 

premiums shall be a debt due. 

13.4 Alterations to the terms of insurance shall not be made without the approval of 

the Project Manager. 

13.5 Both parties shall comply with any conditions of the insurance policies. 

 

14. Site Investigation Reports 

 

14.1. The Contractor, in preparing the Bid, shall rely on any Site Investigation 

Reports referred to in the PCC, supplemented by any information available to 

the Bidder. 

 

15. Contractor to Construct the Works 

 

15.1. The Contractor shall construct and install the Works in accordance with the 

Specifications and Drawings as specified in Section 6. 

 

16. The Works to Be Completed by the Intended Completion Date 

 

16.1. The Contractor may commence execution of the Works on the Start Date and 

shall carry out the Works in accordance with the Program submitted by the 

Contractor, as updated with the approval of the Project Manager, and complete 

them by the Intended Completion Date. 

 

17. Designs by Contractor and Approval by the Project Manager 

 

17.1. The Contractor shall carry out design to the extent specified in the PCC. The 

Contractor shall promptly submit to the Employer all designs prepared by him. 

Within 14 days of receipt, the Employer shall notify any comments. The 
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Contractor shall not construct any element of the permanent work designed by 

him within 14 days after the design has been submitted to the Employer or 

where the design for that element has been rejected. Design that has been 

rejected shall be promptly amended and resubmitted. The Contractor shall 

resubmit all designs commented on taking these comments into account as 

necessary. 

17.2. The Contractor shall be responsible for design of Temporary Works. 

17.3. The Contractor shall submit Specifications and Drawings showing the proposed 

Temporary Works to the Project Manager, who is to approve them if they 

comply with the Specifications and Drawings. 

17.4. The Project Manager’s approval shall not alter the Contractor’s responsibility 

for design of the Temporary Works. 

17.5. The Contractor shall obtain approval of third parties to the design of the 

Temporary Works, where required. 

17.6. All Drawings prepared by the Contractor for the execution of the temporary or 

permanent Works, are subject to prior approval by the Project Manager before 

this use. 

 

18. Safety 

 

18.1. The Contractor shall be responsible for the safety of all activities on the Site. 

 

19. Discoveries 

 

19.1. Anything of historical or other interest or of significant value unexpectedly 

discovered on the Site shall be the property of the Employer. The Contractor 

shall notify the Project Manager of such discoveries and carry out the Project 

Manager’s instructions for dealing with them. 

All old curiosities, relic coins, minerals etc., found in the excavation or pulling 

down shall be the property of the Government. Should any ancient masonry or 

other old work of interest be opened up, or any religious edifice or relic be 

involved in removal or destruction, in the execution of a work, a clear report on 

the matter should be sent to Government through the Employer and orders 

obtained before the demolition or removal of such works or relics. Similarly, 

regarding old curiosities etc., obtained during excavation, the Project Manager 

should consult the District Collector through appropriate channel regarding 

disposal of the same. 

 

20. Possession of the Site 

 

20.1 The Employer shall give possession of all parts of the Site to the Contractor. If 

possession of a part is not given by the date stated in the PCC, the Employer 

shall be deemed to have delayed the start of the relevant activities, and this shall 

be a Compensation Event. The final authority on this matter shall lie with the 
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GSCDL and decision in this matter taken by GSCDL will be binding on all 

parties to this contract. 

 

21. Access to the Site 

 

21.1. The Contractor shall allow the Project Manager and any person authorized by 

the Project Manager access to the Site and to any place where work in 

connection with the Contract is being carried out or is intended to be carried 

out. 

 

22. Instructions, Inspections and Audits 

 

22.1. The Contractor shall carry out all instructions of the Project Manager which 

comply with the applicable laws where the Site is located. 

22.2. The Contractor shall permit the GSCDL to inspect the Contractor’s accounts, 

records and other documents relating to the submission of bids and contract 

performance and to have them audited by auditors appointed by the GSCDL. 

The Contractor shall maintain all documents and records related to the Contract 

for a period of three (3) years after completion of the Works. The Contractor 

shall provide any documents necessary for the investigation of allegations of 

fraud, collusion, coercion, or corruption and require its employees or agents 

with knowledge of the Contract to respond to questions from the GSCDL. 

 

23. Appointment of the Adjudicator 

 

23.1. The Adjudicator shall be appointed jointly by the Employer and the Contractor, 

at the time of the Employer’s issuance of the Letter of Acceptance. If, in the 

Letter of Acceptance, the Employer does not agree on the appointment of the 

Adjudicator, the Employer will request the Appointing Authority designated in 

the PCC, to appoint the Adjudicator within 14 days of receipt of such request. 

23.2. Should the Adjudicator resign or die, or should the Employer and the Contractor 

agree that the Adjudicator is not functioning in accordance with the provisions 

of the Contract; a new Adjudicator shall be jointly appointed by the Employer 

and the Contractor. In case of disagreement between the Employer and the 

Contractor, within 30 days, the Adjudicator shall be designated by the 

Appointing Authority at the request of either party, within 14 days of receipt of 

such request. 

 

24. Procedure for Disputes 

 

24.1. Void. 

24.2. Void. 

24.3. Any disputes between the Employer and the Contractor arising out of or in 

connection with the Contract not settled amicably and in respect of Project 

Manager’s decision, arbitration shall be conducted in accordance with the 

Arbitration and Conciliation Act 1996 with relevant amendments. 
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24.4. The seat and place of the arbitration shall be Gangtok, Sikkim. Arbitration shall 

be held by a three-member Arbitration team. For the Panel, the Employer and 

the Contractor will suggest an Arbitrator each within 14 days of receipt of 

Arbitration Notice. The two Arbitrators will then mutually decide upon the 

Third Arbitrator. 
 

B. Time Control 
 

25. Program 

 

25.1. The Contractor shall submit for approval a Program for the Works within 14 

days from the date of the Letter of Acceptance. Within this, the Contractor shall 

submit to the Project Manager for approval a Program showing the general 

methods, arrangements, order, and timing for all the activities in the Works. In 

the case of a lump sum contract, the activities in the Program shall be consistent 

with those in the Activity Schedule. 

25.2. An update of the Program shall be a program showing the actual progress 

achieved on each activity and the effect of the progress achieved on the timing 

of the remaining work, including any changes to the sequence of the activities. 

25.3. The Contractor shall submit to the Project Manager for approval an updated 

Program at intervals no longer than the period of 30 days. If the Contractor does 

not submit an updated Program within this period, the Project Manager may 

withhold the amount stated in the PCC from the next payment certificate and 

continue to withhold this amount until the next payment after the date on which 

the overdue Program has been submitted. In the case of a lump sum contract, 

the Contractor shall provide an updated Activity Schedule within 14 days of 

being instructed to by the Project Manager. 

25.4. The Project Manager’s approval of the Program shall not alter the Contractor’s 

obligations. The Contractor may revise the Program and submit it to the Project 

Manager again at any time. A revised Program shall show the effect of 

Variations and Compensation Events. 

 

26. Extension of the Intended Completion Date 

 

26.1. The Project Manager shall extend the Intended Completion Date if a 

Compensation Event occurs or a Variation is issued which makes it impossible 

for Completion to be achieved by the Intended Completion Date without the 

Contractor taking steps to accelerate the remaining work, which would cause 

the Contractor to incur additional cost. 

26.2. The Project Manager shall decide whether and by how much to extend the 

Intended Completion Date within 21 days of the Contractor asking the Project 

Manager for a decision upon the effect of a Compensation Event or Variation 

and submitting full supporting information. If the Contractor has failed to give 

early warning of a delay or has failed to cooperate in dealing with a delay, the 
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delay by this failure shall not be considered in assessing the new Intended 

Completion Date. 

 

27. Acceleration 

 

27.1. When the Employer wants the Contractor to complete works before the Intended 

Completion Date, the Project Manager appointed by employer shall obtain 

priced proposals for achieving the necessary acceleration of works from the 

Contractor. If the Employer accepts these proposals, the Intended Completion 

Date shall be adjusted accordingly and confirmed by both the Employer and the 

Contractor. 

27.2. If the Contractor’s priced proposals for acceleration are accepted by the 

Employer, they are incorporated in the Contract Price and treated as a Variation. 

 

28. Delays Ordered by the Project Manager 

 

28.1. The Project Manager may instruct the Contractor to delay the start or progress 

of any activity within the Works. 

 

29. Management Meetings 

 

29.1. The Project Manager or on the request of the Contractor may convene a 

management meeting and the Project Manager may require the Contractor to 

attend the management meeting. The business of a management meeting shall 

be to review the plans for remaining work and to deal with matters raised in 

accordance with the early warning procedure. 

29.2. The Project Manager shall record the business of management meetings and 

provide copies of the record to those attending the meeting and to the 

Employer. The responsibility of the parties for actions to be taken shall be 

decided by the Project Manager either at the management meeting or after the 

management meeting and stated in writing to all who attended the meeting. 

 

30. Early Warning 

 

30.1. The Contractor shall warn the Project Manager at the earliest opportunity of 

specific likely future events or circumstances that may adversely affect the 

quality of the work, increase the Contract Price, or delay the execution of the 

Works. The Project Manager may require the Contractor to provide an estimate 

of the expected effect of the future event or circumstance on the Contract Price 

and Completion Date. The estimate shall be provided by the Contractor as soon 

as reasonably possible. 

30.2. The Contractor shall cooperate with the Project Manager in making and 

considering proposals for how the effect of such an event or circumstance can 

be avoided or reduced by anyone involved in the work and in carrying out any 

resulting instruction of the Project Manager. 
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C. Quality Control 
 

31. Identifying Defects 

 

31.1. The Project Manager and PDMC appointed by GSCDL shall check the 

Contractor’s work and notify the Contractor of any Defects that are found. 

Such checking shall not affect the Contractor’s responsibilities. The Project 

Manager may instruct the Contractor to search for a Defect and to uncover and 

test any work that the Project Manager considers may have a Defect. 

31.2. The contractor shall ensure that the raw materials, goods & related services 

procured/deployed under this contract/project should comply with the 

technical specifications and other provisions of Contract. 

 

The contractor shall be supply and use and will be held responsible for raw materials, 

goods & related services under this contract/project shall conform to the 

standards mentioned in the Sikkim SOR and when no applicable standard is 

mentioned, the standard shall be equivalent or superior to the official standards 

whose application is appropriate to the superior quality in reference to as 

mentioned in description in BoQ. 

 

32. Tests 

 

32.1. If the Project Manager instructs the Contractor to carry out a test not specified 

in the Specification to check whether any work has a Defect and the test shows 

that it does, the Contractor shall pay for the test and any samples. If there is 

no Defect, the test shall be a Compensation Event. 

 

33. Correction of Defects 

 

33.1. The Project Manager shall give notice to the Contractor of any Defects before 

the end of the Defects Liability Period, which begins at Completion, and is 

defined in the PCC. The Defects Liability Period shall be extended for as long 

as Defects remain to be corrected. 

33.2. Every time notice of a Defect is given, the Contractor shall correct the notified 

Defect within the length of time specified by the Project Manager’s notice. 

 

34. Uncorrected Defects 

 

34.1. If the Contractor has not corrected a Defect within the time specified in the 

Project Manager’s notice, the Project Manager shall assess the cost of having 

the Defect corrected, and the Contractor shall pay this amount. 
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D. Cost Control 
 

35. Contract Price 

 

35.1. In the case of an admeasurements contract, the Bill of Quantities shall contain 

priced items for the Works to be performed by the Contractor. The Bill of 

Quantities is used to calculate the Contract Price. The Contractor will be paid 

for the quantity of the work accomplished at the rate in the Bill of Quantities 

for each item. 

35.2. In the case of a lump sum contract, the Activity Schedule shall contain the 

priced activities for the Works to be performed by the Contractor. The Activity 

Schedule is used to monitor and control the performance of activities on which 

basis the Contractor will be paid. If payment for Materials on Site shall be made 

separately, the Contractor shall show delivery of Materials to the Site 

separately on the Activity Schedule. 

 

36. Changes in the Contract Price 

 

36.1. In the case of an admeasurements contract: 

(a) If the final quantity of the work done differs from the quantity in the Bill 

of Quantities for the particular item by more than 25 percent, provided 

the change exceeds 1 percent of the Initial Contract Price, the Project 

Manager shall adjust the rate to allow for the change. 

(b) The Project Manager shall not adjust rates from changes in quantities if 

thereby the Initial Contract Price is exceeded by more than 15 percent, 

except with the prior approval of the Employer. 

(c) If requested by the Project Manager, the Contractor shall provide the 

Project Manager with a detailed cost breakdown of any rate in the Bill 

of Quantities. 

36.2. In the case of a lump sum contract, the Activity Schedule shall be amended 

by the Contractor to accommodate changes of Program or method of working 

made at the Contractor’s own discretion. Prices in the Activity Schedule shall 

not be altered when the Contractor makes such changes to the Activity 

Schedule. 

 

37. Variations 

 

37.1. All Variations shall be included in updated Programs, produced by the 

Contractor. 

37.2. The Contractor shall provide the Project Manager with a quotation for carrying 

out the Variation when requested to do so by the Project Manager. The Project 

Manager shall assess the quotation, which shall be given within seven (7) days 

of the request or within any longer period stated by the Project Manager and 

before the Variation is ordered. 
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37.3. If the Contractor’s quotation is unreasonable, the Project Manager may order 

the Variation and make a change to the Contract Price, which shall be based on 

the Project Manager’s own forecast of the effects of the Variation on the 

Contractor’s costs. 

37.4. If the Project Manager decides that the urgency of varying the work would 

prevent a quotation being given and considered without delaying the work, no 

quotation shall be given and the Variation shall be treated as a Compensation 

Event. 

37.5. The Contractor shall not be entitled to additional payment for costs that could 

have been avoided by giving early warning. 

37.6. In the case of an admeasurements contract, if the work in the variation 

corresponds with an item description in the Bill of Quantities and if, in the 

opinion of the Engineer, the quantity of work to be executed is an extra item 

and the rates in the bill of quantities shall be used for calculate the value of 

variation. If the cost per unit of quantity changes, or if the nature or timing of 

the work in the variation does not correspond with item in the BoQ, the 

procedure explained in the above Para i.e., 36.1 (i), the data rate based on 

schedule of rate of the year of execution or market rate (when Schedule of Rate 

is not available) shall be followed for arriving the rate for the new item. . 

 

38. Cash Flow Forecasts 

 

38.1. When the Program, or, in the case of a lump sum contract, the Activity 

Schedule, is updated, the Contractor shall provide the Project Manager with an 

updated cash flow forecast. The cash flow forecast shall include different 

currencies, as defined in the Contract, converted as necessary using the Contract 

exchange rates. 

 

39. Payment Certificates 

 

39.1. The Contractor shall submit to the Project Manager monthly statements of the 

estimated value of the work executed less the cumulative amount certified 

previously. 

39.2. The Project Manager shall check the Contractor’s monthly statement and certify 

the amount to be paid to the Contractor, subject to statutory deductions and any 

other deductions coming from Clause 48. The Project Manager shall within 28 

days after receiving a statement and supporting documents from the Contractor, 

issue to the employer, an Interim Payment Certificate. 

39.3. The value of work executed shall be determined by the Project Manager. 

39.4. The value of work executed shall comprise: 

(a) In the case of an admeasurements contract, the value of the quantities of 

work in the Bill of Quantities that have been completed; or 

(b) In the case of a lump sum contract, the value of work executed shall 

comprise the value of completed activities in the Activity Schedule. 
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39.5. The value of work executed shall include the valuation of Variations and 

Compensation Events. 

39.6. The Project Manager may exclude any item certified in a previous certificate 

or reduce the proportion of any item previously certified in any certificate in 

the light of later information. 

 

40. Compensation Events 

 

40.1. The following shall be Compensation Events: 

(a) The Employer does not give access to a part of the Site by the Site 

Possession Date pursuant to GCC 20.1. 

(b) The Employer modifies the Schedule of Other Contractors in a way that 

affects the work of the Contractor under the Contract. 

(c) The Project Manager orders a delay or does not issue Drawings, 

Specifications required for execution of the Works on time. 

(d) The Project Manager instructs the Contractor to uncover or to carry out 

additional tests upon work, which is then found to have no Defects. 

(e) Ground conditions are substantially more adverse than could reasonably 

have been assumed before issuance of the Letter of Acceptance from the 

information issued to bidders (including the Site Investigation Reports), 

from information available publicly and from a visual inspection of the 

Site. 

(f) The Project Manager gives an instruction for dealing with an unforeseen 

condition, caused by the Employer, or additional work required for 

safety or other reasons. 

(g) Other contractors, public authorities, utilities, or the Employer does not 

work within the dates and other constraints stated in the Contract, and 

they cause delay or extra cost to the Contractor. 

(h) The advance payment is delayed. 

(i) The effects on the Contractor of any of the Employer’s Risks. 

(j) The Project Manager unreasonably delays issuing a Certificate of 

Completion. 

40.2. If a Compensation Event would cause additional cost or would prevent the work 

being completed before the Intended Completion Date, the Contract Price shall 

be increased and/or the Intended Completion Date shall be extended. The 

Project Manager shall decide whether and by how much the Contract Price shall 

be increased and whether and by how much the Intended Completion Date shall 

be extended. 

40.3. As soon as information demonstrating the effect of each Compensation Event 

upon the Contractor’s forecast cost has been provided by the Contractor, it shall 

be assessed by the Project Manager, and the Contract Price shall be adjusted 

accordingly. If the Contractor’s forecast is deemed unreasonable, the Project 

Manager shall adjust the Contract Price based on the Project Manager’s own 
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forecast. The Project Manager shall assume that the Contractor shall react 

competently and promptly to the event. 

40.4. The Contractor shall not be entitled to compensation to the extent that the 

Employer’s interests are adversely affected by the Contractor’s not having given 

early warning or not having cooperated with the Project Manager. 

 

41. Payments 

 

41.1. Payments shall be adjusted for deductions for advance payments & its interests 

and retention. The Employer shall pay the Contractor the amounts certified by 

the Project Manager according to each certificate. 

41.2. If an amount certified is increased in a later certificate or as a result of an award 

by the Adjudicator or an Arbitrator same shall be paid to contractor. 

41.3. Unless otherwise stated, all payments and deductions shall be paid or charged 

in the proportions of currencies comprising the Contract Price. 

41.4. Items of the Works for which no rate or price has been entered in shall not be 

paid for by the Employer and shall be deemed covered by other rates and prices 

in the Contract. 

 

42. Tax 

 

42.1. The rates quoted by the Contractor shall be deemed to be inclusive of all the 

taxes, levies, etc. including GST including their variations as notified by the 

concerned authority from time to time, and also of all the new taxes and levies 

that may be imposed that the Contractor will have to pay for the performance of 

this Contract. The Employer on behalf of the Employer will perform such duties 

in regard to the deduction of such taxes at source as per applicable law. 

42.2. The Contractor shall comply with the proper bye-laws and legal orders of the 

local body or public authority under the jurisdiction of which the work is 

executed and pay all fees and charges for which he may be liable. Nothing extra 

shall be payable on this account. 

(j) The rates quoted by the Contractor shall be deemed to be inclusive of all the 

prevailing taxes/octroi that the Contractor has to pay for performance of this 

contract. The Employer shall perform such duties in regard to the deduction 

of such taxes as per statutory deduction requirements at the source of 

payment as per applicable rules. 

42.3. 42.3. 

(i) Exemptions: The bidder shall refer such notifications/circulars/orders of 

the Government of India issued from time to time and shall quote his 

rates accordingly considering the exemptions available. The Employer 

will give the necessary certificates to the selected bidders to claim the 

exemption on specific requests made by the Contractor. Any 

conditional bids in this regard will not be accepted. The quoted rates 

should be based on the exemptions available and it will be responsibility 

of the Contractor to avail the exemptions, as per the contents of the 



PART III: CONDITIONS OF CONTRACT AND CONTRACT FORMS 

109 

 

 

notifications/circulars/orders, the Employers responsibility being 

limited to the issue of necessary certificates and will not take any 

responsibility of any kind in this regard. 

(ii) It may also be noted that if the Government of India announces any 

exemptions on any statutory levies in future also during the tenure of the 

Contract, all the benefits accruing in view of such further exemptions of 

any kind on the taxes, shall be passed on to the Employer. 

 

43. Currencies 

 

43.1. Where payments are made in currencies other than Indian Rupees (INR), the 

exchange rates used for calculating the amounts to be paid shall be the exchange 

rates stated in the Contractor’s Bid. 

 

44. Price Adjustment 

 

44.1. Prices shall be adjusted for fluctuations in the cost of inputs only if provided for 

in the PCC. If so provided, the amounts certified in each payment certificate, 

before deducting for Advance Payment, shall be adjusted by applying the 

respective price adjustment factor to the payment amounts due in each currency. 

The following conditions shall apply: 

(a) No price increase will be allowed beyond the original completion date unless 

covered by an extension of time awarded by the Employer under the terms of 

the Contract. No price increase will be allowed for periods of delay for which 

the Contractor is responsible. The Employer will, however, be entitled to any 

price decrease occurring during such periods of delay. 

(b) Deleted. 

(c) No price adjustment shall be payable on the portion of the Contract price 

paid to the Contractor as an advance payment. 

Base, Current and Provisional Indices: the base cost and indices or prices shall 

be those prevailing on the day 28 days prior to the latest date for submission of 

Bid. Current indices or prices shall be those prevailing on the quarter for which 

a particular interim Payment Certificate is related. If at any time the current 

indices are not available, no provisional escalation will be payable on the basis 

of indices of the previous quarter in absence of non-publication of indices for 

concerned quarter by the RBI. Escalation amount will be payable to the 

Contractor when the current indices become available. 

Adjustable amount: The adjustable amount of each Interim Payment Certificate 

shall be the difference between (i) the amount which, in the opinion of the 

Employer’s 

Representative, shall be due to the contractor including the amount at base rates 

and prices of the schedule works carried out but excluding provisional sums and 

the value of materials on the site, and (ii) the amount as calculated in (i) above 

and included in the last preceding interim payment certificate issued by the 

Employer’s Representative. The adjustable amount shall exclude payments to 
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nominated sub-contractors and any other amounts based upon actual cost or 

current prices. 

Adjusted Amount: The adjusted amount of each payment certificate shall be 

determined by applying the price adjustment factor to the adjustable amount, 

and shall become payable to the contractor subject to any deductions there from 

for retention money, liquidated damages and any other monies due to the 

Employer from the Contractor including the recovery of advance mobilization, 

loan if any. 

If the Contractor fails to complete the Works within the Time for Completion, 

adjustments of prices thereafter shall be made using either each index or price 

applicable on the date 49 days prior to the expiry of the Time for Completion, 

or the current index or price, whichever is more favorable to the Employer, 

provided that, if an extension of time is granted in accordance with the relevant 

Sub-Clause the above provision shall apply to the extended time for completion. 

44.2. If the value of the index is changed after it has been used in a calculation, the 

calculation shall be corrected and an adjustment made in the next payment 

certificate. The index value shall be deemed to take account of all changes in 

cost due to fluctuations in costs. 

 

45. Retention 

 

45.1. The Employer shall retain from each payment due to the Contractor the 

proportion stated in the PCC until Completion of the whole of the Works. 

45.2. Upon the issue of a Certificate of Completion of the Works by the Project 

Manager, in accordance with GCC 52.1, half the total amount retained shall be 

repaid to the Contractor and half when the Defects Liability Period has passed 

and the Project Manager has certified that all Defects notified by the Project 

Manager to the Contractor before the end of this period have been corrected. 

The Contractor may substitute retention money with an unconditional bank 

guarantee. 

 

46. Liquidated Damages 

 

46.1. The Contractor shall pay liquidated damages to the Employer as compensation 

for delay at the rate per day stated in the PCC for each day that the Completion 

Date is later than the Intended Completion Date. The total amount of liquidated 

damages shall not exceed the amount defined in the PCC. The Employer may 

deduct liquidated damages from payments due to the Contractor. Payment of 

liquidated damages shall not affect the Contractor’s liabilities. 

46.2. If the Intended Completion Date is extended after liquidated damages have been 

paid, the Project Manager shall correct any overpayment of liquidated damages 

by the Contractor by adjusting the next payment certificate. The Contractor shall 

be paid interest on the overpayment, calculated from the date of payment to the 

date of repayment, at the rates specified in GCC 40.1. 
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47. Bonus 

 

47.1. The Contractor shall be paid a Bonus calculated at the rate per calendar day 

stated in the PCC for each day (less any days for which the Contractor is paid 

for acceleration) that the Completion is earlier than the Intended Completion 

Date. The Project Manager shall certify that the Works are complete, although 

they may not be due to be complete. 

 

48. Advance Payment 

 

48.1. The Employer shall make advance payment of not more five percent of the 

estimated cost put to tender or five percent of tender value whichever is more 

may be given with the approval of the competent authority, if requested by the 

contractor in writing within one month of the order to commence the work as 

stated in the PCC by the date stated in the PCC, against provision by the 

Contractor of an unconditional bank guarantee bond in a form and by a bank 

acceptable to the Employer in amounts and currencies equal to 110% to the 

advance payment amount. The bank guarantee shall remain effective until the 

advance payment has been repaid, but the amount of the bank guarantee shall 

be progressively reduced by the amounts repaid by the Contractor. Interest on 

mobilization advance shall be levied as per the Government Notification and as 

amended prior to conclusion of this contract. The amount of mobilization 

advance, if paid to the contractor, shall be recovered from each monthly bill / 

running account bill payable to the contractor for the work done so that the 

entire amount is recovered before completion of 60% of the Contract value. In 

case of any difficulty in recovering the advance, it shall be recovered from the 

bank guarantee given by the Contractor. The Contractor may, at his option, can 

repay the advance earlier by increasing the percentage rate of deductions from 

invoice raised. 

48.2. The Contractor is to use the advance payment only to pay for Equipment, Plant, 

Materials, and mobilization expenses required specifically for execution of the 

Contract. The Contractor shall demonstrate that advance payment has been used 

in this way by supplying copies of invoices or other documents to the Project 

Manager. 

48.3. The advance payment shall be recovered at a rate of minimum of 10 % (ten 

percent) of the amount of advance payment from the first and every subsequent 

bills until the full advance paid has been recovered. However the Project 

Manager has the liberty to recover more than 10 % amount if he feels the pattern 

of submission of bills of the contractor warrants deduction of more amount for 

recovery of advance amount. If the advance amount is not recovered fully 

before the intended time of completion, penalty interest @ 8% will be recovered 

for the outstanding amount. 
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49. Securities 

 

49.1. The Performance Security shall be provided to the Employer no later than the 

date specified in the Letter of Acceptance and shall be issued in an amount 

specified in the PCC, by a bank acceptable to the Employer, and denominated 

in the types and proportions of the currencies in which the Contract Price is 

payable. The Performance Security shall be valid until a date 28 days from the 

date of issue of the Certificate of Completion in the case of a bank guarantee. 

 

50. Day works 

 

50.1. If applicable, the Day works rates in the Contractor’s Bid shall be used for small 

additional amounts of work only when the Project Manager has given written 

instructions in advance for additional work to be paid for in that way. 

50.2. All work to be paid for as Day works shall be recorded by the Contractor on 

forms approved by the Project Manager. Each completed form shall be verified 

and signed by the Project Manager within two days of the work being done. 

50.3. The Contractor shall be paid for Day works subject to obtaining signed Day 

works forms. 

 

51. Cost of Repairs 

 

51.1. Loss or damage to the Works or Materials to be incorporated in the Works 

between the Start Date and the end of the Defects Correction periods shall be 

remedied by the Contractor at the Contractor’s cost if the loss or damage arises 

from the Contractor’s acts or omissions. 

 

E. Finishing the Contract 

52. Completion 

 

52.1. The Contractor shall request the Project Manager to issue a certificate of 

Completion of the Works, and the Project Manager shall do so upon deciding 

that the work is completed. 

 

53. Taking Over 

 

53.1. The Employer shall take over the Site and the Works within seven days of the 

Project Manager’s issuing a certificate of Completion. 

 

54. Final Account 

 

54.1. The Contractor shall supply the Project Manager with a detailed account of the 

total amount that the Contractor considers payable under the Contract before the 

end of the Defects Liability Period. The Project Manager shall issue a Defects 

Liability Certificate and certify any final payment that is due to the Contractor 
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within 56 days of receiving the Contractor’s account if it is correct and 

complete. If it is not, the Project Manager shall issue within 56 days a schedule 

that states the scope of the corrections or additions that are necessary. If the 

Final Account is still unsatisfactory after it has been resubmitted, the Project 

Manager shall decide on the amount payable to the Contractor and issue a 

payment certificate. 

 

55. Operating and Maintenance Manuals 

 

55.1. If “as built” Drawings and/or operating and maintenance manuals are required, 

the Contractor shall supply them within 14 days after completion of the 

component/ milestone. 

 

. 

 

55.2. If the Contractor does not supply the Drawings and/or manuals by the dates 

stated in GCC 55.1, or they do not receive the Project Manager’s approval, the 

Project Manager shall withhold 5% of the next interim payment due to the 

Contractor. 

 

56. Termination 

 

56.1. The Employer or the Contractor may terminate the Contract if the other party 

causes a fundamental breach of the Contract. 

56.2. Fundamental breaches of Contract shall include, but shall not be limited to, the 

following: 

(a) the Contractor stops work for 28 days when no stoppage of work is 

shown on the current Program and the stoppage has not been authorized 

by the Project Manager; 

(b) the Project Manager instructs the Contractor to delay the progress of the 

Works, and the instruction is not withdrawn within 28 days; 

(c) the Employer or the Contractor is made bankrupt or goes into liquidation 

other than for a reconstruction or amalgamation; 

(d) a payment certified by the Project Manager is not paid by the Employer 

to the Contractor within 84 days of the date of the Project Manager’s 

certificate; atleast 15 days before the expiry of 84 days’ time period, the 

contractor should address a letter informing the same and requesting for 

early release of payment. 

(e) the Project Manager gives Notice that failure to correct a particular 

Defect is a fundamental breach of Contract and the Contractor fails to 

correct it within a reasonable period of time determined by the Project 

Manager; 

(f) the Contractor does not maintain a Security, which is required; and 
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(g) the Contractor has delayed the completion of the Works by the number 

of days for which the maximum amount of liquidated damages can be 

paid, as defined in the PCC. 

(h) if the Contractor, in the judgment of the Employer has engaged in 

corrupt or fraudulent practices in competing for or in executing the 

Contract, pursuant to GCC 57.1. 

56.3. When either party to the Contract gives notice of a breach of Contract to the 

Project Manager for a cause other than those listed under GCC 56.2 above, the 

Project Manager shall decide whether the breach is fundamental or not. 

56.4. Notwithstanding the above, the Employer may terminate the Contract for 

convenience. 

56.5. If the Contract is terminated, the Contractor shall stop work immediately, make 

the Site safe and secure, and leave the Site as soon as reasonably possible. 

 

57. Fraud and Corruption 

 

57.1. GSCDL requires Contractors, Subcontractors, manufacturers & Suppliers, 

observe the highest standard of ethics during the procurement and execution of 

contract(s). In pursuit of this policy, the GSCDL: 

(a) defines, for the purposes of this provision, the terms set forth below as 

follows: 

(i) “corrupt practice” means the offering, giving, receiving, or soliciting, 

directly or indirectly, anything of value to influence improperly the 

actions of another party; 

(ii) “fraudulent practice” means any act or omission, including a 

misrepresentation, that knowingly or recklessly misleads, or attempts to 

mislead, a party to obtain a financial or other benefit or to avoid an 

obligation; 

(iii) “coercive practice” means impairing or harming, or threatening to 

impair or harm, directly or indirectly, any party or the property of the 

party to influence improperly the actions of a party; 

(iv) “collusive practice” means an arrangement between two or more parties 

designed to achieve an improper purpose, including influencing 

improperly the actions of another party. 

(b) will cancel the allocated contract if GSCDL determines at any time that 

representatives of the Contractor or sub-contractors if permitted under 

this contract are found to be engaged in corrupt, fraudulent, collusive or 

coercive practices during the procurement or the execution of that 

contract, without the Contractor having taken timely and appropriate 

action satisfactory to the GSCDL and or competent authority to remedy 

the situation the said contract would be terminated; and 

(c) will sanction a firm or individual, including declaring them ineligible, 

either indefinitely or for a stated period of time, to be awarded a GSCDL 

financed contract if it at any time determines that they have, directly or 
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through an agent, engaged in corrupt, fraudulent, collusive or coercive 

practices in competing for, or in executing, a GSCDL-financed contract. 

 

58. Payment upon Termination 

 

58.1. If the Contract is terminated because of a fundamental breach of Contract by the 

Contractor, the Project Manager shall issue a certificate for the value of the work 

done and Materials ordered less advance payments received up to the date of 

the issue of the certificate and less the percentage to apply to the value of the 

work not completed, as indicated in the PCC. Additional Liquidated Damages 

shall not apply. If the total amount due to the Employer exceeds any payment 

due to the Contractor, the difference shall be a debt payable to the Employer. 

The Contractor shall comply with all applicable national and local 

environmental laws and regulations. 

The Contractor shall (a) establish an operational system for managing 

environmental impacts, (b) carry out all the monitoring and mitigating measures 

as set forth in Project’s Environmental Management Plan (EMP), attached here 

to as Appendix 1 (the actual costs for the implementation of such measures shall 

be reimbursed by the Employer from provision sums). The contractor shall 

submit to the Employer quarterly report on the carrying out of such measures. 

The Contractor Shall :(a) comply with all applicable labor laws, and (b) provide 

equal pay for men and women for work of equal value or type. 

The Contractor shall not employ child labor, as defined in national legislation 

for construction and maintenance activities. 

The Contractor shall give priority to the employment of local people, who meet 

the job and efficiency requirements, for the Contract works. 

The Contractor shall not employ for the contract works (a) any person that has 

relationship with any of the officials of the Contractor (i.e., spouses or first 

blood relations), and (b) any person who retired, within the last two years, as a 

gazette officer from any department of the government of Sikkim. 

58.2. If the Contract is terminated for the Employer’s convenience or because of a 

fundamental breach of Contract by the Employer, the Project Manager shall 

issue a certificate for the value of the work done, Materials ordered, the 

reasonable cost of removal of Equipment, repatriation of the Contractor’s 

personnel employed solely on the Works, and the Contractor’s costs of 

protecting and securing the Works, and less advance payments received up to 

the date of the certificate. 

 

59. Property 

 

59.1. All Materials on the Site, Plant, Equipment, Temporary Works, and Works shall 

be deemed to be the property of the Employer if the Contract is terminated 

because of the Contractor’s default. 



PART III: CONDITIONS OF CONTRACT AND CONTRACT FORMS 

116 

 

 

60. Release from Performance 

 

60.1. If the Contract is frustrated by the outbreak of war or by any other event entirely 

outside the control of either the Employer or the Contractor, the Project 

Manager shall certify that the Contract has been frustrated. The Contractor shall 

make the Site safe and stop work as quickly as possible after receiving this 

certificate and shall be paid for all work carried out before receiving it and for 

any work carried out afterwards to which a commitment was made. 

 

61. Suspension of Loan or Credit 

 

61.1. deleted 

 

62. Eligibility 

 

The Contractor shall have the Indian nationality. The Contractor shall be deemed to 

have the nationality of a country if the Contractor is a citizen or is constituted, or 

incorporated, and operates in conformity with the provisions of the laws of that country. 

This criterion shall also apply to the determination of the nationality of proposed 

subcontractors or suppliers for any part of the Contract including related services. 

62.1. The materials, equipment and services to be supplied under the Contract shall 

have their origin in India and all expenditures under the Contract will be limited to 

such materials, equipment, and services. At the Employer’s request, the Contractor 

may be required to provide evidence of the origin of materials, equipment and 

services. 

62.2. For purposes of GCC 62.2, “origin” means the place where the materials and 

equipment are mined, grown, produced or manufactured, and from which the 

services are provided. Materials and equipment are produced when, through 

manufacturing, processing, or substantial or major assembling of components, a 

commercially recognized product results that differs substantially in its basic 

characteristics or in purpose or utility from its components. 

 

63. Indemnities 

 

63.1. Each party shall be liable for and indemnify the other Party against losses, 

expenses and claims for loss or damage to physical property, personal injury, 

and death caused by his own acts or omissions, subject to the exception defined 

in Clause 63.3. 

63.2. Notwithstanding Clause 63.1 above, the Contractor shall be solely responsible 

for and shall indemnify and hold harmless the Employer from and against all 

claims, liabilities and costs of action in respect of injury to or both of any person 

in the employment of the Contractor or any of his Subcontractors subject to 

exceptions defined in clause 63.3. 

63.3. The “exceptions” referred to in Clause 63.2 are: 
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a. the permanent use or occupation of land by the Works, or any part thereof, 

 

b. the right of the Employer to execute the Works, or any part thereof, on, over, 

under, in or through any land 

 

c. damage to property which is the unavoidable result of the execution and 

completion of the Works, or the remedying of any defects therein, in accordance with 

the Contract, and 

 

d. death or injury to persons or loss of or damage to property resulting from any 

act or neglect of the Employer, or his agents, servants or other contractors, not being employed 

by the Contractor, or in respect of any claims, proceedings, damages, costs, charges and 

expenses in respect thereof or in relation thereto or, whether the injury or damage was 

contributed to by the Contractor, his servants or agents, such part of the said injury or damage 

as may be just and equitable having regard to the extent of the responsibility of the Employer, 

his servants or agents or other contractors for the injury or damage. 

 

64. Indemnities 

 

Deleted 

 

65. Royalties 

 

65.1. Except otherwise stated, the Contractor shall pay all tonnage and other royalty charges 

and other payments or compensation, if any for getting stone, sand, gravel, clay or other 

materials required for the works. 

 

66. Third Party Inspection and Testing 

 

66.1. The representative of the concerned independent consultant appointed by the 

Employer will undertake independent third party inspections and testing for supply 

and installation pipes and valves used for water supply and sewerage, pumps and 

motors and all works and any civil structure or material or work as may be 

applicable and as desired by the Project Manager. The Contractor shall be wholly 

responsible to make his own arrangements with the approved third party inspection 

agencies for carrying out the required tests. The Contractor shall be responsible to 

obtain permission for and provide all facilities to such agency for carrying out such 

inspections or testing as may be required. The Third Party Inspection charges of 

the agency only will be paid by the employer and all the other costs for such 

independent inspection and testing shall be borne by the contractor. 

66.2. A mutually agreed quality assurance plan with minimum requirements as per 

Indian Standards will be developed which provides for inspection and certification 

by the third party inspection agency at specified times. 

66.3. No material shall be delivered to the site without formal inspection or testing 

unless otherwise waived in writing by the Project Manager with a certificate issued 
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by the contractor, which is endorsed by the Engineer that the item confirms to the 

requirement of contract in all respects. 

66.4. The Employer or his authorized representative may make inspections at any of the 

manufacturing or shipping points at any time in addition to the schedule provided 

in this specification at the cost of Employer. However, during such inspection, if 

it is found that any of the items are not being supplied, manufactured or 

transported in accordance with the specifications, the contractor shall bear all 

expenses including fees incurred by the employer in respect of such inspection. 

66.5. The contractor shall perform or make arrangements for all tests when requested by 

the Employer. 

66.6. The Contractor shall agree with the Project Manager on the time and place for the 

inspection of any materials or plant. The Project Manager shall give the 

contractor not less than 24 hours’ notice of his intention to carry out inspection or 

to attend the tests. If the Project Manager or his duly authorized representative does 

not attend on the date agreed, the Contractor may, unless otherwise instructed by 

the Project Manager, proceed with the test reports. 

66.7. If at the time and place agreed in accordance with as mentioned in the clause 66.4 

and 66.6, the materials or Plant if, as a result of the inspection or testing referred 

to in this Clause, the Project Manger determines that the materials or plant are 

defective or otherwise not in accordance with the contract, he may reject the 

materials or plant and shall notify the contractor there of immediately. The notice 

shall state the Project Manager’s observations with reasons. The Contractor shall 

then promptly make good the defect or replace the same. It the Project Manager so 

requests, the tests of such material or plant shall be made or repeated under the 

same terms and conditions. All costs incurred by the Project Manager or the Third 

Party inspection agency for the inspection of the tests shall be determined by the 

Project Manager and shall be recoverable from the contractor and may be deducted 

from any money’s due that the Contractor and the Project Manager shall notify the 

Contractor accordingly. 

66.8. Any inspection carried out by the Project Manager shall not relieve the contractor 

of his obligations under the contract. 

 

67. Licenses for Explosives 

 

67.1. The Contractor should take necessary licenses under the current explosive rules 

to enable him to manufacture and process the quantity of gunpowder / explosive 

and perform the blasting as necessary according to prevailing rules. 

 

68. Indemnities 

 

Deleted 
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69. Incomplete or unattended defective works or delays 

 

The Employer has the right to get the uncompleted works done by other competent contractors 

at the risk and cost of the contractor in the following circumstances: 

 

a) If the contract is terminated for the reasons attributable to the contractor 

b) If the Contractor has delayed the work as per the schedule with no justifiable reasons. 

c) If the Contractor fails to correct any defects in the work within the period stated in the 

defects notice sent by the Project Manager to the Contractor. 

d) If the Contractor does not meet any of its obligations within the time frame of the 

contract specified in section 7 GCC or section 8 PCC 

 

70. Contractor’s General Responsibilities 

 

70.1. The Contractor shall, with due care and diligence, execute and complete the 

Works and remedy any defects therein accordance with the provisions of the 

Contract. The Contractor shall provide all superintendence, labour, materials, 

Plant, Contractor’s Equipment and all other things, whether of a temporary or 

permanent nature, execution, completion and remedying of any defects, so far as 

the necessity for providing the same is specified in or is reasonably to be inferred 

from the Contract. 

70.2. The Contractor shall promptly notify the Employer, of any error, omission, fault or 

other defect in the design of or Specification for the Works which he discovers 

when reviewing the Contract or executing the Works. 

70.3. The Contractor shall take full responsibility for the adequacy, stability and safety 

of all Site operations and methods of construction. Provided that the Contractor 

shall not be responsible (except as stated hereunder or as may be otherwise 

agreed) for the design or specification of Permanent Works, not prepared by the 

Contractor. Where the Contract expressly provides that part of the Permanent 

Works shall be designed by the Contractor, he shall be fully responsible for that 

part of such Works, notwithstanding any approval by the Employer. 

70.4. The Contractor shall provide all necessary superintendence during the execution of 

the Works and as long as thereafter as the Project Manager may consider 

necessary for the proper fulfilling of the Contractor’s obligations under the 

Contract. The Contractor, or a competent and authorized representative approved 

of by the Project Manager, which approval may at any time be withdrawn, shall 

give his whole time to the superintendence of the Works. Such authorized 

representative shall receive, on behalf of the Contractor, instructions from the 

Engineer. If the approval of the representative is withdrawn by the Project 

Manager, the Contractor shall, as soon as is practicable, having regard to the 

requirement of replacing him as hereinafter mentioned, after receiving notice of 

such withdrawal, remove the representative from the Works and shall not thereafter 

employ him again on the Works in any capacity and shall replace him by another 

representative approved by the Project Manager. 

70.5. The Contractor shall be responsible for: 
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(a) the accurate setting-out of the Works in relation to original points, lines 

and levels of reference given by the Engineer in writing, 

(b) the correctness, subject as above mentioned, of the position, levels, 

dimensions and alignment of all parts of the Works, and 

(c) The provision of all necessary instruments, appliances and labour in 

connection with the foregoing responsibilities. 

If, any time during the execution of the Works, any error appears in the position, 

levels, dimensions or alignment of any part of the Works, the Contractor, on being 

required so to do by the Project Manager, shall, at his own cost, rectify such error to the 

satisfaction of the Project Manager, unless such error is based on incorrect data supplied 

in writing by the Project Manager, in which case the Project Manager shall determine 

an addition to the Contract Price as per the relevant provisions of the contract and shall 

notify the Contractor accordingly. 

The checking of any setting-out or of any line by the Project Manager shall not in any 

way relieve the Contractor of his responsibility for the accuracy thereof and the 

Contractor shall carefully protect and preserve all bench-marks, sigh-rails, pegs and 

other things used in setting-out the Works. 

 

71. Water for works and workforce 

 

71.1. The contractor at his own expenses should provide water from municipal mains or 

other sources for the use of work and workmen. 

 

72. Project Manager and Project Manager’s representative 

 

72.1. The Project Manager is the representative of the Employer and the contractor is 

bound to take all his instructions as that of the employer. The Project Manager shall 

represent the employer in all dealings with the Contractor concerning the work, 

including administering contract, certifying payments due to the contractor, issuing 

and valuing variations, awarding extension of times and valuing compensation 

events as per the powers delegated to him by the employer and after taking 

necessary approvals. 

72.2. The Project Manager’s representative who would be appointed to assist the 

Project Manager would be notified to the Contractor. The Employer / Project 

Manager may employ any other additional representative for managing this 

contract. 

72.3. The Project Manager may from time to time delegate any of his duties and 

authorities, to his representative, and he may at any time revoke such delegation. 

Any such delegation or revocation shall be in writing and shall not take effect until 

copy thereof has been delivered to the Employer and the Contractor. 

72.4. The Project Manger’s representative may appoint any number of persons to assist 

the Project Manager’s representative in carrying out his duties. He shall notify to 

the Contractor the names, duties and scope of authority of such persons. 
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73. Alterations, Additions and Omissions 

 

73.1. The Project Manager shall make any variation of the form, quality or quantity of 

the Works or any part thereof that may, in his opinion, be necessary and for that 

purpose, or if for any reason it shall, in his opinion appropriate he shall have the 

authority to instruct the Contractor to do and the Contractor shall do any of the 

following: 

(a) increase or decrease the quantity of any work included in the Contract, 

(b)omit any such work 

(c) change the character or quality or kind of any such work, 

(d)change the levels, lines, position and dimensions of any part of the Works, 

(e) execute additional work of any kind necessary for the completion of the Works, 

or 

(f) change any specified sequence or timing of construction of any part of the 

Works. 

No such variation shall in any way vitiate or invalidate the Contract, but the 

effect, if any, of all such variations shall be valued in accordance with relevant 

provisions of the Contract. Provided that where the issue of an instruction to vary 

the Works is necessitated by some default of or breach of contract by the 

Contractor or for which he is responsible, any additional cost attributable to such 

default shall be borne by the Contractor. 

 

74. Deleted 

 

75. Site Order Book 

 

75.1. A site order book is to be maintained at site by the contractor for issue of necessary 

instructions during the site visits. It is binding on the contractor to enforce such 

instructions and if the compliance of such instructions would have financial 

implications, the contractor need to inform the Project Manager on the financial 

implications on executing the instruction, obtain his permission, and sanction 

before executing such works. No additional payment would be made on the basis 

of the instructions of the site order alone. The site in charge of the Employer and 

the Contractor should sign both while issuing the order and after compliance. The 

site order book needs to be serially numbered. The site order should be maintained 

by the contractor throughout the work and submitted to the Project Manager before 

the payment of the final bill. 

 

76. Measurement Book: 

 

76.1. All measurements should be recorded directly in the Measurement Book as per the 

instructions printed in the Measurement Book. 
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77. Sikkim State Building & Other Construction Workers Welfare Fund: 

 

77.1. The contractor for this work shall be bound to remit an amount equal to 1 % (one 

percent) of the value of the work to be done on account of this contract, excluding 

cost of departmental materials, towards the employer’s (Contractor) contribution 

to Sikkim State Building & Other Construction Workers Welfare Fund as provided 

in Sikkim Construction Workers Fund. The amount shall be recovered 

proportionately from the part bills and the final bill for the work and the contractor 

shall abide by such recoveries. 

 

78. Safety, Security and Protection of the Environment 

 

78.1. Accidents – Hoarding – Lighting –Observations – Watchmen: 

 

The contractor shall be responsible for the safety of the labour employed by him and he shall 

be liable for payment of necessary compensation in the case of accidents as per workers 

compensation act. 

 

a) When excavations have been made or obstacles have been put in public through-fares 

or in places where there is likelihood of accidents, the contractor shall comply with any 

requirement of law on the subject and shall provide suitable Hoarding- Lighting, 

watchmen when and where necessary or required by the Project Manager or by any 

duly constituted authority, for protection of works and safety and convenience of the 

public or others. In case of excavations on roads, a traffic diversion plan should be made 

and got approved by the concerned authorities. 

b) It shall be the contractor’s sole responsibility to protect the public and its employees 

against the accident from any cause and he shall indemnify the Government against any 

claims for damages for injury to person or property, resulting from any such accidents 

and he shall, where the provisions of the Workmen’s Compensation Act apply, take 

steps to properly insure against any claims thereafter. 

c) On the occurrence of an accident which results in the death of any of the workmen 

employed by the contractor or which is so serious as to be likely to result in the death 

of any such workmen, the contractor shall within 24 hours of the happening of such 

accidents, intimate the employer in writing, the fact of such accident. The contractor 

shall indemnify Government against all loss or damage sustained by the Government 

resulting directly or indirectly from his failure to give intimation in the manner 

aforesaid including the penalties or fines if any payable by the Government as a 

consequence of Government’s failure to give notice under the Workmen’s 

Compensation Act or otherwise confirm to said Act in regard to such accident. 

d) In the event of an accident in respect of which compensation may become payable under 

the workmen’s Compensation Act VIII of 1923 whether by the Contractor or by the 

Government as principal it shall be lawful for the Project Manger to retain out of 

moneys due and payable to the contractor such sum or sums of money as may, the 

opinion of the Project Manager shall be final in regard or all matters arising under this 

clause. 
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78.2. Noise, Disturbance and Pollution: 

 

Works shall be carried out without unreasonable noise and disturbance. The Contractor shall 

indemnify the Employer from and against any liability for damages on account of noise or other 

disturbances created while executing the Works and from against all claims, demands, 

proceedings, damages, costs, charges and expenses whatsoever in regard or in relation to such 

liability. Necessary permissions as may be required from Pollution Control Board or any other 

regulatory authority shall have to be obtained by the Contractor for erecting and operating any 

plant or machinery and for other operations required for the execution of the Works in the 

Contract. 

 

78.3 Site Sanitation: 

 

The contractor should provide and erect prior to commencement of the work sufficient 

latrines for the use of workmen, both males and females and should keep the same disinfected 

and clean all times during the progress of the work and remove the same and restore to original 

ground on completion of the works. 

 

78.4 HIV/AIDS awareness and prevention program: 

 

It is obligatory as a part of the Contractor to carryout HIV / AIDS awareness and prevention 

program, and dissemination of information on worksites on risks of sexually transmitted 

diseases and HIV/AIDS as a part of health and safety measures for those employed under the 

Contract. 

 

78.5 The Contractor shall comply with all applicable environmental laws and regulations and 

the Contractor shall 

 

(a) establish an operational system for managing environmental impacts, 

 

(b) carry out all of the monitoring and mitigation measures set forth in the Initial Environmental 

Assessment (lEE) or Environmental Impact Assessment (EIA) and Environment Management 

Plan (EMP) attached hereto as Appendix 1 (c) allocate the budget required to ensure that such 

measures are carried out, and the actual costs for the implementation of such measures shall be 

reimbursed by the Employer to the Contractor from Provisional Sum. The Contractor shall 

submit to the Employer quarterly reports of the carrying out of such measures. 

 

79. Labour 

 

79.1. The contractor shall, unless otherwise provided in the Contract, make his own 

arrangements for the engagement of all staff and labour, local or other, and for their 

payment, housing, feeding and transport. 

79.2 It is mandatory to the contractor to register all the labours he is engaging at site 

with the concerned authorities. 

79.3 The Contractor shall, if required by the Project Manager, deliver to the Project 

Manager a return in detail, in such form and at such intervals as the Project Manager 
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may prescribe, showing the staff and the numbers of the several classes of labour 

from time to time employed by the Contractor on the Site and such other information 

as the Project Manager may require. 

 

80. Compliance with Labour Regulations 

 

80.1. During continuance of the contract, the Contractor and his sub-contractors shall 

abide at all times by all existing labour enactments and rules made there under, 

regulations, notifications and bye laws of the State or Central government or local 

authority and any other labour law (including rules), regulations, bye laws that may 

be passed or notification that may be issued under any labour law in future either 

by the State or the Central Government or the local authority. Salient features of 

some of the major labour law that are applicable to construction industry are given 

below. The contractor shall keep the Employer indemnified in case any action is 

taken against the Employer by the competent authority on account of contravention 

of any of the provisions of any Act or Rules made there under, regulations or 

notifications including amendments. If the Employer is caused to pay or reimburse, 

such amounts as may be necessary to cause or observe, or for non-observance of 

the provisions stipulated in the notifications/ bye laws/ Acts/ Rules/ Regulations 

including amendments, if any, on the part of the Contractor, the 

Engineer/Employer shall have the right to deduct any money due to the Contractor 

including his amount of performance security. The Employer/Engineer shall also 

have right to recover from the Contractor any sum required or estimated to be 

required for making good the loss or damage suffered by the Employer. 

80.2. The employees of the Contractor and the Sub Contractor in no case shall be 

treated as the Employees of the Employer at any point of time. 

80.3. Salient features of some major labor laws applicable to establishments engaged in 

building and other construction work: 

a) Workmen Compensation Act 1923: The Act provides for compensation in case of 

injury by accident arising out of and during the course of employment. 

b) Payment of Gratuity Act 1972: Gratuity is payable to an employee under the Act 

on satisfaction of certain conditions on separation if an employee has completed 5 

years’ service or more or on death the rate of 15 days wages for every completed 

year of service The Act is applicable to all establishments employing 10 or more 

employees. 

c) Employees P.F and Miscellaneous Provision Act 1952: The Act Provides for 

monthly contributions by the employer plus workers @ 10% or 8.33%. The 

benefits payable under the Act are: 

 Pension or family pension on retirement or death, as the case maybe 

 Deposit linked insurance on the death in harness of the worker. 

 Payment of P.F accumulation on retirement/death etc. 

d) Maternity Benefit Act 1951: The Act provides for leave and some other benefits to 

women employees in case of confinement or miscarriage etc. 
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e) Contract labour (Regulation and Abolition) Act 1970: The Act provides for certain 

welfare measures to be provided by the Contractor to contract labour and in case 

the Contractor fails to provide, the same are required to be provided, by the 

Principal Employer by Law. the Principal Employer is required to take Certificate 

of Registration and the Contractor is required to take license from the designated 

officer. The Act is applicable to the establishments or Contractor of Principal 

Employer if they employ 20 or more contract labour. 

f) Minimum Wages Act 1948: The Employer is supposed to pay not less than the 

Minimum Wages fixed by appropriate Government as per provisions of the Act if 

the employment is a scheduled employment as per the act. 

g) Payment of Wages Act 1936: It lays down as to by what date the wages are to be 

paid, when it will be paid and what deductions can be made from the wages of the 

workers. 

h) Equal Remuneration Act 1979: The Act provides for payment of equal wages for 

work of equal nature to male and Female workers and for not making 

discrimination against Female Employees in the matters of transfers, training and 

promotions etc. 

i) Payment of Bonus Act 1965: The Act is applicable to all establishments employing 

20 or more employees. The Act provides for payments of annual bonus subject to 

a minimum of 8.33% of wages and maximum of 20% of wages to employees 

drawing Rs.3500/ per month or less. The bonus to be paid to employees getting 

Rs.2500/- per month or above upto Rs.3500/- per month shall be worked out by 

taking wages as Rs.2500/- per month only. The Act does not apply to certain 

establishments. The newly set-up establishments are exempted for five years in 

certain circumstances. Some of the State Governments have reduced the 

employment size from 20 to 10 for the purpose of applicability of this Act. 

j) Industrial Disputes Act 1947: The Act lays down the machinery and procedure for 

resolution of Industrial disputes, in what situations a strike or lock – out becomes 

illegal and what are the requirements for laying off or retrenching the employees 

or closing down the establishment. 

k) Industrial Employment (Standing Orders) Act 1946: It is applicable to all 

establishments employing 100 or more workmen (employment size reduced by 

some of the States and Central Government to 50) The Act provided for laying 

down rules governing the conditions of employment by the Employer on matters 

provided in the Act and get the same certified by the designated Authority. 

l) Trade Unions Act 1926: The Act lays down the procedure for registration of trade 

unions of workmen and employers. The Trade Unions registered under the Act 

have been given certain immunities from civil and criminal liabilities. 

m) Child Labour (Prohibition and Regulation) Act 1986: The Act prohibits 

employment of children below 14 years of age in certain occupations and processes 

and provides for regulation of employment of children in all other occupations and 

processes. Employment of Child Labour is prohibited in Building and Construction 

Industry. 
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n) Inter-State Migrant Workmen’s (Regulation of Employment and Conditions of 

Service) Act 1979: The Act is applicable to an establishment which employs 5 or 

more inter-state migrant workmen through an intermediary (who has recruited 

workmen in one state for employment in the establishment situated in another 

state). The Inter-State migrant workmen, in an establishment to which this Act 

becomes applicable, are required to be provided certain facilities such as housing, 

medical aid, traveling expenses from home upto establishment and back, etc. 

o) The Building and Other Construction Workers (Regulation of Employment and 

Conditions of Service) Act 1996 and the Cess Act of 1996: All the Establishments 

who carry on any building or other construction work and employs 10 or more 

workers are covered under this Act. All such establishments are required to pay 

cess at the rate not exceeding 2% of the cost of construction as may be modified 

by the Government. The Employer of the establishment is required to provide 

safety measures at the Building or construction work and other welfare measures, 

such as Canteens, First Aid facilities, Ambulance, housing accommodations for 

workers near the work place etc. The employer to whom the Act applies has to 

obtain a registration certificate from the Registering Officer appointed by the 

Government. 

p) Factories Act 1948: The Act lays down the procedure for approval at plans before 

setting up a factory, health and safety provisions, welfare provisions, working 

hours, annual earned leave and rendering information regarding accidents or 

dangerous occurrences to designated authorities. It is applicable to premises 

employing 10 persons or more with aide of power or 20 or more persons without 

the aid of power engaged in manufacturing process. 

80.4. Notwithstanding what is given in the above the acts as amended latest shall apply 

from time to time 

 

81. Fair Wage Clause: 

 

81.1. The following should be followed in respect of payment of wages to the labour. 

a) The contractor shall pay not less than fair wages to labourers engaged by him on the 

work. 

“ Fair Wages” means wage whether for time or piece work notified at the time of 

inviting Bids for the work and where such wages have not been so notified the wage 

prescribed by the Central PWD for the District in which the work is done”. 

b) The contractors shall not withstanding the provisions of any contract to the contrary 

cause to be paid a fair wage to labourers indirectly engaged on the work including any 

labour engaged by his subcontractor in connection with the said work as if he labourers 

had been immediately employed by him. 

c) In respect of all labour directly or indirectly employed in the works for the performance 

of the Contractor’s part of this agreement, the contractor shall comply with or cause to 

be complied with (the Central P W D Contractor’s labour) regulations made by 

Government in regard to payment of wages, wage period deduction from wages, 

recovery of wages not paid and deductions unauthorized made, maintenance of wages 
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register, other terms of employment, inspection and submission of periodical returns 

and all wages cards, publication of scale of wages and returns and all other matters of 

a like nature. 

d) The Deputy Programme Director or Subdivision Officer concerned shall have the right 

to deduct from the moneys due to the contractor and any sum required or estimated to 

be required for making good the loss suffered by a worker or workers by reasons of 

non-fulfilment of the conditions of the contract for the benefit of works, non-payment 

of wages or deductions made from his or their wages which are not justified by their 

terms of contract or non-observance of the regulations. 

e) Vis – a Vis the Central Government the Contractor shall be primary liable for all 

payment to be made under the observance of the regulations aforesaid without prejudice 

to his right to claim from this subcontractors. 

f) The regulation aforesaid shall be deemed to be a part of this contract and breach there 

shall, be a breach of this contract. 

 

82. Recovery of compensation paid to workmen 

 

In every case in which by virtue of the provisions sub section(1) of section 12, of the workmen’s 

compensation act 1923, Employer is obliged to pay compensation to a workman employed by 

the contractor, in execution of the works Employer will recover from the contractor, the amount 

of compensation so paid ; and without prejudice to the right of the Employer under sub section2 

of section 12 , of the said act Employer shall be at liberty to recover such amount or any part 

thereof by deducting it from the security deposit or any sum due to the Employer to the contract 

whether under this contract or otherwise. Employer shall not be bound to contest any claim 

made against it under sub section (1) Section 12 of the said act except on the written request of 

the contractor and upon his giving to Employer full security for all costs for which Employer 

become liable in consequence of contesting such claim. 

 

83. Ensuring Sikkim Labour Protection Act 2005: 

 

In every case in which by virtue of the provisions of Sikkim Labour Protection Act Employer 

shall be at liberty or to recover such amount or any part thereof by deducting it from the 

Security Deposit or any sum due by Employer to the contractor under this contract or otherwise. 

 

1. The contractor must employ local people whose nationality is not in doubt for execution 

of works in Sikkim. 

2. The labourers employed by the contractor should be of Indian origin only. 

3. The Contractor shall obtain a valid certificate of Registration under Sikkim Labour 

Protection Act 2005 (20 to 2005) and the rules made there under and contractor should 

abide by all provisions of the act and Rules aforesaid as may be required from time to 

time regarding wages and other working conditions. 

4. No labour below the age of 14 years shall be employed on the work and the contractor 

shall pay not less than fair wages to labourer engaged by him on the work. 

5. The contractor shall comply with the provisions of the payment of wages act 1936 

Minimum Wages Act 1948 Employees Labour (Regulation and Abolition) Act 1970 or 
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the modifications thereof or any other laws relating thereto and the rules made there 

under from time to time by the state Government. 
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Section 8 - PARTICULAR CONDITIONS OF CONTRACT 

The following Particular Conditions of Contract shall supplement the GCC. Whenever there 

is a conflict, the provisions herein shall prevail over those in the GCC. 
 

 

A. General 

 

GCC 1.1 (q) 
 

The Employer is CEO, GSCDL Level 5, Kissan Bazaar, Gangtok - 

737101, Sikkim 

 

GCC 1.1 (u) 
 

The Intended Completion Date for the whole of the Works shall be 6 

months. 

 

GCCs 1.1 (aa) & 

4.1 

 

The Project Manager is the Chief Technical Officer, GSCDL, Level 5, 

Kissan Bazaar. 

 

GCC 1.1 (cc) 
 

The Sites are located within Gangtok Municipal Limits in Sikkim, 

India 

 

GCC 1.1 (ff) 
 

The Start Date shall be 7 days from the date of signing the Agreement. 

 

GCC 1.1 (jj) 
 

The Works consist of SOLAR PANEL/STREET LIGHT IN AND 

AROUND GANGTOK 

 

GCC 2.2 
 

Sectional Completions are: Not allowed 

 

GCC 2.3(i) 
 

Any other written agreement reached between the Employer and 

contractor further to the award of contract shall be in line with the 

original bidding document only, there will be no contradiction with 

respect to the clauses, terms and conditions of the original conditions 

of the contract. The Environment Plan attached hereto as Appendix I 

shall also form part of the agreement 

 

The following documents also form part of the Contract: 

Environmental Management Plan, attached hereto as Appendix 1. 

 

GCC 3.1 
 

The language of the contract is English. 
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 The law that applies to the Contract is the law of Union of India and 

State of Sikkim. Where there is a conflict between the two, the laws of 

The Union of India shall prevail. 

 

 

GCC 8.1 
 

Schedule of other contractors: Nil. 

 

GCC 13.1.1 (b) 
 

Insurance for an additional sum of 15 per cent of replacement cost, to 

cover any additional costs of and incidental to the rectification of loss 

or damage including professional fees and the cost of demolishing and 

removing any part of the Works and of removing debris of whatsoever 

nature “it being understood that such insurance shall provide for 

compensation to be payable to rectify the loss or damage incurred” 

 

GCC 13.1.5 
 

Third Party Insurance: Insurance shall be for at least 1 % (one 

percent of the contract amount) subject to a minimum of Rs.20,00,000/- 

(Rs. 2 million) per occurrence with number of occurrences unlimited 

 

GCC 17.1 
 

The following shall be designed by the Contractor: Detailed working 

drawings of the following: 

 

Structural drawings, Elevations, Layout plan, Electrical, Plumbing, 

Landscaping, boundary fencing, Sound & security system arrangement, Rain 

water harvesting & Renewable energy system plan, etc. 

 

GCC 20.1 
 

The Site Possession Date(s) shall be: the site shall be handed over to 

the contractor within 15 days from the date of issue of instruction of 

work commencement. 

 

GCC 23.1 
 

Not applicable 

 

GCC 24.4 
 

Institution whose arbitration procedures shall be used: Indian 

Arbitration Act. 

 

B. Time Control 

 

GCC 25.3 
 

The amount to be withheld for late submission of an updated Program 

is an amount equal to 5 % of the next interim payments 

 

C. Quality Control 
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GCC 33.1 
 

The Defects Liability Period is: 1 year from the date of issue of 

Certificate of Completion. 

 

GCC 45.1 & 

 

 
 

GCC 45.2 

 

The proportion of payments retained from each payment shall be 10% 

(ten percent) of the payment amount, as Retention Money. No interest 

will be paid for the retention money. 

 

50% of retention money will be paid upon issue of Certificate of 

Completion and remaining 50% upon completion of defect liability 

period. The Contractor may substitute retention money with an 

“unconditional” bank guarantee. 

 

GCC 46.1 
 

In the event that the contractor fails to comply with the Intended Time 

of completion for the whole of the Works, or, if applicable, any section 

within the relevant time, then the Contractor shall pay liquidated 

damage to the Employer at the rate of 0.1% (one percent) per day. The 

maximum amount of liquidated damages for the whole of the works is 

10% (ten percent) of the final contract price. Whether the asset is put 

to use or not the Liquidated Damages will be levied for any delay in 

completion of works as a part of commitment on the part of the 

contractor. 

 

GCC 47 
 

Bonus : Not Applicable 

 

GCC 48.1 
 

The Advance Payments shall be: 5 % of the Contract Amount and shall 

be paid to the Contractor no later than 21 days after the submission of 

the required Bank Guarantee issued by a Nationalized Bank/Scheduled 

Bank. The mobilization advance cannot be claimed after the expiry of 

4 months from the date of agreement of this contract. 

 

GCC 48.3 
 

The advance payment shall be recovered at a rate of minimum of 10 

% (ten percent) of the amount of advance payment from the first and 

every subsequent bills until the full advance paid has been recovered. 

However the Project Manager has the liberty to recover more than 10 

% amount if he feels the pattern of submission of bills of the contractor 

warrants deduction of more amount for recovery of advance amount. 

If the advance amount is not recovered fully before the intended time 

of completion, penalty interest @ 8% will be recovered for the 

outstanding amount. 
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GCC 49.1 
 

The Performance Security in the form unconditional and irrevocable 

bank guarantee issued by a Nationalized Bank/Scheduled Bank 

located in India for an amount of 10 % of the Contract price. The 

performance security shall be valid up to 28 days beyond completion 

of defect liability period. 

 

E. Finishing the Contract 

 

GCC 56.2(b) 
 

The contractor has to approach the Project Manager at least 5 days 

before the expiry of time period of 28 days to get the revised 

instructions. 

 

GCC 56.2 (g) 
 

The maximum number of days is: 100 days. 

 

GCC 58.1 
 

The percentage to apply to the value of the work not completed, 

representing the Employer’s additional cost for completing the Works, 

is 20%. 
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Appendix-1 Environmental Monitoring Plan 
 

(Deleted) 
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Appendix-2 Environmental Management Plan 
 

 

Field 

 

Anticipated Impact 

 

Mitigation Measures 

 

Responsible 

for 

Mitigation 

 

Monitoring of 

Mitigation 

 

Sources of 

Materials 

 

Extraction of rocks and 

material may cause 

ground instability 

 

(i) Use quarry sites and 

sources permitted by 

government; 

 

(ii) Verify suitability of 

all material sources and 

obtain approval of 

GSCDL 

 

(iii) Submit to GSCDL 

on a monthly basis 

documentation of 

sources of materials. 

 

Construction 

Contractor 

 

Construction 

Contractor 

documentation 

 

Air Quality 
 

Emissions   from 

construction vehicles, 

equipment,    and 

machinery  used   for 

excavation    and 

construction resulting 

to dusts and increase in 

concentration    of 

vehicle-related 

pollutants  such    as 

carbon monoxide, 

sulfur oxides, 

particulate matter, 

nitrous oxides, and 

hydrocarbons) 

 

(i) Consult with GSCDL 

on the designated areas 

for stockpiling of clay, 

soils, gravel, and other 

construction materials; 

 

(ii) Damp down exposed 

soil and any stockpiled 

on site by spraying with 

water when necessary 

during dry weather; 

 

(iii) Bring materials 

(aggregates) as and 

when required; 

 

(iv) Use tarpaulins to 

cover sand and other 

loose material when 

transported by vehicles; 

 

(v) Fit all heavy 

equipment and 

machinery with air 

pollution control devices 

 

Construction 

Contractor 

 

(i) Location of 

stockpiles; 

 

(ii) Complaints 

from sensitive 

receptors; 

 

(iii) Heavy 

equipment and 

machinery with 

air pollution 

control devices; 

 

(iv) Ambient 

air for 

Respirable 

particulate 

matter (RPM) 

and suspended 

particulate 

matter (SPM); 

(v) Vehicular 

emissions such 

as sulphur 

dioxide (SO2), 



PART III: CONDITIONS OF CONTRACT AND CONTRACT FORMS 

135 

 

 

 

 

Field 

 

Anticipated Impact 

 

Mitigation Measures 

 

Responsible 

for 

Mitigation 

 

Monitoring of 

Mitigation 

  which are operating 

correctly; and 

 

(vi) Clean wheels and 

undercarriage of 

vehicles prior to leaving 

construction site. 

 nitrous oxides 

(NOx), carbon 

monoxide 

(CO),  and 

hydrocarbons 

 

Surface 

water quality 

 

Mobilization of settled 

silt materials, run-off 

from   stockpiled 

materials,     and 

chemical 

contamination from 

fuels and  lubricants 

during  construction 

works can contaminate 

nearby surface water 

quality. 

 

(i) Avoid stockpiling of 

earth fill especially 

during the monsoon 

season unless covered by 

tarpaulins or plastic 

sheets; 

 

(ii) Prioritize re-use of 

excess spoils and 

materials in the 

construction works. If 

spoils will be disposed, 

consult with GSCDL on 

designated disposal 

areas; 

 

(iii) Install temporary silt 

traps or sedimentation 

basins along the 

drainage leading to the 

water bodies; 

 

(iv) Place storage areas 

for fuels and lubricants 

away from any drainage 

leading to water bodies; 

 

(v) Dispose any wastes 

generated by 

construction activities in 

designated sites; and 

 

(vi) Conduct surface 

quality inspection 

according to the 

 

Construction 

Contractor 

 

(i) Areas for 

stockpiles, 

storage of fuels 

and lubricants 

and  waste 

materials; 

 

(ii) Number of 

silt traps 

installed along 

drainages 

leading to water 

bodies; 

 

(iii) Records of 

surface water 

quality 

inspection; 

 

(iv) Effectivenes

s of water 

management 

measures; 

 

(v) For inland 

water: 

suspended 

solids, oil and 

grease, 

biological 

oxygen demand 

(BOD), and 

coliforms. 
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Field 

 

Anticipated Impact 

 

Mitigation Measures 

 

Responsible 

for 

Mitigation 

 

Monitoring of 

Mitigation 

  Environmental 

Management Plan 

(EMP). 

  

 

Noise Levels 
 

Increase in noise level 

due to earth-moving 

and excavation 

equipment, and the 

transportation of 

equipment, materials, 

and people 

 

(i) Plan activities in 

consultation with 

GSCDL so that activities 

with the greatest 

potential to generate 

noise are conducted 

during periods of the day 

which will result in least 

disturbance; 

 

(ii) Provide prior 

information to the local 

public about the work 

schedule; 

 

(iii) Require horns not be 

used unless it is 

necessary to warn other 

road users or animals of 

the vehicle’s approach; 

 

(iv) Minimize noise 

from construction 

equipment by using 

vehicle silencers, fitting 

jackhammers with 

noise-reducing mufflers, 

and portable street 

barriers the sound 

impact to surrounding 

sensitive receptor; and 

 

(vi) Maintain maximum 

sound levels not 

exceeding 80 decibels 

(dbA) when measured at 

a distance of 10 m or 

more from the vehicle/s. 

 

Construction 

Contractor 

 

(i) Complaints 

from sensitive 

receptors; 

 

(ii) Use of 

silencers in 

noise- 

producing 

equipment and 

sound barriers; 

 

(iii) Equivalent 

day and night 

time noise 

levels 
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Field 

 

Anticipated Impact 

 

Mitigation Measures 

 

Responsible 

for 

Mitigation 

 

Monitoring of 

Mitigation 

 

Socio- 

Economic – 

Employment 

and income 

 

Generation    of 

contractual 

employment  and 

increase in local 

revenue 

 

(i) Employ at least 50% 

of the labour force, or to 

the maximum extent, 

local persons within the 

2-km immediate area if 

manpower is available; 

and 

 

(ii) Secure construction 

materials from local 

market. 

 

Construction 

Contractor 

 

(i) Employment 

records; 

 

 

(ii) records of 

sources of 

materials 

 

Occupational 

Health and 

Safety 

 

Occupational hazards 

which can arise during 

work 

 

(i) Develop and 

implement site-specific 

Health and Safety (H and 

S) Plan which will 

include measures such 

as: (a) excluding public 

from the site; (b) 

ensuring all workers are 

provided with and use 

Personal Protective 

Equipment; (c) H and S 

Training for all site 

personnel; (d) 

documented procedures 

to be followed for all site 

activities; and (e) 

documentation of work- 

related accidents; 

 

(ii) Ensure that qualified 

first-aid can be provided 

at all times. Equipped 

first-aid stations shall be 

easily accessible 

throughout the site; 

 

(iii) Provide medical 

insurance coverage for 

workers; 

 

Construction 

Contractor 

 

(i) Site-specific 

Health and 

Safety (H and 

S) Plan; 

 

(ii) Equipped 

first-aid 

stations; 

 

(iii) Medical 

insurance 

coverage for 

workers; 

 

(iv) Number of 

accidents; 

 

(v) Supplies of 

potable 

drinking water; 

 

(vi) Clean 

eating areas 

where workers 

are not exposed 

to hazardous or 

noxious 

substances; 

(vii) record of H 

and S 
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Field 

 

Anticipated Impact 

 

Mitigation Measures 

 

Responsible 

for 

Mitigation 

 

Monitoring of 

Mitigation 

  (iv) Secure all 

installations from 

unauthorized intrusion 

and accident risks; 

 

(v) Provide supplies of 

potable drinking water; 

 

(vi) Provide clean eating 

areas where workers are 

not exposed to 

hazardous or noxious 

substances; 

 

(vii) Provide H and S 

orientation training to all 

new workers to ensure 

that they are apprised of 

the basic site rules of 

work at the site, personal 

protective protection, 

and preventing injuring 

to fellow workers; 

 

(viii) Provide visitor 

orientation if visitors to 

the site can gain access 

to areas where hazardous 

conditions or substances 

may be present. Ensure 

also that visitor/s do not 

enter hazard areas 

unescorted; 

 

(ix) Ensure the visibility 

of workers through their 

use of high visibility 

vests when working in or 

walking through heavy 

equipment operating 

areas; 

(x) Ensure moving 

equipment is outfitted 

 orientation 

trainings 

 

(viii) personal 

protective 

equipments; 

 

(ix) %  of 

moving 

equipment 

outfitted with 

audible back-up 

alarms; 

 

(xi) sign boards 

for hazardous 

areas such as 

energized 

electrical 

devices and 

lines, service 

rooms housing 

high voltage 

equipment, and 

areas for 

storage and 

disposal. 
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Field 

 

Anticipated Impact 

 

Mitigation Measures 

 

Responsible 

for 

Mitigation 

 

Monitoring of 

Mitigation 

  with audible back-up 

alarms; 

 

(xi) Mark and provide 

sign boards for 

hazardous areas such as 

energized electrical 

devices and lines, 

service rooms housing 

high voltage equipment, 

and areas for storage and 

disposal. Signage shall 

be in accordance with 

international standards 

and be well known to, 

and easily understood by 

workers, visitors, and the 

general public as 

appropriate; and 

 

(xii) Disallow worker 

exposure to noise level 

greater than 85 dBA for 

a duration of more than 8 

hours per day without 

hearing protection. The 

use of hearing protection 

shall be enforced 

actively. 

  

 

Quarry Sites 

and Borrow 

Pits 

 

Extraction of 

approximately 8575 

m3 of clay, 476.4 m3 

of sand, 22282 m3 of 

stones, 952.8 m3 of 

coarse aggregates, and 

loose materials other 

than stones can cause 

disruption of natural 

land contours and 

vegetation resulting in 

accelerated     erosion, 

landslides, disturbance 

 

(i) Verify suitability of 

all material sources and 

obtain approval of 

GSCDL; 

 

(ii) Prioritize 

government-approved 

quarries and borrow pits; 

 

(iii) Obtain approval of 

GSCDL if new quarries 

 

Construction 

contractor 

 

(i) List of 

approved 

quarry sites and 

borrow pits; 

 

(ii) 

GSCDL/PDMC 

report in writing 

that all 

necessary 

environmental 

restoration 

work has been 
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Field 

 

Anticipated Impact 

 

Mitigation Measures 

 

Responsible 

for 

Mitigation 

 

Monitoring of 

Mitigation 

 in natural drainage 

patterns, 

sedimentation/siltation 

of surface waters, and 

water pollution. 

and borrow sites are 

necessary; 

 

(iv) Obtain approval of 

GSCDL if extracting 

rocks, gravel, and sand 

from small rivers or 

streams is necessary. 

The extraction points 

shall be spread out along 

the length of the river to 

minimize disruption in 

river flow and to prevent 

instability to 

embankments. Local 

residents and water users 

shall be consulted to 

ensure that irrigation 

intakes, bunds, and local 

fishing are not adversely 

impacted; and 

 

(v) Request GSCDL to 

report in writing that the 

necessary environmental 

restoration work has 

been adequately 

performed  before 

acceptance of work. 

 adequately 

performed 

before 

acceptance of 

work. 

 

Work Camps 
 

Temporary air and 

noise pollution from 

machine operation, 

water pollution from 

storage and use of 

fuels, oils, solvents, 

and lubricants 

 

(i) Consult with GSCDL 

before locating project 

offices, sheds, and 

construction plants; 

 

(ii) Minimize removal of 

vegetation and disallow 

cutting of trees; 

 

(iii) Provide water and 

sanitation facilities for 

employees; 

 

Construction 

Contractor 

 

(i) Complaints 

from sensitive 

receptors; 

 

(ii) Water and 

sanitation 

facilities for 

employees; and 

 

(iii)GSCDL/P

DMC 

report in writing 

that   the   camp 



PART III: CONDITIONS OF CONTRACT AND CONTRACT FORMS 

141 

 

 

 

 

Field 

 

Anticipated Impact 

 

Mitigation Measures 

 

Responsible 

for 

Mitigation 

 

Monitoring of 

Mitigation 

  (iv) Prohibit employees 

from poaching wildlife 

and cutting of trees for 

firewood; 

 

(v) Train employees in 

the storage and handling 

of materials which can 

potentially cause soil 

contamination; 

 

(vi) Recover used oil and 

lubricants and reuse or 

remove from the site; 

 

(vii) Manage solid waste 

according to the 

following preference 

hierarchy: reuse, 

recycling and disposal to 

designated areas; 

 

(viii) Remove all 

wreckage, rubbish, or 

temporary structures 

which are no longer 

required; and 

 

(ix) Request GSCDL to 

report in writing that the 

camp has been vacated 

and restored to pre- 

project conditions before 

acceptance of work. 

 has been 

vacated and 

restored to pre- 

project 

conditions 

 

Social and 

Cultural 

Resources – 

Chance 

Finds 

 

Risk of archaeological 

chance finds 

 

(i) Strictly follow the 

protocol for chance finds 

in any excavation work; 

(ii) Request GSCDL or 

any authorized person 

with 

archaeological/historical 

 

Construction 

Contractor 

 

Records of 

chance finds 
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Field 

 

Anticipated Impact 

 

Mitigation Measures 

 

Responsible 

for 

Mitigation 

 

Monitoring of 

Mitigation 

  field training to observe 

excavation; 

 

(iii) Stop work 

immediately to allow 

further investigation if 

any finds are suspected; 

and 

 

(iv) Inform GSCDL if a 

find is suspected, and 

take any action they 

require ensuring its 

removal or protection in 

situ. 
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Section 9 - CONTRACT FORMS 

This Section contains forms which, once completed, will form part of the Contract. The forms 

for Performance Security and Advance Payment Security, when required, shall only be 

completed by the successful Bidder after contract award. 
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Letter of Acceptance 

---- on letterhead paper of the Employer ---- 

 

 

. . . . . . . date. . . . . . . 

 

 
To: . . . . . . . . . . name and address of the Contractor . . . . . . . . . . 

 

 

 

 

Subject: . . . . . . . . . . Notification of Award Contract No.  . . . . . . . . . . 

 

 
 

Dear Sirs 

 

This is to notify you that your Bid dated . . . . date . . . . for 

………………………………………………………………………………………………… 

…………………. Gangtok, Sikkim or the Contract Price of Rupees . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ,amounting numbers and words as corrected and 

modified in accordance with the Instructions to Bidders* is hereby accepted by our Agency. 

 

 

We accept/ do not accept that .................................................................................. be appointed 

as the Adjudicator **. 

 

 
 

We note that as per bid, you do not intend to subcontract any component of work. 

 

 
 

OR 

 

 
 

We note that as per bid, you propose to employ M/s ........................................................ as sub- 

contractor for executing . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
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You are hereby requested to furnish the Performance Security, plus additional security for 

unbalance bids in terms of ITB clause 43.1, in the form detailed in Para 37.5 of ITB for an 

amount of INR. .................................................................. within 15 days of the receipt of this 

letter of acceptance valid up to 28 days from the date of expiry of Defects Liability Period i.e.: 

unto ................................... and sign the contract, failing which action as stated in Para 43.2 of 

ITB will be taken. 

 

We have reviewed the construction methodology submitted by you along with the bid in 

response to section IV and our comments are given in the attachment. You are requested to 

submit a revised Program including environmental management plan as per Clause 25 of 

General Conditions of Contract within 14 days of receipt of this letter. 

 

 

Yours Faithfully 

 

 
 

Authorized Signature: 

 

Name and Title of Signatory: 

 

Name of Agency: 
 

 

 
 

 

 
* - delete “corrected and” or “and modified” if only one of these actions applies. Delete “as corrected and modified in 

accordance with the Instructions to Bidders” if corrections or modifications have not been effected. 

 

** - to be used only if the Contractor disagrees in his Bid with the Adjudicator proposed by the Employer”. 
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Contract Agreement 

 

 
THIS AGREEMENT made the . . . . . .day of . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ., .............. , between Chief 

Executing Officer, GSCDL, Level 5, Kissan Bazaar, Gangtok-737101, Sikkim (India) (here in 

after “the Employer”), of the one part, and . . . . . name of the Contractor. ....... (hereinafter “the 

Contractor”), of the other part: 

 

WHEREAS the Employer desires that the Works known as REPAIR AND 

RESTORATION OF STREET LIGHTS IN AND AROUND GANGTOK, should be 

executed by the Contractor, and has accepted a Bid by the Contractor for the execution and 

completion of these Works and the remedying of any defects therein, 

 

The Employer and the Contractor agree as follows: 

 

1. In this Agreement words and expressions shall have the same meanings as are 

respectively assigned to them in the Contract documents referred to. 

 

2. The following documents shall be deemed to form and be read and construed as part 

of this Agreement. This Agreement shall prevail over all other Contract documents. 

 

a) the Letter of Acceptance 

b) Letters of Technical Bid and Price Bid 

c) The Addenda Nos . . . . . insert addenda numbers if any. . . . . 

d) the Particular Conditions 

e) the General Conditions; 

f) the Specification 

g) the Drawings; and 

h) the completed Schedules, 

 

3. In consideration of the payments to be made by the Employer to the Contractor as 

indicated in this Agreement, the Contractor hereby covenants with the Employer to 

execute the Works and to remedy defects therein in conformity in all respects with 

the provisions of the Contract. 

 

4. The Employer hereby covenants to pay the Contractor in consideration of the 

execution and completion of the Works and the remedying of defects therein, the 

Contract Price or such other sum as may become payable under the provisions of the 

Contract at the times and in the manner prescribed by the Contract. 

 

IN WITNESS whereof the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed 

in accordance with the laws of Sikkim .......... on the day, month and year indicated 

above. 



PART III: CONDITIONS OF CONTRACT AND CONTRACT FORMS 

147 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Signed by …………….. Signed by …………. 

 
for and on behalf of the Employer for and on behalf the Contractor 

 

 
 

in the presence of: in the presence of: 

 

 

 

 

Witness, Name, Signature, Address, Date Witness, Name, Signature, Address, Date 
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Unconditional Performance Security 

 
 

Bank’s Name, and Address of Issuing Branch or Office 

 

 
 

Beneficiary: 

 

Name of the Employer: Gangtok Smart City Development Limited represented by the Chief 

Executing Officer, Level 5, Kissan Bazaar, Gangtok-737101, Sikkim (India) 

 

Date: 

 

Performance Guarantee No.: 

 

We have been informed that . . . . . name of the Contractor.          (here in after called 

“the Contractor”) has entered into Contract No. . . . . . reference number of the Contract. . . . . 

dated ................. with you, for the SOLAR PANEL/ STREET LIGHT IN AND AROUND 

GANGTOK, SIKKIM INCLUDING DEFECT LIABILITY PERIOD OF ONE YEAR, 

(hereinafter called “the Contract”). 

 

Furthermore, we understand that, according to the conditions of the Contract, an 

irrevocable and unconditional performance guarantee is required. 

 

At the request of the Contractor, we . . . . . name of the Bank          hereby unconditionally 

and irrevocably undertake to pay you any sum or sums not exceeding in total an amount of . . 

. . . . . . . name of the currency and amount in figures. . . . . . (. . . . . amount in words          ) such sum being 

payable in the types and proportions of currencies in which the Contract Price is payable, upon 

receipt by us of your first demand in writing accompanied by a written statement stating that 

the Contractor is in breach of its obligation(s) under the Contract, and without cavil & 

arguments without your needing to prove or to show grounds for your demand or the sum 

specified therein. 

 

This guarantee shall expire, no later than the . . . . . Day of ........ Insert the date twenty-eight 

days after the defect liability period. . . . . . , .............. , and any demand for payment under it must be 

received by us at this office on or before that date. 

 

The Guarantor agrees to a one-time extension of this guarantee for a period not to exceed [one 

year], in response to the Employer’s written request for such extension, such request to be 

presented to the Guarantor before the expiry of the guarantee 
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. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

Seal of Bank and Signature(s) 



PART III: CONDITIONS OF CONTRACT AND CONTRACT FORMS 

150 

 

 

Advance Payment Security (Unconditional) 

Bank’s Name, and Address of Issuing Branch or Office 

 

Beneficiary: 

 

Name of the Employer: Gangtok Smart City Development Limited represented by the Chief 

Executing Officer, Level 5, Kissan Bazaar, Gangtok-737101, Sikkim (India) 

 

Date: 

 

Advance Payment Guarantee No.: 

 

We have been informed that . . . . . name of the Contractor. ...........(hereinafter called 

“the Contractor”) has entered into Contract No. . . . . . reference number of the Contract. . . . . 

dated ................. with you, for the SOLAR PANEL/ STREET LIGHT IN AND AROUND 

GANGTOK, SIKKIM INCLUDING DEFECT LIABILITY PERIOD OF ONE YEAR, 

(hereinafter called “the Contract”). 

 

Furthermore, we understand that, according to the Conditions of the Contract, an 

advance payment in the sum . . . . . name of the currency and amount in figures. . . . . . ( ........ amount in 

Words         ) is to be made against an advance payment guarantee. 

 

At the request of the Contractor, we . . . . . name of the Bank ........... hereby unconditionally 

and irrevocably undertake to pay you any sum or sums not exceeding in total an amount 

of . . . . . name of the currency and amount in figures*. . . . . . (. . . . . Amount in words ...........) 

upon 

receipt by us of your first demand in writing accompanied by a written statement stating 

that the Contractor is in breach of its obligation under the Contract because the Contractor 

used the advance payment for purposes other than the costs of mobilization in respect of 

the Works. 

 

It is a condition for any claim and payment under this guarantee to be made that the 

advance payment referred to above must have been received by the Contractor on its 

account number . . . . . Contractor’s account number. . . . . at . . . . . name and address of the Bank. . 

. . . . 

 

The maximum amount of this guarantee shall be progressively reduced by the amount of 

the advance payment repaid by the Contractor as indicated in copies of interim statements 

or payment certificates which shall be presented to us. This guarantee shall expire upon 

our receipt of a copy of the payment certificate indicating that hundred (100) percent 

mobilization advance has been recovered. This guarantee will not be subjected to any cavil 

or arguments. 

 

The Guarantor agrees to a one-time extension of this guarantee for a period not to exceed [one 

year], in response to the Employer’s written request for such extension, such request to be 

presented to the Guarantor before the expiry of the guarantee 
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. . . . . . . . . . . . . . Seal of Bank and Signature(s). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
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UNCONDITIONAL BANK GUARANTEE IN LIEU OF 

RETENTION MONEY 

 

 
To: Gangtok Smart City Development Limited represented by the Chief Executing Officer, 

Level 5, Kissan Bazaar, Gangtok-737101, Sikkim (India) 

 

 
WHEREAS [name and address of contractor] (hereinafter 

called the “Contractor”) has undertaken, in pursuance of Contract No. dated 

   to REPAIR AND RESTORATION OF STREET LIGHTS IN AND 

AROUND GANGTOK 

 

(herein after called the “Contract”.); 

 

 
 

AND WHEREAS IT HAS BEEN AGREED BY YOU IN THE SAID contract that the 

Contractor has option to replace the Retention Money with an irrevocable and unconditional 

Bank Guarantee, in instalments of (indicate the value)from a Bank acceptable to 

you as security for compliance with contractor’s obligations in accordance with the contract 

(Sub-clause 45.2 of Particular Conditions of Contract). 

 

 

AND WHEREAS the Contractor has opted to replace the retention money with an irrevocable 

and un conditional Bank Guarantee; 

 

 

NOW THEREFORE we hereby affirm that we are the Guarantor and responsible to you, on 

behalf of the Contractor, up to a total of   [amount of Guarantee 

in figures], [amount in words],
#such sum being payable in the 

types and proportions of currencies in which the Contract Price is payable, and we undertake 

to pay you, upon your first written demand and without cavil or argument, any sum or sums 

within the limits of  [amount of Guarantee] as aforesaid without 

your needing to prove or to show grounds or reasons for your demand for the sum specified 

therein. 

 

 

We hereby waive the necessity of your demanding the said debt from the Contractor before 

presenting us with the demand. 
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We further agree that no change or addition to or other modification of the terms of the Contract 

or of the Works to be performed there under or of any of the Contract documents which may 

be made between you and the Contractor shall in any way release us from any liability under 

this guarantee, and we hereby waive notice of any such change, addition or modification. 

 

 

This guarantee shall be valid till the ‘Project Manager’ certifies repayment of retention money 

in accordance with Sub-clause 45.2 of Particular Conditions of Contract i.e., upto 

………………. 

 

 
 

SIGNATURE AND SEAL OF THE GUARANTOR 

 

 

Name of the Bank:    
 

Address:    
 

Date:    
 

 
 

# An amount is to be inserted by the Guarantor, representing the amount specified in the Contract, and denominated 

either in the currency(ies) of the Contract or in a freely convertible currency acceptable to the Employer. 


